
CITY OF LOCKPORT 
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 13th, 2023 

6:30 P.M. 
 
 
  
6:00 P.M.    Committee of the Whole Meeting 
 
6:30 P.M.    Common Council Meeting 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES Beakman: Approve Common Council minutes of 
     091323.1 August 23rd, 2023 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
MOTIONS &   
RESOLUTIONS   Beakman: Congratulate Employees on years of  

091323.2 service 
 
xxxx:  Grant permission to ETC Pyramid Group 
091323.3 for additional containers 
 
xxxx:  Purchase of Ambulance 
091323.4 
 
xxxx:  Emergency Authorization for Richfield Lift 
091323.5 
 
xxxx:  Closing of Capital Project – Sludge Dryer 
091323.6 
 
xxxx:  Funding of Capital Project – Workplace 
091323.7 Violence Prevention 
 
xxxx:  Glenwood Ave Guide Rail 
091323.8 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT   Beakman: Adjourn meeting to September 27, 2023  
     091323.9  

 
 



 

 

CITY OF LOCKPORT 
CORPORATION PROCEEDINGS 

 
Lockport Municipal Building 

 
Regular Meeting 
Official Record 

 September 13th, 2023 
 6:30 P.M. 
 

Mayor Michelle M. Roman called the meeting to order. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

The following Common Council members answered the roll call: 
Aldermen Beakman, Devine, Fogle, Swanson-Gellerson, Kantor, and Lupo. 

 
 

INVOCATION 
 

MAYOR’S UPDATE  
  

RECESS 
Recess for public input. 
 
Minutes Correction – August 23, 2023: 
082323.5 
By Alderman Beakman: 
 

Resolved that pursuant to their request, ETC Pyramid Group, 275 North Franklin 
Turnpike, Ramsey, NJ 07446 Trinity Buildings and Construction Management Corporation, 1 
Jewel Drive #322, Wilmington, MA 01887 is hereby granted permission to place three 
dumpsters (40-yard dumpsters) in the parking spaces directly in front of 77 Main Street, where 
they have a project taking place. Additionally permission is granted for protective scaffolding to 
be installed over the sidewalk Said permission is subject to ETC Pyramid Group Trinity 
Buildings and Construction Management Corporation filing a certificate of insurance with the 
City Clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured and follow all rules and regulations 
as set forth in the Lockport City Code Section 156 – Roll off Containers. 
 

Seconded by Alderman Devine and adopted as amended.  Ayes 5 
 
091323.1          APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
On motion of Alderman Beakman, seconded by Alderman ___________________, the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 23rd, 2023 are hereby approved as printed in the 
Journal of Proceedings.  Ayes _____.  Carried. 
 

FROM THE MAYOR 
 
Appointments: 



 

 

8/30/2023 Gregory Qualiana, 104 Carolina Avenue has been appointed to building 
Maintenance Mechanic for the City of Lockport effective August 29, 2023. Said appointment is 
subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules and Regulations. 
 
8/31/2023 Christian W. Landry, 16 Franklin Avenue has been appointed to Public Works 
Supervisor for the City of Lockport Building Maintenance Department effective August 29, 
2023. Said appointment is subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules and 
Regulations. 
 
9/1/2023 Roger Pitiss, 58 McIntosh Drive has been reappointed to the City of Lockport 
Traffic Advisory Committee. Said term expires June 1, 2027. 
 
9/5/2023 Brian Bull, 179 Irving Street has been reappointed to the City of Lockport License 
Revocation Board. Said term expires March 3, 2025. 
 
9/5/2023 Anna M. Mauri, 57 Coolidge Avenue has been reappointed to the City of 
Lockport Board of Ethics. Said term expires August 7, 2026 
 

FROM THE CITY CLERK 
 
The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the 
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments. 
Reviewed by the Finance Committee. 
 
Communications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials) 
 
8/24/2023 Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk – notification of bids received on September 7th 2023 
in response to the RFP for Medix RP-90 Ambulance. 
  
 Gorman Energy Vehicles  $172,570.00 
 
8/24/2023 Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk – notification of buds received on September 7th 2023 
in response to the RFP for Emergency Medical Equipment. 
 
 Stryker    $71,104.19 
 
8/15/2023 Niagara County Attorney’s Office notifying the city of a Notice of Appearance in 
the matter of the application for review under Article 7 of the Real Property Tax Law of a tax 
assessment by Daniel Wiegand vs the Board of Assessment Review for the City of Lockport, 
the Assessor of the city and the City of Lockport NY. Index No. E180479/2023. 
 
8/31/2023 Steve Whalen, Vernon Daniel and Dona Chase, owners of Groff’s Café on the 
Green, LLC notifying the city of their application to the New York State Liquor Authority 
requesting an On-Premises Sales permit on October 8, 2023 the day of the Buffalo Bills game 
in London. 
 
9/6/2023 Janice Sawyer, notifying the city that the 1 way street sign on Akron Road 
towards High Street at Roosevelt has been missing since an accident and vehicles have been 
going the wrong way. 
 
Notice of Complaint: 



 

 

8/24/2023 Cecilia Price, 27 Oliver Street. Tree at 23 Oliver Street is a danger. 
9/2/2023 Alberto Aguero, 163 Elmwood Avenue, tree hazard. 
 
Referred to the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution. 
 
Notice of Claim: 
8/21/2023  Jaylah Florence-Reed vs. City of Lockport 
8/21/2023 Holly Curcione vs. City of Lockport 
9/1/2023 Daniel Morrissette and Elizabeth Morrissette vs. City of Lockport 
9/1/2023 Kristen Brolinski vs. City of Lockport 
9/6/2023 Harshadkumar S Shah, deceased, by the Co-Executors of his Estate, Dharan H. 

Shah and Mansi H. Shah and Kaminiben H. Shah vs City of Lockport 
9/6/2023 Naresh Ramanlal Shah and Sharmistha Nareshkumar Shah vs City of Lockport 
9/6/2023 Christine Thomas vs City of Lockport 
9/6/2023 Colleen Gray vs City of Lockport 
9/6/2023 Nina Briglio vs City of Lockport 
 
Referred to the Corporation Counsel. 
 
MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS 
 
091323.2 
By Alderman Beakman: 
 Resolved that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend congratulations and 
appreciation to the following City employees for their years of dedicated service to the City of 
Lockport: 
 
 Employee      Years of Service   Title  
 
Nicholas Rubert   15   Streets Crew Leader 
Elizabeth Ellis    5   Waste Water Treatment Plat Operator 
 
 
 Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
  
091323.3 
By Alderman:_______________________ 
 

Whereas by resolution 082323.5 the Common Council approved for ETC Pyramid 
Group to place dumpsters in front of 77 Main Street while they complete a construction project  

Whereas there is a need for four additional dumpsters to be used for the additional 
construction; Now therefore it be  

Resolved that pursuant to their request, ETC Pyramid Group is hereby granted 
permission to place four dumpsters (40-yard dumpsters) in the City parking lot on Walnut 
Street.  Said permission is subject to ETC Pyramid Group filing a certificate of insurance with 
the City Clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured and follow all rules and 
regulations set forth in the Lockport City Code Section 156-Roll-Off Containers.   
 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 



 

 

091323.4 
By Alderman:_______________________________ 
 

Whereas the FY 2023 Capital Budget includes a proposed project for workplace 
violence prevention measures and improvements; and  

Whereas the City wishes to allocate funding to a capital project to begin funding of said 
components of the Workplace Violence Prevention Policy; and  

Whereas the initial estimated costs of said components are estimated to be $470,000 
between the major funds; and 

Whereas each fund has sufficient balances of unreserved fund balance and cash flow 
to support said costs with excess remaining;  

Resolved that the FY 2023 operating budgets are hereby amended as follows:  
 
Revenues 
A.0000.30599  Appropriated Fund Balance  $200,000 
FX.0000.30599  Appropriated Fund Balance  $170,000 
G.0000.30599  Appropriated Fund Balance  $100,000 
 
Expenditures 
A.9901.35031.H   Interfund to Capital    $200,000 
FX.9901.35031.H   Interfund to Capital    $170,000 
G.9901.35031.H   Interfund to Capital    $100,000 
 

 
Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 

 
091323.5 
By Alderman:__________________________________ 
 

Whereas General Municipal Law Section 53(4) extends purchasing authorizations to be 
made in event of an emergency in which there is endangerment to the health, welfare, property, 
or taxpayers of the City of Lockport; and  

Whereas the City’s Wastewater Treatment Department, in coordination with the Mayor’s 
Office Department of Finance, and City Engineer, were required to utilize said emergency 
authorization for the failure of pumps at the Richfield Lift Station; now, therefore, be it  
 Resolved that the Common Council hereby acknowledges the use of the emergency 
authorization to contract with Koester in the amount of $112,000, and amends the FY 2023 
Sewer Fund Budget as follows 
 
Expenditures 
 
Decrease 
G.1900.54775  Contingency    $87,000 
G.8130.54623  Utilities – Electricity    $25,000 
 
Increase 
G.8130.54540  Utility System Reform  $112,000 
 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 



 

 

 
091323.6 
By Alderman:__________________________________ 
 

Whereas resolution 060618.5 authorized bonding in the amount of $150,000 to be used 
for the engineering of the sludge dryer; and  

Whereas, bonding was completed shortly thereafter, however, the project was not 
pursued and funding has remained in the capital account; and 

Whereas, closing the capital account can free funds to be moved into the debt service 
fund, which can then be used to pay future year debt payments in the sewer fund; now 
therefore be it  

Resolved that the H194 capital account is hereby authorized to be closed and have 
remaining funding moved to the debt service fund.  
 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 
091323.7 
By Alderman:__________________________________ 
 

Whereas the FY 2023 Capital Budget includes a proposed project for workplace 
violence prevention measures and improvements; and  

Whereas the City wishes to allocate funding to a capital project to begin funding of said 
components of the Workplace Violence Prevention Policy; and  

Whereas the initial estimated costs of said components are estimated to be $470,000 
between the major funds; and 

Whereas each fund has sufficient balances of unreserved fund balance and cash flow 
to support said costs with excess remaining;  

Resolved that the FY 2023 operating budgets are hereby amended as follows:  
 
Revenues 
A.0000.30599  Appropriated Fund Balance  $200,000 
FX.0000.30599  Appropriated Fund Balance  $170,000 
G.0000.30599  Appropriated Fund Balance  $100,000 
 
Expenditures 
A.9901.35031.H   Interfund to Capital    $200,000 
FX.9901.35031.H   Interfund to Capital    $170,000 
G.9901.35031.H   Interfund to Capital    $100,000 
 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 
091323.8 
By Alderman:______________________________ 
 

Whereas the Director of Highways, Parks, and Water Distribution informed the Mayor 
that the corrugated guide rails along Glenwood Avenue between North Transit Street and Craine 
Street are damaged and in need of replacement; and 



 

 

           Whereas Pavilion Drainage Supply Co. Inc. is included in the New York State Bid and 
listed as qualified contractor in the Niagara County Department of Public Works Bid No. 2023-
16 for Guide Railings, Posts and Concrete Barriers; and 
           Whereas Pavilion Drainage Supply Co. Inc. submitted a proposal to the Engineering 
Department for $53,262.50 to replace the guide rails at Glenwood Avenue; and 
           Whereas the City has received funding from NYSDOT to make improvements for work 
not usually affecting the pavement, such as guiderail projects; and 

Resolved that the Mayor is authorized to execute an Agreement with Pavilion Drainage 
Supply Co. Inc., 6630 Ellicott Street Road, Pavilion, New York 14525, in the amount of 
$53,263.50 contingent upon legal review. 
 
 
           Seconded by Alderman                      and adopted. Ayes            . 
 
 
091323.9 ADJOURNMENT 
 

At ______ P.M. Alderman Beakman moved the Common Council be adjourned until 
6:30 P.M., Wednesday, September 27th 2023. 
  

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted.  Ayes _____. 
 

SARAH K. LANZO 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 



Ofiffic,e @f the
IMayor

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks plaza

Lockport, New York 14094
Phone (716) 439.666s

Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

August 30,2023

TO: Common Council

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred.on me by the charter of the city of Lockport, NewYork, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of sald !ttv, o"a.i..uy appoint Gregory w. eualian a,104carolina Avenueo Lockport NY 14094 to.Building uaintenance Mechanlc for the city of LockportBuilding Maintenance Department effective Augist ig, i6)g.

said appointment is subject to the city of Lockport Municipal civil services Rules and Regulations.

Witness by hand and the seal of the city of Lockport this 30th day of Aug ust2023.

Michelle M.
Mayor

MMR/mal

cc: G. Qualiana
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

Offrc,e of the One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439-6665
Fax (716) 439-6668

MicheWe M. Roman
MAYOR

hdayor
August 31,2023

TO: Common Council

!-n{er and by virtue- ojthe authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do trereUy appoint Christian W. Landry, 16
Franklin Avenue, Lockport NY 14094 to Public Works Supervisor for the City of Lockport Building
Maintenance Department effective August Zg, 2023.

Said appointment is subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules and Regulations.

Witness by hand and the Seal of the City of Lockport this 31st day of Augu st2023.

M.
Mayor

MMR/mal

cc: C. Landry
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



AftEfee afttzeLOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks Plozo

Lockport, New York 14094
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fox (71 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

M"a5rar
September 1,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York,I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby re-appoint Roger Pittiss, 58 Mclntosh
Drive, Lockport, NY 14094 to the City of Lockport Traffic Advisory Committee.

Said term expires on June I,2027

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this I't day of September 2023

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

R. Pittiss
Lieutenant Anthony Pittman

Cc



AftEiee aftheLOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks Plozo

Lockport, New York 14O94
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fox (71 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

-nVaSrar
September 5,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby re-appoint Brian Bull, 179 Irving Street,
Lockport, NY 14094 to the City of Lockport License Revocation Board.

Said term expires on March 3,2025

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 5th day of September 2023.

Sincerely,

Michelle M.
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: B. Bull
City Clerk



1 AfrEiee afttrne
LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

One Locks Plozo
Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439-666s
Fox (71 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

=nVaSrar

September 5,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby reappoint Anna M. Mauri, 57 Coolidge
Avenue, Lockport, NY 14094 to the City of Lockport Board of Ethics.

Said term expires on August 7,2026

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 5h day of September 2023

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

A. Maura
City Clerk

Cc:



City of Lockport

Pay Day Register
Pay Date Range ATptlT3 - 0Bl03lZ3

pay Batch Bl]op3

Pay
Female Employees in Pay Batch 6g
Hours

BERV - Bereavement
CLAL - Clothing Ailowance
CMPE 1.0 - Comp Earned @ 1.0
CMPE 1.5 - Comp Eamed @ 1.5
CMPU - Comp f ime Used
EDAY - Extra Day

PRSU - Personal Used

FHDE - Floating Holiday Earned 424.3400FHDU - Floating Holiday Used
FLSA - FLSA

MILI - Military Time
OOT - Out oflfle
OT 1.0 - Overtime at Straight 1.0
OT 1.5 - Overtime @ l.s
oT l.s SHIFT 10olo - OT @ 1.s

1,794.5000

oT 1.5 SHIFT 15olo - OT @ 1.5

PAID on
ts at
C;

Hours Gross Withhold and Deductions

52.0000 1,4L5.76 Imputed Income
.0000 2,925,00 Federal

113.6250 OO FICA
8.5000 .00 Medicare

175.7500 6,071.15 New york State
152.0000 5,747.O7 457 o/o Deduction

,00 457 Flat Dollar Deduction
408.0000 L1,764,40 AFLAC POSTTAX

.0000 142.62 AFLAC PRETM
32.0000 1,316.20 ALLSTATE POSTTM

598.5000 24,099,78 ALLSTATE PRETM
25.2500 L02A.66 Chitd Support

77,889.27 Child Support - Maine
42.0000 L,667.47 COLONIAL UFE POSTTAX
48.0000 T,7B9.U FSA PRETM

101.0000 3,4L2.07 Health Ins 298 Class 2 Family

Gross Base Benefits

68,405.37
36,699.19
8,582.54

28,374.67
6,397.56

10,940.38

233.75
415.06
735.28

597.92

737.00
202.00

55.40

s36.61
2,089.92

990.84
1,164.08

672.61

523,L2

135.31

24.68

301.38
234,11

1,949.00
63.62

560.84
1,709.05

225.88
792.93

56.62

617.64
1,566.30
1,557.9t
L,425.86

313.9s
890.54
101.51

565,369.28
591,906.84
591,906.84
574,568.9o
75,884.L2

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
1,474.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
9,753,69

56,935.21
7,529.03

22,524.32
1,724,U

L3,725.39

44,75O.96

29,153.23
33,214.L3
5,924.A9

29,685.46
2,900.41

8.582.54

$45,280.73

9,625.40
8L,293.49
8,984.87
s,183.6s
1,217.83

$@ffi$

2,666.62
2,673.52

689.50
.74

Gross Base

Gross Base

591,906.84

Gross Base

43,296.88
45,080.07

7,369.78

Amount

Health Ins 298 2 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 2 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Single
Total

Taxes

Medicare

Workers'

Workers Compensation - Sewer
Workers Compensation - Water
Workers Compensation 50o/o
Total

State
Amherst Federal Credit Union
Armed Forces Bank
Bancorp Bank
Bank of Akron
Bank of America
BANK OF AMERTCA (2)
BANK OF AMERTCA (4)
BANK OF AMERTCA (5)
Bank on Buffalo
Capital One 360
Chase

Chase Bank
Chime
Citizens Bank
Cornerstone Comm FCU

ESL FCU

Evans Bank

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

Total

27

REG - Regular
REG PT - Regular part-llme 11,416.2500

REG SHIFT 10olo - Regular Shift
REG SHIFT 15olo - Regular Shift
REGS - Regular Seasonat
RETRO - Retroactive pay
RGs - Regular - Salary
SAL - Salary
SAL PT - Salary partl.ime
SCKE - Sick Eamed
SCKU - Sick Used
SIIP - Stipend
VACE - Vacation Eamed

332,869.00 Health Ins 298 Class 2 Single181.5000 6,230,27 Health Ins 298 Class 3 Family
152.0000 3,826.49 Health Ins 298 Class 3 Single192.0000 5,183.56 Health Ins 298 Class 4 Family1,972.0000 3L,522.38 Health Ins 298 Class 4 Single

.0000 (41.22) L&M UFE
70.0000 .OO NEW YORK UFE

.0000 3,806.51 Pearl Insurance through CSEA.0000 7,865.37 RET ERS LOANS
949.2500 .OO RET PF SEC 414H ARREARS
671.0000 L8,722.83 Retire ERS'ller 6 <= 9100,000.0000 192.31 Retire ERS Tier g q=g4i000

Retire ERS Tier 6 <=94t000 OT
Retire ERS'l-ier g <=g55,000
Retire ERS Tier 6 <=955,000 OT
Retire ERS Tier 6 <=g7t000
Retire PFRS <= g55,000
Retire PFRS'ner 6 <= 9100,000
Retire pFRS Tler 6 <= g7t000
Retire PFRS'tler 6 <=
Retire pFRS Tier 6 <=$45,000
Retire pFRS'ller 6 <=$55,000

Direct

L,

470.05
1,188.15
1,535.42

3,091.74
4,67r.24
7,427.37

1,209.99
u6.5t

3,057.55
L,37t.76
2,255.60
1,593.49

200.00
14,753.32

L36,777.80

599.49
3,007.48

VACU - Vacation Used
Total

147.5907 .00#

Run by Ashley Bretherton on 8/8/2023 10:03:09 AM

Page 163 of 164



City of Lockport Pay Day Register
Pay Date Range 08rc4123 - 0BlL7l23

Pay Batch Bl24l23

I HEREBY CERilFY that the persons named
in this payrdl arc employed solely in and have
actually perbrmcd lhc ilties of positions and

indbnsdlbr0tG
FAID on

JqaEatctr B | 24 | 23 T otal ,5\-t cQ'
Employees in ray aatctr 25s-
Female Employees in Pay Batch 69
Hours Hours Gross
207A Disability - L,720.60
BERV - Bereavement 29.0000 L,Z@.46
CMPE 1.0 - Comp Eamed @ 1.0 196.0000 .00
CMPE 1.5 - Comp Earned @ 1.5 6.2500 .00
CMPU - Comp Time Used 410.5000 13,093.43
EDAY - Extra Day 176.0000 6,206.54
FHDB - Floating Holiday Buy Out 120.0000 4,790.84
FHDE - Floating Holiday Earned 16.0000 .00
FHDL - Floating Holiday Lost 16.0000 .00
FHDU - Floating Holiday Used 256.0000 8,065.64
FLSA - FLSA .0000 475.95
LONG- Longevity Payment .0000 1,050.00
MILI - Military Time 88.0000 3,143.39
OOT - Out of Title 818.5000 3t,227.7I
OOT OT SHIFT 10o/o - OOT OT 13.0000 508.29
OT 1.0 - Overtime at Straight 1.0 21.5000 753.99
OT 1.5 - Overtime @ 1.5 t,494.2500 66,621.65
OT 1.5 SHIFT 10o/o - OT @ 1.5 58.0000 2,305.01
oT 1.5 SHIFT 15olo - OT @ 1.5 64.0000 2,531.70
PRSE - Personal Earned 58.0000 .00
PRSL - Personal Lost 4.0000 .00
PRSU - Personal Used 138.0000 4,SZZ9L
REG - Regular 11,524.5000 331,406.88
REG PT - Regular Part Time 181.5000 6,234.94
REG SHIFT 10olo - Regular Shift 148.0000 3,828.96
REG SHIFT 15olo - Regular Shift 172.0000 4,527.96
REGS - Regular Seasonal 1,693.0000 27,3t4.ts
RETRO - Retroactive Pay .0000 (SS.39)
RGS - Regular - Salary 70.0000 .00
SAL - Salary .0000 3,806.51
SAL PT - Salary Part Time .0000 1,865.37
SCKL - Sick Lost 16.0000 .00
SCKU - Sick Used 725.0000 21,833.60
STIP - SUpend .0000 192.31
VACB - Vacation Buy Out 80.0000 2,587,04
VACL - Vacation Lost 64.0000 .00
VACU - Vacation Used 1,291.5000 43,412.64
Total @

Withholdings and Deductions Gross Base
Gross 595,733.98
Imputed Income
Federal

RCA
Medicare
New York State
457 o/o Deduction
457 Flat Dollar Deduction
AFLAC POSTTAX

AFLAC PRFTM
ALLSTATE POSTTM
ALLSTATE PRETAX

Child Support
Child Support - Maine
COLONIAL UFE POSTTM
Firefighter Life Ins
FSA PRETM
Health Ins 298 Class 2 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 2 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Single
Heafth Ins 298 Class 4 Family
Heafth Ins 298 Class 4 Single
L&M UFE
NEW YORK LJFE

RET ERs LOANS

RET ERS SEC 414H ARREARS

RET PF SEC 414H ARREARS

Retire ERS Tier 6 <= $100,000
Retire ERS 1isr 6 <=945,000
Retire ERS n"r 6 q=$45,000 oT
Retire ERS nff $ a=$$5,000
Retire ERS Tier 6 <-$55,000 OT
Retire ERS nqp 6 a=g/5,000
Retire PFRS <= 955,000
Retire PFRS Tier 6 <= 9100,000
Retire PFRS Tier 6 <= 975,000
Retire PFRS Tier 6 <=
Retire PFRS Tier 6 <=945,000

$34,739.47

Direct Deposits Amount

Armed Forces Bank

Bancorp Bank
Bank of Akron
Bank of America
BANK OF AMENCA (2)
BANK OF AMERTCA (4)
BANK OF AMERTCA (s)
Bank on Buffalo

Capital One 360
Chase

Chase Bank
Chime
Citizens Bank
Cornerstone Comm FCU

ESL FCU

Evans Bank
Financial Trust FCU

67,621.83

36,365.30
8,504.80

28,044.62

6,773.86
11,005.38

233.75

415.06
735.28

597.92
737.00
202.00

55.40
101.67
656.61

2,t89.44
1,026.23
1,164.08

672.6L

618.23
135.31

24.68
301.38

1,564.00
49.96
63.62

560.84
1,828.97

179.23
885.67
120.68
687.02

7,5L6.77
7,587.64
t,452.60

165.96
892.58

559,420.65
586,537.89
586,537.89
568,758.65

81,120.68
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

1,474,00
.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
9,753.65

60,965.78
5,974,L8

24,976.67
3,279.36

L5,707.69
43,335.90
29,734.39
33,811.36

3,263.51
29,753.0O

28,821.10
2,787.83
2,441.04

689.50

457,005.54
43,683.72
45,293.85

7 45t.59

Benefits
Health Ins 298 Class 2 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 2 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Single
Total

Employer Taxes
FICA

Medicare
Total

Workers'Comp
Workers Compensation - General

Workers Compensation - Sewer
Workers Compensation - Water
Workers Compensation 50o/o

Total

Gross Base

27,024.95

9,943.89
80,323.40

8,984.87

6,039.66
L,2L7.83

$133,534.60

Gross Base

36,365.30 586,537.89
8,504.80 586,537.89

f,14,870.10

Gross Base

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

1,238.16

r,535.42
2,986.30

5,199.75
1,631.09
1,278.40

534.34
2,388.54

878.08
2,255.59
1,848.59

200.00
L3,991.76

L37,554.54
359.78

3,255.84
100.00

Run by Ashley Bretherton on 8/2212023 10:28:56 AM Page 164 of 165



REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The Gity of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for

Lockport Fire Department - Medix RP-90 Ambulance.

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received and considered by the City of
Lockport up to 2pm on September 7th, 2023 atthe office of the City Clerk, municipal building,
One Locks Plaza Lockport NY, 14094.

Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the equipment

Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at 716-439-6776 or cityclerk@lockportny.gov with any
questions.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the
reputation and experience of the Proposal in making its selection; to waive any informalities or
minor deviations from the proposal form, and to award word to other than the lowest quote, if
good and sufficient reasons, it is considered in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so
The City will not reimburse any costs associated with the preparation of RFP(s).

Publish Date: Augu st 24, 2023



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
LOCKPORT MIINICIPAL BUILDING

ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

OFFICE OF CITY CLERK
Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk

Emily Stoddard Dep. City Clerk/Registrar of Vital Statistics

BID OPENING

Office (716\439-6676
Fax (716)439-6702

Owner:

Project ed,k

*r*-t|/

-q0 A[- t

Bid Opening:

Time:

abhs
Z

Contractor Name Phone Number Service Bid Amount

boru- E^\"--? V&Zb a(r&;-i(fr P"P*tP FftL 1{7ou/ L/V



REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for

Lockport Fire Department -Emergency Medical Equipment

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received and considered by the City
of Lockport up to 2 pm on September 7th, 2023 at the office of the City Clerk, municipal
building, One Locks Plaza Lockport NY, 14094.

Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the equipment.

Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at716439-6776 or cityclerk@lockportny.gov
with any questions.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the
reputation and experience of the Proposal in making its selection; to waive any
informalities or minor deviations from the proposalform, and to award word to other
than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is considered in the best interest
of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs

associated with the preparation of RFP(s).

Publish Date: August 24,2023



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
LOCKPORT MLINICIPAL BUILDING

ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

OFFICE OF CITY CLERK
Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk

Emily Stoddard Dep. City Clerk/Registrar of Vital Statistics

BID OPENING

Office (716)439-6676
Fax (716)439-6702

Owner: M/

Project: 6LJ

Bid Opening: q/" /zz
Time: z

Gontractor Name Phone Number Service Bid Amount

Sl'v V,r \oa-f"c( Q*1hc. ru^ T1-6r,*af nttq. n
v



NIAGARA CO{JNTY ATTORNEY'S OFF'ICE
NIA GARA C OLNTY COI'RTHOUSE
175 HAWLEY STREET
LOCKPORT, NEW YOzu< 14094
016) 439-710s
(716) 439-7114 Fax

Claude A. .troerg
County Attorney

Katherine D. Alexander
First Assistant

Scott C. Becker, Esq.

Kavinoky Cook, LLP
T26Exchanse St,, Suite 800
Buffalo, NY 14210

August 15,2023

R. Thornas Burgasser
John S. Sansone
Gary H. Lisowski
David W. Koplas
Bradley D. Marbie
Assistants

RE IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION FOR REVIEW LINDER ARTICLE 7 OF THE
REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW OF A TAX ASSESSMENT BY DANIEL WIEGAND vs.
THE BOARD OF ASSESSMENT REVIEW FOR THE CITY OF LOCKPORT, THE
ASSESSOR OF THE CITY OF LOCKPORT and THE CITY OF LOCKPORT, NY
Index No. E18047912023

Dear Mr. Becker:

Enclosed please find copy of a Notice of Appearance for the above referenced matter on behalf
of the County of Niagara.

I am also enclosing a Stipulated Order for your review. Should you find same acceptabie, please
sign and refum to this office for forwarding to the municipal attorney.

Thank you for your attention to this matter

Very truly yours,

finr,r rt

KDA/c1m
Enclosures

cc: The Board of Assessment Review
for the City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

City of Loc Uport /
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

KATHERINE D. ALEXANDER
First Assistant Niagara County Attorney

Assessor of the City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockporl, NY 14094



IIJTTJ: 0 2023 03:4
NYSCEF DOC. NO. B

SUPREME COT]RT OF TI-IE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUN'|Y OF NIAGARA

rNDEX NO. E180479/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF:. OB/LA/2023

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION FOR
REVIEW UNDER ARTICLE 7 OF THI] REAL
PROPERTY TAX LAW OF A TAX ASSESSMENT
BY DANIEL WIEGAND

Petitione4
NOTICE OF APPEARANCE

Index No. 81B047912023
vs.

THE BOAIID OX'ASSESSMENT RIVIEW FOR TIIE
CITY OF LOCKPORT; TFIE ASSESSOR OF THE CITY
OF LOCKPORT and THE CITY OF LOCKPORT,
NEW YORK

Respondents.

For Review of the Assessment of Certain Real property
l<nown as 196 Locust Street in fhe said City of Lockport
for the Tax Year'2023-24

TO TI]E SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK:

The County of Niagara Upon receiving a copy of the Petition of DANIEL WIEGAND

sworn to 7/1912023, and Notice of Petition, for a review, under Real Property Tax Law Ar.ticle 7 of

the tax assessment of certain real property of Petitionel', appearing on the assessment r.oll of the City

of Lockport for 2A23?024,hercby sets forth a notice of appearance by the County of Niagara with

the intent to iutervene in the above-captioned maffer, This notice is deemed sufficient to fulfill the

requircments of R.P.T,L. $7 12(2-b).

f)ated: Alrsust 9.

Lockport, New York

C EA. G, ESQ.
NIAGARA COUNT'Y ATTORNEY
I(A'IHERiNE D. ALEXANDER, ESQ,, of Counsel
Niagara County Coulthouse
175 Hawley Street
Lockpolt, New York 14094
(716) 439-710s

Lof2



TJt'\ I I <J J: '{o t Jl -e1J

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 8 RECETVED NYSCEF: 0B /L4/2023

TO;
lfire Board of Assessment Review
for the City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockpolt, NY 14094

City of Lochport
One Locks Plaza.
I-ockport, NY 14094

Assessor of the City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockport,.NY 14094

2of2



Groff s Cafd on the Green, LLC
314 Davison Rd.
Lockport, NY 14094

RECEIVED

sEP u I 202:3August 31,2023

Sarah K.Lanzo, City Clerk
City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

RE: Sunday On-Premises Sales Permit

Dear Ms. Lanzo;

We are applying for a Sunday On-Premises Sales Permit with the New York State Liquor
Authority for October 8,2023, the day of the Buffalo Bills game in London. Because this is our
first time requesting this type of permit, we did not realize that there was a 30-day Notice
requirement prior to submitting the application. For this reason, we are requesting a waiver of
this requirement so that we can submit our application in a timely manner.

Attached is the Notice Form required by the NYS SLA. Thank you for your time and
consideration.

Warm regards,

Steve Whalen, Vernon Daniel & Dona Chase

Owners



NEWYORK
STAI€OF
oPeomuNllY.

lst"t" Liauor
lauthority

RECEI\/ED
Sunday On- Premises Sales Permit- 

Sfp \,i i ?nty 30
Standardized NOTICE FORM for Providing 30-Day Advanced Notice to a

Local Municipalitv for Sundav @remises.Sales Pefmit(s)

1. Date Notice Was Sent: 09t01t2023 1a, Delivered by: Dona Chase

2. This form must be submitted to the clerk or Local Municipality when filing for a Sunday On-Premises Sales Permit

This 30-Day Advance Notice is Being Provided to the Clerk of the following Local Municipality

3. Name of Municipality: CIry OF LOCKPORT

Licensee lnformation

4. License Serial Number: 31 66736 5. Permit Date(s): 10t08t2023

6. License name: GROFF'S CAFE ON THE GREEN LLC

7. Trade Name (if any):

8. Street Address of Establishment: 314 DAVISON RD.

9. City, Town or Village: LOCKPORT ,NY zip code 14094

10. Business Telephone Number of Applicant/Licensee; 716-201-1780

1 1. Business Fax Number of Applicant/Licensee:

12. Business E-mail of Applicant/Licensee: g roffscafeontheg ree n@ya hoo. com

Representative or Attorney representing the licensee in connection with this permit

'I 3. Representative/Attorney's Full Name:

14. Street Address:

15. City, Town or Village State Zip Code

1 6. Business Telephone Number of Representative/Attorney:

17. Business Email Address :

I am the licensee that is applying for the permit and I certify that I know the contents of the above application and the statements and
answers therein; that the same are true to my knowledge; that I have been authorized, by order of the Board of Directors of said licensee

to make the statements and answers in this application on behalf of said licensee with the same force and effect as if said licensee made
such statements and answers itself.

By my sighature, I affirm - under Penalty of Perjury - that the representations made in this form are true.

17. Printed Name Title Member

Signature: X

The above on-premises licensee is applying for a permit with the State Liquor Authority to sell alcoholic
beverages on their premises on Sunday between the hours of 8AM to 1OAM for the date indicated above .

Please forward any concerns regarding the issuance of this permit to the attention of
The New York State Liquor Authority, Permit Unit fax: (518) 474-9804 or e-mail licensing.information@sla.ny.gov

Stephen A. Whalen

1012812016 Page 4 of 4



Deputy City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Good Morning,

Please see below - thank you!

cityclerk@ lockportny.gov
Wednesday, September 6, 2023 1 1 :03 AM
'Jennifer Wochna'; Emily Stoddard
jharris@ lockportny.gov; Clayton Dimmick;'Anthony Pittman'

FW: [EXTERNAL] Missing One-way sign

From: Kitty Fogle <ward4@lockportny.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, September 5,2023 2:55 PM

To: Janice Sawyer <sawjanL4094@gmail.com>; mhoffman@lockportny.gov; Ward5@lockportny.gov;

info@ lockportny.gov; cityclerk@ lockportny.gov
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Missing One-way sign

Thank you for your concern. By wdting this you put city in notice. I will follow up

Regards,
Kitty

Sent via the Samsung Calaxy S9+, an AT'&'f 5G Evolution capable smartphone

Original message
From: Janice Sawyer anl4094
Date: 9 I 5 123 ll :43 AM (GMT-05 :00)
To: mhoffman@lockportny.gov, Ward5@lockportny.qov, info@lockportny.qov, cityclerk@lockportny.sov
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Missing One-way sign

The one-way sign on Akron heading towards High Street at Roosevelt has been missing since an accident.

Vehicles have been noted to head the wrong direction.

Thank you
Janice Sawyer

1



There is a tree in front of 23 Oliver st (Lockport, NY) that has a broken branch that I

have been calling about since May 2022. On August24, of 20221 dropped off a photo
of it in case they had a hard time locating it. Nothing has been done.

It has now been a full year ln the summer it is filled with bees and you can't get near it.
Please remove the tree, or at the very least the broken branch before it falls and kills
someone. The branch hangs over the driveway of 2T Oliver st.

RECEIVED
Cecelia Price
27 Oliver st
716.804.4132

CITY CLERK OFFICE

AU0 2 42073



( L'*t iS T\"t v"ro* ""t 

tra yo*/*^]
fl 

t e-ee \v, *j [i v,t- 'b^4 ul",*t \tL"*t hrymfr \andT w"-nol \) )uY bk lr

P VwyU.4-

Tl*J D"*Y &dut'- f,*frno,n4.odtt ^
aM',? w d It

.//u



RECEIVED

AU0 2 1 2A23

CITY CLERK OFFICE
ln the Matter of the Claim of

JAYLAH FLORENCE-REED,

Claimant,

- against

NOTTCE OF CLAIM

CITY OF LOCKPORT NEW YORK,
HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, INC.,
CLARENCE K. BURKWIT dlbla
LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND
BOAT RIDE, HYDRAULIC RACE
COMPANY, lNC. d/b/a LOCKPORT
CAVE & UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE
and THOMAS P. CALLAHAN d/b/a
LOCKPORT HYDRAULIC RACE
COMPANY, LTD.

TO: CITY OF LOCKPORT NEW YORK
HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, INC.
CLARENCE K. BURKWTT d/b/a
LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE
HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, INC. d/b/A
LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE
THOMAS P. CALLAHAN d/b/a LOCKPORT HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, LTD.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that JAYLAH FLORENCE-REED, has and hereby makes

claim against clw oF LocKPoRT NEWYORK, HyDRAULtc RACE coMpANy, tNC.,

CLARENCE K. BURKWIT d/b/a LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE,

HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, lNC. d/b/a LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND

BOAT RIDE ANd THOMAS P. CALLAHAN d/b/a LOCKPORT HYDRAULIC RAcE

COMPANY, LTD., and in support of said claim states the following:

609 44 l2v I - 07 27 98.000 I



1. The Post Office address of the claimant is g31 Fairfield Avenue, Niagara Falls,

New York 14305.

2. The attorneys forthe claimant are LIPSITZ GREEN SCIME CAMBRIA LLp, and

their Post Office address is 42 Delaware Avenue, Suite 120, Buffalo, New yorki4202-gg24.

3. The claim of JAYLAH FLORENCE-REED is for personal injuries, including

without limitation, loss of income and medical expenses, and for consequential damages

generally,

4, ThE CIA|M ATOSC At LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE,

located at 5 Gooding Street, in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara and State of New

York.

5' The claim arose in substance as follows: On the 12th day of June, 2023, at

approximately 11:30 a.m., the claimant, JAYLAH FLORENCE-REED, was engaged in

employment activities at the tourist attraction commonly known as LOCKpORT CAVE &

UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE, alleged to have been owned and/or operated by ClTy OF

LOCKPORT NEW YORK and/or HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, lNC. and/or

CLARENCE K. BURKWIT d/b/a LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND BoAT RIDE

and/or HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, INc. dlb1a LocKPoRT CAVE &

UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE and/or THOMAS P. CALLAHAN d/b/a LOCKPORT

HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, LTD., when the tour boat capsized, resulting in serious

injuries to the claimant.

6. Upon information and belief, the incident herein described and the resultant

injuries and damages sustained were caused as a result of the negligence, carelessness,

recklessness and/or unlavrrful conduct on the part of the agents, servants and/or employees
6094412v1 -07n98.0001

-2-



of CITY OF LOCKPORT NEWYORK and/or HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, tNC. and/or

CLARENCE K. BURI(A/IT d|bla LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND BoAT RIDE

and/or HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, INc. d|bla LocKPoRT CAVE &

UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE and/or THOMAS P. CALLAHAN d/b/a LOCKpORT

HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, LTD., and more particularly, among otherthings, in failing

and omitting to inspect the tour boat; in failing and omitting to provide for the safe

operation of the tour boat ride; in failing and omitting to provide reasonabte and adequate

protection for the lives, health and safety of claimant and other persons lav'rfully aboard

the tour boat ride; in failing and omitting to take all necessary precautions for the safety

of persons on the tour boat ride and in failing and omitting to avoid the incident, which in

the exercise of reasonable care, could and should have been avoided.

7. Upon information and belief, as a result of the aforesaid incident, the claimant,

JAYLAH FLORENCE-REED, sustained severe bodily injuries and was painfully and

seriously injured;was rendered sick, sore, lame and disabled; sustained pain and suffering

and shock to her nerves and nervous system; and more particularly, JAYLAH FLORENCE-

REED, sustained emotional injuries and physical injuries to the left upper extremities,. head

and other various injuries. Upon information and belief, these injuries will result in

permanent defects.

W{EREFORE, ctaimant requests that ctry oF LocKpoRT NEW yoRK,

HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, lNC., CLARENCE K. BURKWIT d/b/a LOCKPORT

CAVE & UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE, HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, INC. d/b/A

LOCKPORT CAVE & UNDERGROUND BOAT RIDE and THOMAS P. CALLAHAN d/b/a

6@44l2vl -072798.00A1

-3-



LOCKPORT HYDRAULIC RACE COMPANY, LTD. honor and pay the claim on behatf of

JAYLAH FLORENCE-REED.

DATED: Buffalo, New York
August 18,2023

LOR

LIPSITZ GREEN SCIME BRIA LLP

MICHAE P. STUERMER, ESQ.
Attorneys for Claimant
Office and P.O. Address
42Delaware Avenue, Suite 120
Buffalo, New York 14202-3924
(716) 84e-1333
IMPS :#72798.00011

6494412v l - 072798.000 I

-4-



STATE OF NEWYORK )

)SS
)COUNry OF Erie

JAYLAH FLORENCE-REED, being duly sworn deposes and says that she is the

claimant above named; and makes this claim on behalf of self; she has read the foregoing

claim and knows the contents thereof; the same is true to the knowledge of the claimant

except for the matters herein alleged upon information and belief, and as to those matters,

she believes them to be true.

FLORENCE.R ED

Sworn to before me on this

l$!a^y o1 *t"gds t' , 2023.

Notary Public

ACo(i^*--_
us4 M.COLBURN

noary publlc, State of New\fut
9uatifted in Erte Counil' 

.."

u'??liliHi#tff *;'Jf,"#if ffi aa

60944 l2v I - 072798.000 I



STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT :: COUNTY OF NIAGARA

HOLLY CURCIONE,

Claimant,

vs.

s T_{E cIrI oF .locKPoRrr
THE COUNTY OF NTAGARA,
NIAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY and
NIAGARA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,

Respondents.

TO Laura Miskell Benedict
City of Lockport Corporation
Lockport Municj_pal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 1,4094

RECEIVED

sfp u 1 2023

CITY CLERK OFFICE

NOTICE OF CI,AIM
FOR PERSONAIJ IN']I'RIES

Counsel

Claude A. Joerg
Niagara County Attorney
175 Hawley Street
Lockport, New York t4094

Niagara County Industrial Development Agency
Niagara county Department of Economic oevelopment
631-1 Inducon Corporate Drj-ve
Sanborn, New York t4!32

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Claimant, Holly Curcione gives Notice

of claim aqainst the city of Lockport, county of Niagara, Niagara

County fndustriaf Development Agency, and Niagara County Department

of Economic Development (hereinafter collectively referred to as

"Respondents") and their agents, emproyees, and others for whom

Respondents are vicariously and/or contractually liab]e, for the



injuries, damages, conscious pain and suffering, and negligent

infliction of emotional distress suffered by Cl-aj-mant as' the

result of an incident that occurred on June L2, 2023 at

approximately LLz20 a.m. at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride, located at 55 Gooding street in the city of Lockport, county

of Niagara, State of New York ("Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

*UO.n 1 .-

fn support of this Notice of Claim, Claimant states the

following:

l-. Claimant's post office address is l-52 McChesney Street,

Wilson, New York 141-72.

2- Attorney for claimant is The Higgins Law Group, p.c.

(Terrence P. Higgins, Esq. ), 69 DeLaware Avenue, suite 100,

Buffalo, New York t4202; telephone number 71"6-745-4545.

3. Unl-ess otherwise indicated, the facts set forth in this
Notice of Claim are set forth upon information and belief, the

sources of which include an investigation into this matter, and

review of documents related to this claim.

4. This cLaim arises out of an incident that occurred on

.Tune t2, 2023, during a boat tour taking place in the waterways,

underground caves, tunnels, walkways and caverns, at the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Rlde.

5. This claim is for personal injuries, conscious pain and

suffering, and neglj-gent inftiction of emotional distress suffered

2



by claimant Hol1y curcione, arising out of the June !2, zo23

incident, which occumed as a result of the acts, omissions, and

negligence of the Respondents and,/or their agents, subsidiaries,
associates, contractors, servants, and/or employees.

6- on "Tune L2, 2023, during the underground boat ride
portion of the tour through the waterways, underground caves,

ttiflnef5; and-CaVernsf 'f,ocafed at the Lockport CaVe and Underground

Boat Ride, a boat carrying claimant Ho11y curcione, capsized,

causing its passengers, including claimant Ho11y curcione, to be

ejected into the water.

7. The passengers, including Claimant Holly Curcione, were

trapped in cold, deep, murky water in the dark, unreasonably

narrow' underground tunnel- behind one or more locked gates, with no

ledge, handrails, walkwayr or anything else to hang onto and no

life vests, life preservers, or any other safety and/or rescue

devices available for them to pul1 themselves and/or each other'out

of the water, and with no ready access by rescue personnel_.

7. upon information and belief, at arr times herein

mentioned, the Respondents and/or Respondentsr agents,

subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and/or employees,

maintained and/or shared responsibility for inspecting,

maintaj-ning, monj-torLng, authorizi.g, supervj-sing, and/or

overseeing the premises at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride, including all caves, walkways, access, tunnels, caverns and

3



waterways, as well as the boat (s) and/or vessel (s) used to
transport patrons of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride

through the underground caves, caverns, tunnels and waterways.

8. upon information and belief, at all times herein

mentioned, the Respondents and/or Respondents' agents,

subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and/or employees,

owed and/or-Sh-aied a duty to inspect, maj-ntain, monitor, authorize,

oversee and/or Supervise the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride, including all caves, walkways, access, caverns and waterways,

as well as the boat (s) and/or vessel (s) used to transport patrons

of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, to ensure that the

premises were maintained in a reasonably safe condi-tion, to ensure

proper and safe equipment usage and operation, and to ensure the

safety and well-being of patrons of the Lockport cave and

Underground Boat Ride.

9. upon information and belief, at alr- times herein

mentioned, the Respondents and,/or Respondents I agents,

subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and/or employees,

owed and,/or shared a duty to inspect, maintain, monitor, authorize,

oversee' and,/or supervise the activities taking place at Lockport

cave and underground Boat Ride, including, but not l-imited to,
transport of patrons by boat through the caves, caverns, and

waterways of the Lockport cave and underground Boat Ride, to
ensure that no unreasonably dangerous and/or unsafe activities were

4



being conducted, to ensure proper and safe equipment usage and

operation, and to ensure the safety and well-being of patrons of
the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

10. Respondents breached their respective dutles by, among

other things, failing to ensure that the premises at the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat. Ride were maintained i-n a reasonably safe

conditioni failj-ng to properly inspect, mai_ntain, oversee, monitor,

authorize and,/or supervise the premises, equipment, operation,

and/or activj-ties at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride;

failing to ensure the safety and well-being of patrons of the

Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride; causj-ng and,/or permitting
unreasonably dangerous conditions and unsafe usage and operation at
the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride; and causing and/or

permitting unreasonably dangerous and unsafe activities to occur at
the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

11. Respondents had actual and constructive notice of the

aforesaid unreasonably dangerous and unsafe conditions and

activities at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride by virtue
of, among other things, a nearly identical incident. occurring in
201'5, where a boat operated by the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride capsized causing the passengers to fal-l into the water.

Upon information and belief, Respondents faiLed to investlgate the

incident or take any action to prevent this type of incident from

recurring. They also had constructive notj-ce through failing to

5



properly j-nspect, mai-ntain, monitor, authorize, supervise, oversee

and restrict unsafe equipment usage, operations, and activit.ies.
12. As a direct resul-t of the foregoing, claimant Holly

curcione suffered serious and permanent physical, psychological,

and emotj-onal injuries, and pain and suffering.

13. As a direct result of the foregoing, claimant Holly

CuiClone weS-physically endangered and caused to fear for her life,
safety and well being, and also witnessed injury and suffering of

others with and very c]ose to her in the zone of danger, causing

her to suffer severe and permanent psychological injurj-es and

emotional distress.

L4. Upon information and belief, the June 12, 2023 incident,

thereof, wereand the damages sustained by Cl-aimant as a result

directly caused by the negligence, recklessness, and carelessness

of the Respondents and,/or Respondents' agents, subsidiaries,

associates, contractors, servants, and/or employees, including,

but not limited to, the following:

a. negligently failing to properly and reasonably
inspect the premises at the Lockport Cave and
Underground Boat Ride, including but not limited to
the underground caves, caverns, tunnels, walkways
and waterways;

negligently failing to reasonably inspect, monitor,
and/or maintaj-n the boat (s) and,/or vessel (s) used
to carry and transport passengers thr6ugh the
underground caves, caverns, and waterways at the
Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride;

negligently failing to enforce building and/or
safety codes rul-es, and/or regulations, including

b

c

6



d

but not l-imited to requirements regarding exits,
lighting, handraj-ls, safety and evacuation plans,
and first responder/emergency personnel accessi

negligently approving and/or failing to prevent
and/or remedy dangerous conditi_ons in obvious
violatj-on of building and,/or safety codes, rules,
and/or regulations, including but not 1imited to
requirements regarding exits, lighting, handrails,
safet.y and evacuation plans; first responder/
emergency personnel access; and water hazard/rescue
precautions;

negligently failing to require compliance with
building and/or saf ety codes, ru1es, and,/or
regulations, including, but not limited to,
requirements regarding exi-ts, lighting, handrails,
safety and evacuation plans; first . responder/
emergency personnel_ access; and water hazard/rescue
precautions;

negligently causing and permitting the Lockport
Cave and Underground Boat Ride to operate and
continue operating notwithstanding its
noncompliance with building and/or safety codes,
rules, and/or regulati-ons, and hazard of boat
capsize i

negligently causing and permitting the Lockport
Cave and Underground Boat Ride to operate andcontinue operating without required and
appropriate permits, inspections, and/or safety
measures, including proper equipment, proper
personnel, and proper precautions;

negligently causing and permitting unreasonably
dangerous and unsafe conditions and operationsT
activities to exist and continue at the Lockport
Cave and Underground Boat Ride;

negligently causing and permitting unreasonably
dangerous and unsafe activities at the Lockport
Cave and Underground Boat Ride i

negligently failing to supervise and/or monitor the
Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride;

e

f

g

h

l-

l

7



k negligentl-y failing to ensure that the Lockport
Cave and Underground Boat Ride employed sufficient
and adequate on-site personnel, includlng personnel
trained in safety, first aid, and/or rescue
procedures, to ensure the safety of its patrons;
and personnel properly trained in passenger boat
operation, including weight, placement, and capsize
prevention measures;

negligently failing to ensure that the boats and/or
vessels used to transport passengers during the
Lockport. Cave and Underground Boat Ride were up to
da-td on iri'Sp6ctions, maintenance, and/or repairs;
and were designed and operated to prevent capsize;

negligently failing to ensure that the boats and/or
vessels used to transport passengers during the
Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride implemented
reasonable and adequate safety measures, including
but not limited to, life vests and/or floatation
devj-ces, proper passenger loading and weight
distribution;

negligently failing to monitor, supervise, and,/or
inspect the number of patrons and weight permitted
to be on the boat during the underground boat ride
portion of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat
Ride.

negligently failing to limit the number of patrons
permj-tted to be on the boat during the underground
boat ride portion of the Lockport Cave and
Underground Boat Ride to what was reasonable and
safe under the circumstances, and based upon
adequate precautionsi

negligently failing to ensure safe and proper
ingress/egress of patrons of the Lockport Cave and
Underground Boat Ride, including but not limited to
the underground caves, caverns, and/or waterways;

negligently failing to ensure that the Lockport- Cave and- Underground Boat Ride; and operators and
employees thereof, implemented reasonabl-e and
adequate policies and procedures to ensure the
safety and well-being of its patrons.

1

m

n

o

q

p

I



15. As a direct result of the acts and/or omissions described
above, Claimant HolIy Curcione suffered serious and permanent

physical, psychological, and emotional injuries, conscious pain and

suffering, negligent infl-iction of emotj-onal distress, and other
serlous/ severe, and extensive i-njuries, and claimant seeks all
damages avaj-lable at law.

1-5-: *' The -fu11' extent and amount of damages have not yet been

determined but incl-ude and shall not be limited to aLl-

present, and future damages incurred for the folrowing:

a. pain and suffering;

b- Negligent infr-iction of emotional di-stress;

past,

c. Personal injuries
progressiveness thereof ;

and permanency and

d- Need for and cost of future medical related care,including spine,surgery and shoulder surgery;

e. other speci-al and general damages as they manifest
themselves subsequent to the date of thil notice.

1'7. The incident alleged herein was the direct result of the
negligence, carelessness, and recklessness of the Respondents

and/or Respondentst agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,
servants, and/or employees and others for whom the Respondents are

vicariously and/or contractually liable, without any neglJ-gence on

the part of the Claimant

WHEREFORE, the Claimant Hol1y Curcj-one respectfully requests

that this claim be all-owed and paid by the Respondents, the city of
Lockport, County of Niagara, Niagara County IndustriaL Development

9



Agency, and Niagara County Department of Economic Development. You

are hereby notified that unless it is adjusted and paid within
30 days of the date of presentation to you, the Claimant intends to
commence an action on this matter.

DATED: Buffalo, New York
August 31, 2023

v rcl_one

Terrence P.H g
THE SIGGINS LATil GROUP, P.C.
Attorneys for Claimant
69 DeLaware Avenuei Suite 100
Buffalo, New York t4202
7t6-7 45-4545

Ho
c1

-10



STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF ERTE

\TERIFICAIION

qe.

Holly curcione, being duly sworn depose and say that r am the
Claimant in this action; that f have read the foregoing Notice of
CLai:n for PersonaL lnjuries and know the contents thereof; that the
same is true to the knowledge of deponent, except as to the matters
t!_glel_4__9_k!Sd_to_.bp allg.ged 9n lnformation and belief and that asto thbse matters f beLieve to be true.

v rc1one

Sworn to before me this
31st day of August, 2020.

1N

",J,"#*&fl{'i$,#ffIl*,



SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNW OF

RECEIVED

stP u 1 20,23

CITY CLERK OFFICE
DANIEL MORRISSETTE

ELIZABETH MORRISSETTE

Plaintiff/PetitioneI

-against- lndex No.

CITY OF LOCKPORT

Defendant/Respondent

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

(Mandatory Case)

(Uniform Rule 5 202.5-bb)
You have received this Notice because:

1) The Plaintiff/Petitioner, whose name is listed above, has filed this case using the New
York State Courts E-filing system ("NYSCEF"), and

2l You are Defendant/Respondent (a party) in this case.

lf vou,are reqrFsqnted bv an ?ttornev:
Give this Notice to your attorney. (Attornevs: lnformation for Attorneys" pg. 2).

a

o lf vou are not represented bv an attornev:
You will be served with all documents in paper and you must serve and file your
documents in paper, unless you choose to participate in e-filing.

!tyou choose to participate in e-filing, you Tnust have access to a computer and a scanner
or other device to convert documents into electronic format, a connestion to the
internet, and an e-mailaddress to receive service of documents.

The benefits of participating in e-filing include:
o Serving and filing your documents electronically
r Free access to view and nt r e-filed docu ents
o Limitin8 your number of trips to the courthouse
o Paying any court fees on-line (credit card needed)

To register for e-filing or for more information about how e-filing works:
r visit: www.nvcourts.govlefilq:unrepresented or
o contact the Clerk's Office or Help Center at the court where the case was filed.

Court contact information can be found at www.nvcourts.gov

Page 1 of2 6/6/L8 EFM-1



To find legal information to help you represent yourself visit www.nvcoourthelp.gov

Informatiqn for Attornevs
(E-filing is Mandatorv for Attornevsl

An attorney representing a party who is served with this notice must either:

1) lmmediately record his or her representation within the e-filed matter on the NYSCEF site
www. nvcou rts. gov/efiIe; or

2l File the Notice of Opt-Out form with the clerk of the court where this action is pending
and serve on all parties. Exemptions from mandatory e-filing are limited to attorneys who
certify in good faith that they lack the computer hardware and/or scanner and/or internet
connection or that they lack (along with all employees subject to their direction) the
knowledge to operate such equipment. [Section 202.5-bb(e)]

For additional information about electronic filing and to create a NYSCEF account, visit the NYSCEF

website at www.nvcourts.sov/efile or contact the NYSCEF Resource Center
(phone : 646-386-3033; e-mail : nvscef@ nvcou rts.eov).

Dated: Aueust 91. 2023

Robert J. Maranto
Name

ANDREWS, BERNSTEIN, MARANTO & NICOTRA, PLLC

Firm Name

To: City of Lockport

Address

420 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
7L6-842-2200

Phone

E-Mail

rjm @wnyinjurylawyers.com

lndex # Page 2 of 2 616/L8 EFM-1



STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: ERIE COUNTY

DAI\IEL MORRISSETTE
512 Portage Rd.,
Niagara Falls, NY I430I

ELIZABETH MORRISSETTE
512 Portage Rd.,
Niagara Falls, NY 1430I

Claimant, NOTICE OF CLAIM

CITY OF LOCKPORT
Lockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Respondent.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that the Claimants, DANIEL MORRISSETTE and

ELIZABETH MORRISSETTE hereby intend to file a claim against CITY OF LOCKPORT

and in support of said claim states the following:

1. The address of Claimants is 512 Portage Rd., Niagara Falls, New York 14301.

2. The Attorneys for Claimants are Andrews, Bernstein, Maranto & Nicotra,

PLLC, and their Post Office address is 420 Franklin Street, Buffalo, New York 14202.

3. This claim arose as follows: On June 12,2023, Claimants attended a guided tour

of the Erie Canal and the Lockport Locks. The guided tour was performed by Hydraulic Race

Company, Inc., dlblalockport Cave & Underground Boat Ride. Upon information and belief,

the tour began at the ticket office of Lockport Cave & Underground Boat Ride, which is located

at 5 Gooding St., Lockport, New York 14094. Upon information and belief, at some point

thereafter, guests attended a o'Boat Ride" along the Erie Canal in furtherance of the historical

tour which lasted approximately 75 minutes. Upon information and belief, the boat ride would



venture into the cave, make a loop, and eventually return back to the starting point. Upon

information and belief, on June 12, 2023, during the boating portion of the tour, at

approximately 11:30 a.m., the boat became unbalanced and eventually capsized which sent 29

individuals into the water. As a result, Claimants suffered serious bodily injuries and severe

emotional distress.

4. Upon information and belief the incident herein described and the resultant

damages sustained were caused as a result of the negligence, carelessness, recklessness, and

deliberate indifferenoe on the part of the agents, servants, and/or employees of the City of

Lockport. These acts include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Negligent supervision;

b. Negligent failure to recognize a known danger;

c. Negligent failure to take proper measures to correct the danger;

d. Negligent failure to inspect the tour boat;

e. Negligent failure to license the tour boat;

f. Negligently failing to prevent injuries;

g. The Respondents were otherwise negligent.

5. Upon information and belief the City of Lockport Police confirmed a similar

incident to Lockport Cave & Boat Ride. Upon information and belief, an incident report was

filed in the department.

6. This Claim is for personal injuries, conscious physical and emotional pain and

suffering.

7, By virtue of the negligence, carelessnesso recklessness, and deliberate

indifference of the CITY OF LOCKPORT, Claimants, DANIEL MORRISSETTE and

ELIZABETH MORRISSETTE, were caused to suffer serious, significant, and permanent

physical and emotional damages as a result of this incident.



8. WIIEREFORE, Claimants, DANIEL MORRISSETTE and ELZABETH

MORRISSETTE, requests that the CITY OF LOCKPORT compensate Claimants, for their

injuries and loss.

DATED: Buffalo, New York
August 31,2023

Yourso etc.

By
Robert J. Maranto, Jr., Esq.
AI\DREWS, BERNSTEIN,
MARANTO & MCOTRA, PLLC
Attorneyfor Claimant
420 Franklin Street
Buffalo, New York 14202
(716) 842-2200



VEBTFICATTON

STA]3 OF NEW YORK

ERIE COUNTY ss.

DANIEL MORRISSETTE individually, being duly sworn, deposes and says: I am the

claimant above naured; I have read the foregoing Notiee of Claim in this action and know ttre

contents thereof; that the same is tnre to my own knowledgg exce,pt as to ffre matters therein

stated to be alleged on information and beliet, and that as to those mattem, I bolieve thenr to be

tnre.

DA}IIEL MORRISSETTE

Swom to before rne this

JAMES M BOGOLD
t-loT/dRY PUBIIC€IATE OF NEW YORK

i{o.0t 8O0{38082
Oualllled ln Erie County

v*



VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEWYORK

ERIE COUNTY : ss.

ELIZABETH MORRISSETTE individualln being duly sworn, deposes and says: I am the
claimant above named; I have read the foregoing Notice of Claim in this action and know the
contents thereof; that the same is true to my own knowledge, except as to the matters therein
stated to be alleged on information and belief, and that as to those matters, I believe them to be
fue.

ELIZABETH MORRISSETTE

Swornto beforeme this

Notary

JAMES M BOGOLD
NOTARY PUBLIC.STAIE OF NEW YONK

ilo.0r8O0438082
Ourlified ln Erlo County

My Commlarlon Explroc 0&0&2026



SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNW OF
RECEIVED

s[P 0 1 2823
KRISTEN BROLINSKI

Plaintiff/Petitioner;

-against- lndex No.

CIW OF LOCKPORT

Defendant/Respondent

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

(Mandatory Case)

(Uniform Rule 5 202.5-bb)
You have received this Notice because:

1) The Plaintiff/Petitioner; whose name is listed above, has filed this case using the New
York State Courts E-filing system ("NYSCEF"), and

2l You are Defendant/Respondent (a party) in this case.

o lf voF are represe,nted bv an attornev:
Give this Notice to your attorney. (Attornevs: lnformation for Attorneys" pg. 2).

lf ,v,ou are not rep[d,,sented bv an attofnev:
You will be served with all documents in paper and you must serve and file your
documents in paper; unless you choose to participate in e-filing.

lf you choose to participate in e-filing, you !!!g$ have access to a computer and a scrnner
or other device to convert documents into electronic format, a connection to the
internet, and an e-mail address to receive service of documents.

The beneflts of participatlng in e-filing include:
o Serving and filing your documents electronically
o Free access to view and print your e-filed documents
o Limiting your number of trips to the courthouse
r PaVlnB any court fees on-line (credit card needed)

To register for e-filing or for more information about how e-filing works:
o visit: www.nvcourts.gov/efile-unrepresented or
r contact the Clerk's Office or Help Center at the court where the case was filed

Court contact information can be found at www,nvcourts.gov

ctry CLE ^. trtr
IOFRK

O

Page 1 of 2 6/6/L8 EFM-1



To find legal information to help you represent yourself visit www.nvcoourthelp.sov

lnformation for Attornevs
(E-filine is Mandatorv for Attorn,eysl

An attorney representing a party who is served with this notice must either:

1) lmmediately record his or her representation within the e-filed matter on the NySCEF site
www.nvcourts.gov/efi le; or

2) File the Notice of Opt-Out form with the clerk of the court where this action is pending
and serve on all parties. Exemptions from mandatory e-filing are limited to attorneys who
certify in good faith that they lack the computer hardware and/or scanner and/or internet
connection or that they lack (along with all employees subject to their direction) the
knowledge to operate such equipment. [Section 202.5-bb(e)]

For additional information about electronic filing and to create a NYSCEF account, visit the NYSCEF
website at www.nvcourts.gov/efile or contact the NYSCEF Resource Center
(phone: 646-386-3033; e-mail : nvscef@ nvcou rts.sov).

Dated: Ausqst 31. 2023

Robert J. Maranto
Name

ANDREWS, BERNSTEIN, MARANTO & NICOTRA, PLLC

Firm Name

To: City of Lockport

Address

420 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
7L6-842-2200

Phone

E-Mail

rjm @wnyinju rylawyers.com

lndex # Page 2 of 2 6/6/L8 EFM-1



STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: ERIE COUNTY

KRISTEN BROLINSKI
370 N. 8tr Street
Lewiston, NY 14092

Claimant, NOTICE OF CLAIM

CITY OF LOCKPORT
Lockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Respondent.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that the Claimant, KRISTEN BROLINSKI, hereby

intends to file a claim against CITY OF LOCKPORT and in support of said claim states the

following:

1. The address of Claimant is 370 N. 8th Street, Lewiston, New York 14092.

2. The Attorneys for Claimant are Andrews, Bernstein, Maranto & Nicotra, PLLC,

and their Post office address is 420 Franklin Street, Buffalo, New York 14202.

3. This claim arose as follows: On June 12,2023, Claimant attended a guided tour

of the Erie Canal and the Lockport Locks. The guided tour was performed by Hydraulic Race

Company, Inc, dlblalockport Cave & Underground Boat Ride. Upon information and belief,

ths tour began at the ticket office of Lockport Cave & [Jnderground Boat Ride, which is locatecl

at 5 Gooding St., Lockport, New York 14094. Upon information and belief, at some point

thereafter, guests attended a "Boat Ride" along the Erie Canal in furtherance of the historical

tour which lasted approximately 75 minutes. Upon information and belief, the boat ride would

venture into the cave, make a loop, and eventually return back to the starting point. Upon

information and belief on June 12, 2023, during the boating portion of the tour, at



approximately 11:30 a.m., the boat became unbalanced and eventually capsized which sent29

individuals into the water. As a result, Claimant suffered serious bodily injuries and severe

emotional distress.

4. Upon information and belief, the incident herein described and the resultant

damages sustained were caused as a result of the negligence, carelessness, recklessness, and

deliberate indifference on the part of the agents, servants, and/or employees of the City of

Lockport. These acts include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Negligent supervision;

b. Negligent failure to recognize a known danger;

c. Negligent failure to take proper measures to correct the danger;

d. Negligent failure to inspect the tour boat;

e. Negligent failure to license the tour boat;

f. Negligently failing to prevent injuries;

g. The Respondents were otherwise negligent.

5. Upon information and belief, the City of Lockport Police confirmed a similar

incident to Lockport Cave & Boat Ride. Upon information and belief, an incident report was

filed in the department.

6. This Claim is for personal injuries, conscious physical and emotional pain and

suffering.

7. By virtue of the negligence, carelessnessn recklessness, and deliberate

indifference of the CITY OF LOCKPORT, Claimant, KRISTEN BROLINSKI, were caused to

suffer serious, significant, and permanent physical and emotional damages as a result of this

incident.

8. WHEREFORE, Claimant, KRISTEN BROLINSKI requests that the CITY

OF LOCKPORT compensate Claimant, for her injuries and loss.



DATED: Buffalo, New York
August 31,2023

Yourso etc.

{'{fwy
By:

Robert J. Maranto, Jr., Esq.
ANDREWS, BERNSTEIN,
MARANTO & MCOTRA, PLLC
Attorneyfor Claimant
420 Franklin Street
Buffalo, New York 14202
(716)842-2200



VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK

,,ERIE COUNTY : ss.

5liaqarr't

KRISTEN BROLINSKI individually, being duly swom, deposes and says: I am the claimant
above named; I have read the forregoing Notice of Claim in this action and know the contents
thereof, that the same is true to my own knowledge, except as to the matters therein stated to be

alleged on infonnation and belief, and that as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

sworntoberoremethip aoth dAl o{ lfrUf/,;LS+ "023

KRISTEN BROLINKSI

Notaty Public



;

STATE OF'NNW YORK
SUPREME COURT : COUNTY OF NIAGARA

ITARSIIADKUI4AR s. SI{AH, deceased, by the co-Enicutors
of hie Estate, DHARAN H. SIIAI{ and
MANSI E $IIAH; and

KAMIMBEN H. SHAH;

Claimants,

TIIE CITY OF LOCKPORT,
TIIE COUNIY 0F NrAGARA
NLAGARa contfrY INDUSTRLAL DE\tEroFMEl*lr AGfrNcy, and
NIAGARA COUI\fiTY DEPARTIdET{T oF EcoNoMIc DE\IEtoPME}ff

Respondents.
r.-....-ixr.-..-tr....-a-.ea..aa.....r-Qt....-....rrrrtt

TO: Laura MigkellBeuedict
CiCy of Iochort Corpruation Counsel
Iockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Claude A. Joerg
Niagam CountyAttorney
1?6 Hawley Street
Iockpo& New York 14094

Ni,agara Counf Induebial Developnent Agensy
Ni,agara Counf Department of Econonic Developnent
631l Inducon Oorporate Drive
Sanborn, NewYork l4lBA

NOmmotrar44d
40F PTiFsol{At
$IlntRlpg Al'lD
TSnONGqUrpFAur

?8*

hond det tvered
RECEIVED

rsff 08 2$?3

qTY C[ERK OFFIIOE



PLEASE TAKE NOIICIE that Claimants, DIIARAN H. SI{AH and I{ANSI

H. SHAII, as Co'Executors of the Eetat€ of IIAR"SIIADKIJIVIAR S; SI{AH; end

KAI\,IINIBEN H. SIIAH hercina&er rtferred to collectively ae "Claimante"), give

Notice of a Clai- against the CIIY OF LOCKPORT, COUNTY OF NIACARA

NIACARA @UNIY INDIj$fRLAL DE\&LO"MEIff AgENgY, and NIAGARA

COUNTY DnPARTM&tff OF' ECONOMIC DE\TELOPMEI'IT (hereinsftsr

crllectively re&ned to as'Seqpondentso), and tbeir agents, enployees, and otbere

for wborn the Reepondents arc vicarioruly and/or contractually liable, for the

injuriee, damages, coneciouspain and rufferiug, aegligent infliction of emotional

distrese, pre'impaet terror, and/or wmngftl deat& eu&red by Cl"i'naste and

Claimants' decedent ae thp result of an iucident that occurred on Juns 12,2A28 at,

the Inclport Cave ard Underground Boat Ride, loceted at 6 Goodine Strret in the

City of Locfoort, County of Niegara, State of New York flnckport Carre and

Underground Boat Ride").

In eupport of this Notice of glaim, the Cleimsnts stato the following:

1, The post office addleea of Claimant Dharan H. Sbah, as Eresutor of

the Eetate of IIARSI{ADKIIIyiAB S. SHAH is 062l Niagara FaUs Boulevar4

Niagara Falls, New Yorh 14504.

2



2- the post office addrness of Claimant Mansi H. Shab as Executor of the

Eetate of IIARSHADKUIVIAR S, SIIAH ie g001 Niagara Falls Boulevard Niagara

paue, New york l43oc.

g. On July ll, Z0Ag, the County of Niaggrars Sunrogate's Court isgued

Letters Teetamentary to Claimants DI{ARA}',tr }I. SEAH and MANSI I{. SIIAH, who

thereupon gualifred aa Co-Executors of the estate of HAR"SIIADKLMAR S. SIIAH.

4. Claimants, DI{ARANH. SIIAII andlr{AN$I II- SIIAH are the children

of claimant, KA.l\4II{lBsNIt, sr[,AH, and rhe decedent, rtaRsHADKt II{AR s.

SI{AH.

6. |Ihe post offioe addrBse of Ctaimaat I{AMINIBENII. SHAII is 6621

Nrqgerr ['a[g Boulevar4 Niagara Fallg, New york 14904.

6. claimant, r{AMINIBEN H. slIA[I, wss the wi& of decedsnt,

HARSEADI{UI\{AR S. SIIAH.

1. The attorneye for the Clsipants ar€ CONNORS IJ,P (fegence l\d.

Connole, Ssq. and Chrigtina If. Eaton, Esq. of counsel), lo00 Liberty Buitdinn 4Za

Main $treeto Buffalq New York 142O2.The telephone anrmber for CONNOnS, IJ,p

ie (?re) 8ss-s398.

8. Unlesa otherwiee indicate4 the facte eet furth in this Notioe of Ctaim

are based u.pon infonnation and belie{, the souroes of which include an inreatigstion

into this matter, iateryiews rif,h witneggeg, aad a' rcview of docr ents r,elated to

this daim.

t



9. This claim arisee out of an incident that occurred on June t2,2029

during a boat tour takiry place in the underground caves, tunnele, walkways,

caverns, and/or waterways at tbe Lockport Cave aud Undelground Boat Ride.

10. Thie claiu ie for: (0 the personal injuriea, eonscious pain and

suffering, and wrongful death of Claimant's decedent, IIA&SHADKUIUAR S.

SIIAH, by the Co-Sxecutore of hie estate,,DHARAI{ H. SHAH and IVIANSI H.

SHAH, arieing out qf the Jrrne 12,2028 inqident, which oeourr"'ed as a result of the

acts, oniseions, and negligence of the Respondents aud/or thoir agents, subeidiaries,

associates, cuntractors, eeryants, and/or qmployees; and O) the personal iqiuriee,

pain and euftring, and negligent infliction of emotional dhtrese of Olaimanti

I(AI\4IMBAN H. SIIAII, arising out sf the June 18, 2023 incidsut, which occurred

as a rcsult of the acts, omissions, aod negligenae of the Reqpondents andlor tbeir

agents, subsidiarieg, associateg contractorg, genrantg, andlor employees.

11. On June 12,2Q28 ator around 11:20.e.u., drrring the undergmwd

boat ride portion of the tour thmragh the under;round caves, tunnels, walkways,

caverns, aad/or waterwaye looated at the.Inckport Cave and Uuderground Boat

Bide, a boat c'rrrrying Claimant, I{AI{INIBSN H. $IIAH and her busband, decedent

HABSHADIffIUAR S. SI{AItr capaized, causing ite paesengers, irrcluding C1aimant,

KAMINIBAN II. SIIAH, and deqedent, HAA,SI{ADICUMAR S. SEA}I to tuU into the

water and causing decedent, HARSI{ADKIJIvIARS. $HAH, to become trapped in

the waterunder the capsizedboat and drown.

I



t2. The passengers, including Claimant I(AMINIBEN H. SIIAII and her

hueband, decedent HARSIIADKLfMAR S. SIIAH, were trapped in the cold deep,

murky water in a pitch-dark, unr",qaeonably nanow, underground tunnel behind one

or llore locked gates, with no ledge, handmils, or anything eLse to hang onto and no

life vests,life preservers, or aay other safety and/or rescue devioes available for

them to pull thegselves out of the water; frr nearly one hour before rescue

personnel arrived.

13. thon inforrnation and belief at all timee herein mentioned, tbe

Respondents, and/or Respondents'agente, eubeidiaries, aseociatea, contracteng,

servants, and/or employees, maintained and/or sharcd reeponsibili,ty for inspectiug,

maintainingr monitoring elrper$ising, andlor overaeeing the premises at the

Loclcport Cave and Uudergound Boat Ride, including all cavos, tunn€ls, wslkways,

cavetrns, and or waterwaye, ae well as the boats and/or vesgels ueed to transport

patrons ofthe Lockport Cave sndUnderground Boat Ride tbmugb the underground

caves, caverns, tunnele, and/or waterwaye.

14. Upon inforr4ation and belie{, at all 'ipes her€in mentioned, the

Respondents, and/orRospondentslagents, subsidiarieg, agsociates, contractors,

senrantg, a.ad/or employeee, owotl gnd/or qhaled a dutyto inspeot, maiutain,

monitoq oversse and/or nupenriee the locfoort Cavre and Uudergmund Boat Ride,

including, but not limited to, aU caves, tunnols, walkways, caverns, andlqr

watertrayen ae well as the boate, cfaffF, and/or vessele ueed to tranaport patrono of

the locJqrort Cave and tlndergmund Bsat Bide, to etrsutre thaf the premiees were

t-



maintatned in a reasonably safe condition and to ensure tha eafety and well-being of

pahone of the Lockport Cave and Undergmund Boat Ride.

15. IJpon infornoation and belief, at all times hereiu mentioned, the

Respondents, and/or Respoudents'agentg, eubeidiaries, as$ociates, contractors,

eervants, and/or employees, owed and/or shaled a duty to irnspect, maintain,

monitor, ovetrsee, and/or supervise f,be activities takiqg place at the Lockport Cave

and Underground Boai Ride, including, but not limited to, transport of patrons by

boat, craft, veesel and/or by other mean6 through the caves, tunnele, walkways;

cavsrns, and/or weterwaJrs of the lockpori Cav-e and Underground Boat Ride, to

ensure that no unreasonably dangerous aetivitieo rrere being couduqted and to

eilsure tlre safety and,well'being of patrans of the Lockport Cave arrd Underground

Boat Fide.

f 6. Respondents breacbed their reepective d,uties by, among other thiags,

failing to eusure thatthe premises at the tockport Cave and Undergrorrnd Boat

Rido, includins but not limited to, all caves, tunnels, walkwayv, eaverns, and/or

waterurays at the Iockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, wer-'e msintairied in a

reasouably eafe conditionifailing to insp.ecL naidain, eversee, monitor, and/or

supervise the prenises, including nll.savss, tururels, walk''rays, cavetng, and/or

waterways at the Loekport Cave and Uudergmund Boat Ride; failing to innpect,

maintam, overgee, monitor, and/orsupervise,the activities at the Locbort Cave and

Underground Boat Ridei failing to ensure f.he safety and well'bei-ug of patrous of the

Lockport Cave and Underground Boat &idei causing aud/or pern:itting

6



unreasonably dangerous conditions at the I,ockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ridei advertising, promoting, and/or marketing the Ioclrport cave and

Undergmund Boat Ride notwithstanding that the pre&iseg, including but not

united to the caves, tunnere, wal&ways, caverru, and, waterways were uot

maintained in a reaeonably safe conditioni adve$isiag, pmmoting, and/or

marketing unrea'onably dangerow aetivities at the Iockport cave and

Undeground Boat Ridei and causi.,g and/or permitting unreagonably dangerous

aqtivities to occur at the tockport cave and underground Boat Ride.

L7' Reapoudents had actual and constarctive noticr of the aforesaid,

unreasonably dangerow conditions and, activities at the Iockpori Cave and.

Underground Boat Ride by virtue o{ among other tbings, a nearly identical incident

occurdng in 2015, where a boatopemted, by the Iockport cave au4 undergrcund

Boat Ride capsized causing the passengors to f;a,ll into the water. [Ipon information

aad beli'lf, Rbepondenta failed to investigate tte incident or take any action.to

pl€vent this {ype of incident from recurri4g.

18. As a direstreeult ofthe foregoing, the decedent, HARSIIADKUIuIAR S.

SIIAH, wa9 trapped unde* water beueatbthe overturned boat, as otherpassengere

frautically climbed on top of the boat in an effort to escaBe fhe water thereby

pushing the boat down halder on top of hinl. caueing.h;m to suffersevet€, esrioue

and permauent physical, psychologioa! and edigtisual i.4iuries, conscious pain and

suffering, pre'impact temor, fear of.i.mpendiqg deatb, and ultimateJy, death by

drowning.

7



19. As a direct result of the foregoing, Clairnant, KAMINIBEN H. SEIAH,

was trapped, shivering inthe cold murkywater for nearly one hour, witb other

passengers c.limbing ovsr her as they attempted to clirnb on top of the boat in an

sffort to escape, and was caus€d to sufbr severe, Berious, and permanent physica!

psyehological, and./or emotional injuries, consciouepain and euffeliqg, and fear of

impending death.

20. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, KAMINIBEN H. SIIAII,

wao physically endangered and caueed to fearfor her oafety and well'being, causing

her to suf,fer severe and permanent psychological injuries and emotional dietrese.

21. As a direct result ofthe foregoiog, Claimant, I(AMINIBEN H. SIIAH, a

bystanderlocatod within the rone of danger at the time the boat capeired,

contemporaneously obeersed her busband of more than 80 yeers falt into the water;

become trapped in the water uudqr the capsized boat and drown, causing her to

suffer gevere and permanent peychological injuries and emotional distsese.

22. As a dir€ct reeult of the foregoing, Claimant, EAMINIBEN I{. SHAII,

wqe deBrivedof the support, sendcee,' companionship, and consortium of her

huaband, HARSI{ADKLIIvIAR S, SIIAH.

'28i,. Ae a direot reeult of the foregoing, ihe aishiluteee of Cisimante'

decedent, HARSHADKTIMAR S. SHAHr were deprived of the eupport, $enrices,

companionehip, and consortium of IIARSII'ADKIII\,iAR S. SIIAI{, and suffered other

pecuniaqy loss.

.8r



24. Upon information and belie{ the June tZ, ZAZI incident, and the

danages sustained by Claimants and Claimante'decedent as a result thereo{, were

directly caused by the negligence, recklessnees, and. carelessness oftbe Reqpondents

and./or Respondents'agents, eubsidiariea, associates, eonf,radors, Bgrvantg, andlor

employees, including, but not Iimited to, ihe following:

a' aeghgently failing to reasonably ir-upect the premises at the loclsport
Carry and Uhderground Boat Ride, including but not liudted to the
underglound cavee, caverns, tunnols, uralkways, aud waterryaysl

b. negligently failing to reasonsbly ruspect, monitor, and/or maintaia the
boats 4nd/or vessels used to carry endlor transportpassengers through
the underground caves, cavem.s, and waterways at the Lockport Cave
and Underyround Boat Ridei

o: negligently faillng to enfrrce buildrng and/or safrW cod.eg rules, and/or
regulations, including but nst limited to reErirements riga.rd.ing edts,
lightiug, electrical wiring and electricity, bandmi]s, life jackets, lik
preserve$,,safotr noSre unes, lifs hook$, emelgency workable radios,
qafeW ring brloys, first aid kits, ea&ff and evaougtion Blang, and Fret
f esponder/emer gency persollel acregs i

d. negligently appmving andlor f"ilios toprevent and/.or remedy
dangemus condibioru in obtrious violation of building and/or safefy
codes, mlec, end/or re$dations, includiug bul not ruitea ta
reguirements regFrdine erits, lightin* electrical wfuing aad. electricity,
handmils, sasty mpo linea, life hooks, emergenoy workable pdios,
safe6r rins buoys; first aid kits safefy and evacuation plans, and first
responder/emelgency personnel accesgi

e' negligently failins to require'qom,Fliqec€ rrrith buildins and/or sa&ry
codes, ruleg and/orregulatioru, includin& but rotlimited to,

I



requkements regarding eritf, hg'hting, etrectrical wiring and electricity,

handrails, safety rope lineo, life hooks, emergency workable radios,

safety ring buoys, fi.rst aid kite safety and evacuation plans, and first

reeponderlemergency personnel acress;

f. negligentJy caunurg and permitting the l.ockport Cave aud

Underground Boat Ride to operate and conf,inue operating

notwithstanding its noncompliance witb building and/or safety codes,

rulee, andlor regulatious!

g. negligently causing and.perqittiry the Loekport Cave arrd

UndergirorrndBoat Rlide to o;rerate aud continue operuting without

reguired and apprcpriate pero:its, inepections, andor saftty measutes;

h. negligently causing and psmitting rru€asonably dangerous oonditione

to exist and continue at tbe Lookpor.t Cave aud. Undegground Boat

Ridei

i. negligently causing ald permittiry, unreasonably daugerous aetivitiee

at the Lockport Cave and Unde4lround Boat&idei

j. negligently eiling to,eqpenrise and/ormoaitor the Loc,ktrrort Cave and

Underground Boat &idei

k. negligently,&iling to eneure that the lockport Ogve and Uaderground

BoatRide employed aufEcient and adequate on'eite pereonnel,

includingpersorurel trainpd ineafoty, firet aid, and/or rescue

proceduree, to essure the eafety ofits patroaol

l. uegligently failing to ensur€ that the boate and/or vessels used to

transport passengers duriag tbe Loekport Oave and Uudergr-ound Boat

Bide were qp.tn date on.inepeetions, meintenancs, an&or repairti

m. negligently failing to eneure that the boate and/or veeeels uged to

f,ransport passengers drrring the l"oe,kport Cave aud Underglound Boat

r0



Ride implem.ented reasonable and ad.equate safety mea€urss, including
but not l.inrited to, Iif,e vests aad/orfloatation devicesi

u. negligeatlv fgiting to monitot, sntrrerviee, and/or inspect the number of
patrons at a timepermitted to be on the boat d.ur:ing the underground

boat ride portion of the Loclqport cave and underground Boat Ride.

o. negligently failing to limit the nuuber of patrons at a time permitted

to be on the boat during tbe undegpound boat ride portion of the

tockport Cave and Underground Boat Rid€ to what wge reagonable

and ea.ft rmder the circunistanceei

p. negligently failing tp easure ingese/egress of patrnns of the Lockport
cave aad undergrouad Boat Ride, iaduding but not linit€d to tlre

underground caveg, tunnole, walkways, caverns, and/or waterwaysi

q. negligentlyfailing to ensure thst the Lockport cave and, underground

Boat Ride implenented reaeqnable and adequate policies and

pmcedureeto ensure ttre eafety and well-being of ite patrons;

r. negligentJy failin€ to eneure thatthe Lockport Cave and Uuderground
Boat Ride imBlemented rcsgonable aad adegqate safsb and first aid
trgirdags forito agents, oontraotore, serv.ants, and/or employeeei

s. negligently advertising, pmmotiug, arid/oq marketing the.Iac,kgrort

cave and underground Boat Ride notq,:it^hstanding that the premides,

includir.rg but not lirnited to tbe cav€E; tunndls, walkwaye, caverns, and
watelways"were not naintained^ in,a rgesonably saft.conditioni snd

t. negtrigontly adrrertieingi promoting, and/or marhetiug unreasonably

dangemus activities at the Lockport Cave and Undergrgund Boat Ride.

11



?5. Ae a dirrt result of the acts and/or omissions described above,

clainrant, I{AMIMBEN H. $HAH, suffer€d eerious and permanent physical,

psychologieal, and emotional injwies, fear of impending impact and death,

conscious pain and su.ffering, negligent infliction of emotional distress, and other

serious, severe, and erten$ive injuries, asd Claimanta will eeek all damages

available at iaw.

26. As a direc't result of the acts and/or omiesions described above,

Clafunant,I{AI\{IMBEN II. SI{A[I, was deprivedof the support, services,

companionehip, and eonsortiuq of her hrrsband" HAESHADIil.IIvIAR S. SIIAH, and

Claimants w"ill seek all damages available at law.

27. Ag a direet reetrlt of tha acte and/or omissiong deecribed above, fhe

decedest, I{A SIIADKUS,IAB S. SIIAiII,,esffered gerious andpermanent phyrical,

psychological, and emotional injuries, fear of inpesding death, conscioue pain and

suffering, and other senow, severe, aud ertensive injurjes and wrongful death, and

Clai'rrants will eeek all da'nagns available at lawl induding, but not limited to,

pecrrniary logs and.loes:sf gervices, supBort and gnridance under lrlew Yo*'s

Wrongful Death Statutp.

28. The firll extent and.ansuqt of dauiages hasnolyet been determined

but includes, and ghall not be lJnited to, all past, preaent, and futrre rtamagee

incurred for:

a. Personal iqjuriesi

b. Coneaious parn and euffering;

n



c. Negligent i''fliction of emotional disfreesi

d. Ioss of services, companionship, guidance, and. support, and

consortiumi

e. Wrong$rl deathi

f. Other speaial and general damageo as they manifest thomselves

subsequent to the date.of this uotice.

29. The insident alleged herein was the direct rcsult of the uegligence,

carelenenesg, and,reqklessnesg, andlorotberculpablecondugf of theReopondente,

and/or3eepondents'agenf,s, subsidiaries, aasociates, contraetof8, servants, dnd/or

employees and others ftr whom the Bergondents aro viicaxiouely and/or

contracf,ually liable, without any negligence on the part of tibe Claimants or

Claimants' decedent.

IJI



wHEnEFoRE, the claimante, DIIARAN I1. SHAFI andMANsI H. sHAH as

Co-Executors of the Estate of HA&SIIADKTII\,1AR S. SIIAII, and Claiuant,

KAMINIBEN H. SI{AH, respectfully requeet that this claim be allowed andpaid by

the Respondents, the olw oF LocKPoRT, couMrY oF NIAOA&A MAGARA

coUhlTY INDUSTRIAL DEVEL0PMENT AQENOY, aqd NtrAGARA coulvry

DEPARX$,{EI.IT OF ECONOMIC DE\EIOPMENI. You are horeby notifi.ed that

unlees it is adjusted and paid within 30 days of the date of presentation to you, the

Claimante intend to commenca an aetion on thig mafter.

DATED: Buffalo, New York
September L,2028

Tetrence M. Oonnols, Esq.,
Christina Al[, Eaton, Esq.,
coNNoBS tt P
Attoweys far Claiaantu
1000 Liblut-y Buiiding
Buffalo, New York L4202
(?ls) 852-5SS8
,tm@nnotsilp.oom
ctIIe(4connorsiln.com

t4



STATE OF NEW YONK
COUNry OF NIAGANA
CITY OF NIAOARA FAIJ.S

YERIflCAMqIg

89..:
l
)
I

DHAnaN H-sr{aH beirrg duly sworn, dep-oses and says that he is a
Claimant in the within acriou, that [e hae read lhe foregpi# N;iid-tEliiru and
knowe the contents thereofi that the saq6 iq.trug- to dep;nentrs own knowledge
exeept as to those matters therei! etated to be alleged irpon information andf,etiel
and as to tboee nnattere the deBonent balievee theni to be true.

. f}'q* Y' fr ,r(..
Dhalan H. Shah

$Ivorn to beforc me thrn
t aayofSeptember, 2023.

r3



IrnFng+TIpr*

STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF NIAGANA
CTTY OF NIAGANA FALLS

)
) E8;;
,}

IVIANSI IL SHAH being duly sworn, deposee and aaya that she is a Claisant
in the wlthin rstion, that she has read the foregoing Notice of Olnir and knowa
the contetrb thereofi that tbe same is hue to deponent'e own knowledge except ae

to thoee matters thereia stated to be alleged upoa isformation and belie{, and aa to
Chose matters the deponent beiieves them to be tnre.

Manei

I

{Foro to before me thig
J- day of $aptenber, 202s,

hiblic

..Jur\*l qrrtrr{
rt rr';tll

1$



STATE OF NDW YORI{
COU},I:IYOF NIAOARA
CITY OF NIAGARA TINI.tS

Notary Public

\ruRIHrca.TroN

gg.r
I
)
)

KalffNIBEll !{. 
gHA&' 

leing duly eworn, deposes and aays rhar sbe is aClaimant in the witJrin aation, that .t r U"r read t&e'foregoing woUep of Claim and
knowe the contents thereofi that the sata is true to aeporr.enfe own knowledgB
except as to those mattere therein etated to be alleged Lpon information ana befet
and as to tbose maf,bera the deponent believee ttrsm'to te true.

Kaniaiben

Syorn to before me this
t dayof Septemben 2028.

1?



STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT : COUNTY OF NIAGARA

NARESH RAMANLAL SHAH, and
SHARMISTHA NARESHKIIMAR SHAH

--<-et

NOfiCE OT'CI"AIM FOR
PERSIO}IAL INJT]RIES

Claimants,

-vs'

THE CITY OF LOCKPORT,
THE COUNTY OF NIAGARA,
NIAGARA COUNITY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, and
NIAGARA COUI\MY DEPARTMENT oF EcoNoiVIIc DEVELOPMEI{T

Respondents.

TO: Laura Miskell Benedict
City of Lockport Corporation Counsel
Lockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Claude A. Joerg
Niagara County Attorney
175 Hawley Street
Lockport, New York L4094

Niagara County Industrial Development Agency
Niagara County Department of Economic Development
6311 Inducon Corporate Drive
Sanborn, New York L4L32

hond deltvefel
RECEIVED

srP 0$ 2023

CITY CLERK OFFICE



' PLEAfIE TAKE NOTICE that Claimants, NARESH RAMANLAL SHAH and

SHARMISTHA NARESHKIIMAR SHAH ("Claimants") give Notice of C1aim against

the CITY OF LOCKPORT, COUNTY OF NIAGARA, NIAGARA COUNTY

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, ANd NIAGARA COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (hereinafter collectively

referred to as 'S,espondents"), and their agents, employees, and others for whom the

Respondents are vicariously and/or contractually liable, for the injuries, damages,

eonscious pain and suffering, pre-impact terror, and negligent infliction of emotional

distress suffered by the Claimants as the result of an incident that occurred on June

L2,2023 at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, Iocated at 5 Gooding

Street in the City of Lockpsrt, County of Niagara, State of New York ('Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride").

In support of this Notice of Claim, the Claimants state the following:

1. The post office address of Claimant NARESH RAI{ANLAL SHAH is

9001 Niagara Falls Boulevard, Niagara Falls, New York I43O4.

2. The post office address of Claimant SHARMISTHA NARESHKUMAR

SHAH is 9001 Niagara Falls Boulevard, Niagara Falls, New York L4304.

2



3. The attorneys for the Claimants are CONNORS LLP (Terrence M.

Connors, Esq. and Christina M. Eaton, Esq. of counsel), 1000 Liberty Building,424

Main Street, Buffalo, New York L4202. The telephone number for CONNORS, LLP

is (zro) 8s2-bbga.

4. Unless otherwise indicated, the facts set forth in this Notice of Claim

are set forth upon information and belief, the sources of which include an

investigation into this matter, interviews with witnesses, and a review of

documents related to this claim.

5. This claim arises out of an incident that occurred on June L2,2028,

during a boat tour taking place in the underground caves, tunnels, walkways,

caverns, and./or waterways at the Lockport Cave and Und.erground Boat Ride.

6. This claim is for the personal injuries, conscious pain and suffering,

and negligent infliction of emotional distress suffered by Claimants, NARESH

RAMANLAL SHAH and SHARMISTHA NARESHKIJMAR SHAH, arising out of

the June !2,2023 incident, which occurred as a result of the acts, omissions, and

negligence of the Respondents and/or their agents, subsidiaries, associates,

contractors, servants, and/or employees.

7. on June L2,2023 at or around 11:20 o.D., during the underground

boat ride portion ofthe tour through the underground caves, tunnels, caverns,

and/or waterways located at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, a boat

carrying claimants, NARESH RAMANLAL SHAH and SHARMISTHA

NARESHKUIVIAR SHAH, capsized, causing its passengers, including NARESH

3



RAMANI"AL SHAH and SHARMISTHA NARESHKUMAR SHAH to fall into the

water.

8. The passengers, including Claimants, NARESH RAMANI"AL SHAH

and SIIARMISTHA NARESHKUMAR SHAH, were trapped in the cold, deep,

murky water in a pitch'dark, unreasonably narrow, underground tunnel behind one

or more locked gates, with no ledge, handrails, or anything else to hang onto and no

life vests, life preservers, or any other safety and/or rescue devices available for

them to pull themselves out of the water, for nearly one hour before rescue

personnel arrived.

9. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and./or Respondents' agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,

servants, and./or employees, maintained and/or shared responsibility for inspecting,

maintaining, monitoring, supervising, and/or overseeing the premises at the

Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, including all caves, tunnels, walkways,

c1verns, and or waterways, as well as the boats and/or vessels used to transport

patrons of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride through the underground

caves, caverns, tunnels, and/or waterways.

10. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and./or Respondents' agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,

servants, and./or employees, owed and/or shared a duty to inspect, maintain,

monitor, oversee and/or supervise the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride,

including, but not limited to, all caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and/or

4



waterways, as well as the boats, crafts, and./or vessels used to transport patrons of

the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, to ensure that the premises were

maintained in a reasonably safe condition and to ensure the safety and well-being of

patrons of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

11. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and./or Respondents' agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,

seruants, and/or employees, owed and/or shared a duty to inspect, maintain,

monitor, oversee, and/or supervise the activities taking place at the Lockport Cave

and Underground Boat Ride, including, but not limited to, transport of patrons by

boat, craft, vessel, and./or by other means through the caves, tunnels, walkways,

caverns, and/or waterways of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, to

ensure that no unreasonably dangerous activities were being conducted and to

ensure the safety and well-being of patrons of the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride.

12. Respondents breached their respective duties by, among other things,

failing to ensure that the premises at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride, including, but not limited to, all caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and/or

waterways, were maintained in a reasonably safe conditioni failing to inspect,

maintain, oversee, monitor, and/or supervise the premises, including all caves,

tunnels, walkways, caverns, and/or waterways at the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ridei failing to inspect, maintain, oversee, monitor, and/or

supervise the activities at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ridei failing to

5



ensure the safety and well-being of patrons of the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ridei causing and/or permitting unreasonably dangerous conditions at the

Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ridei advertising, promoting, and./or

marketing the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride notwithstanding that the

premises, including but not limited to the caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and

waterways were not maintained in a reasonably safe conditioni advertising,

promoting, and./or marketing unreasonably dangerous activities at the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ridei and causing and/or permitting unreasonably

dangerous activities to occur at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

13. Respondents had actual and constructive notice of the aforesaid

unreasonably dangerous,conditions and activities.at the Loskport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride by virtue of, among other things, a nearly identical incident

occurring in 2015, where a boat operated by the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride capsized causing the passengers to fall into the water. Upon information

and belief, Respondents failed to investigate the incident or take any action to

prevent this type of incident from recurring.

L4. Claimants, NARESH RAMANLAL SHAH and SHARMISTHA

NARESHKUiVIAR SHAH, are family members of HARSHADKUMAR S. SHAH,

who was trapped underwater beneath the overturned boat when it capsized,

causing him to suffer serious injuries and death by drowning.

15. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, NARESH RAMANLAL

SHAH, was trapped, shivering in the cold murky water for nearly one hour, with

6



other passengers climbing over him as they attempted to climb on top of the boat in

an effort to escape, and was caused to suffer severe, serious, and permanent

physical, psychological, and./or emotional injuries, conscious pain and suffering, and

fear of impending death.

16. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, NARASH RAMANLAI

SHAH, was physically endangered and caused to fear for his safety and well being,

causing him to suffer severe and permanent psychological injuries and emotional

distress.

t7. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant NARESH RAMANLAL

SHAH, a bystander located within the zone of danger when the boat capsized,

contemporaneously observed his wife's serious injuries and near drowning, and also

contemporaneously observed his family member, I{ARSHADKIJMAR S. SHAH, fall

into the water, become trapped in the water under the capsized boat, and drown, all

of which caused NARESH RAIVIANLAL SHAH to suffer severe and permanent

psychological injuries and emotional distress.

18. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, SHARMISTHA

NARESHKUMAR SHAH, was trapped, shivering in the cold murky water for

nearly one hour, with other passengers climbing over her as they attempted to

climb on top of the boat in an effort to escape, and was caused to suffer seyere,

serious, and permanent physical, psychological, and/or emotional injuries, conscious

pain and suffering, and fear of impending death.

7



19. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, SHARMISTHA

NARESHKUMAR SHAH, was physically endangered and caused to fear for her

safety and well being, causing her to suffer severe and permanent psychological

injuries and emotional distress.

20. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, SHARMISTHA

NARESHKUMAR SHAH, a bystander located within the zone of danger when the

boat capsized, contemporaneously observed her husband's serious injuries and near

drowning, and also contemporaneously observed her family member,

HARSHADKUI\{AR S. SHAH, fall into the water, become trapped in the water

under the capsized boat, and drown, all of which caused SHARMISTHA

NARESH,KIJMAR,SHAH to suffler,severe and pernanentpsychological-injuries"and

emotional distress

2L. As a result of the foregoing, Claimant, NARESH RAMANI"AL SHAH,

was deprived of the services, support, companionship, and consortium of his wife,

SHARMISTHA NARESHKIJMAR SHAH.

22. As a result of the foregoing, Claimant, SHARMISTHA

NARESHKUMAR SHAH, was deprived of the services, support, companionship,

and consortium of her husband, NARESH RAMANLAL SHAH.

23. Upon information and belief, the June t2,2023 incident, and the

damages sustained by Claimants as a result thereof, were directly caused by the

negligence, recklessness, and carelessness ofthe Respondents and/or Respondents'

8



agents' subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and./or employees, including,

but not limited to, the following:

a. negligently failing to reasonably inspect the premises at the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride, including but not limited to the

underground caves, caverns, tunnels, walkways, and waterwaysi

b. negligently failing to reasonably inspect, monitor, and./or maintain the
boats and/or vessels used to carry and./or transport passengers through
the underground caves, caverns, and waterways at the Lockport Cave

and Underground Boat Ridei

c. negligently failing to enforce building and/or safety codes rules, and/or

regulations, including but not limited to requirements regarding exits,

lighting, electrical wiring and electricity, handrails, life jackets, life
preservers, safety rope lines, life hooks, emergency workable radios,

safety ring buoys, first aid kits, safety and evacuation plans, and. first
responder/emergency personnel accessi

d. negligently approving and/or failing to prevent and/or remedy

dangerous conditions in obvious violation of building and/or safety

codes, rules, and/or regulations, including but not limited to
requirements regarding exits, lighting, electrical wiring and electricity,

handrails, safety rope lines, life hooks, emergency workable radios,

safety ring buoys, first aid kits safety and evacuation plans, and first
responder/emergency personnel accessi

e. negligently failing to require compliance with building and/or safety

codes, rules, and./or regulations, including, but not limited to,

requirements regarding exits, lighting, electrical wiring and electricity,

handrails, safety rope lines, life hooks, emergency workable radios,

safety ring buoys, first aid kits safety and evacuation plans, and first
responder/emergency personnel accessi

9



f. negligently causing and permitting the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride to operate and continue operating

notwithstanding its noncompliance with building and/or safety codes,

rules, and/or regulationsi

g. negligently causing and permitting the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride to operate and continue operating without

required and appropriate permits, inspections, and/or safety measuresi

h. negligently causing and permitting unreasonably dangerous conditions

to exist and continue at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride;

i. negligently causing and permitting unreasonabiy dangerous activities

at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ridei

j. negligently failing to supervise and/or monitor the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride;

k. negligently failing to ensure that the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride employed sufficient and adequate on'site personnel,

including personnel trained in safety, first aid, and/or rescue

procedures, to ensure the safety ofits patronsi

L negligently failing to ensure that the boats and/or vessels used to

transport passengers during the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride were up to date on inspections, maintenance, and/or repairsi

m. negligently failing to ensure that the boats and/or vessels used to

transport passengers during the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride implemented reasonable and adequate safety measures, including

but not limited to, life vests and/or floatation devicesi

n. negligently failing to monitor, supervise, and./or inspect the number of

patrons at a time permitted to be on the boat during the underground

boat ride portion of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

10



o. negligently failing to limit the number of patrons at a time permitted

to be on the boat during the underground boat ride portion of the

Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride to what was reasonable

and safe under the circumstancesi

p. negligently failing to ensure ingress/egress of patrons of the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride, including but not limited to the

underground caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and/or waterwaysi

q. negligently failing to ensure that the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride implemented reasonable and adequate policies and

procedures to ensure the safety and well-being of its patronsi

r. negligently failing to ensure that the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride implemented reasonable and adequate safety and first aid

trainings for its agents, contractors, servants, and./or employeesi

s. negligently advertising, promoting, and/or marketing the Lockport

Cave and Undergtound Boat Ride notwithstanding that the premises,

including but not limited to the caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and

waterways were not maintained in a reasonably safe conditioni and

t. negligently advertising, promoting, and/or marketing unreasonably

dangerous activities at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

24. As a direct result of the acts and/or omissions described above,

Claimant, NARESH RAMANI"AL SHAH, suffered serious and permanent physical,

psychological, and emotional injuries, fear of impending impact and death,

conscious pain and suffering, negligent infliction of emotional distress, and other

serious, severe, and extensive injuries, and Claimants will seek all damages

available at law.

LL



25. As a direct result of the acts and/or omissions described above,

Claimant, NARESH RAMANLAL SHAH, was deprived of the support, services,

companionship, and consortium of his wife, SHARMISTHA NARESHKUMAR

SHAH, and Claimants will seek all damages available at law.

26. As a direct result of the acts and/or omissions described above,

Claimant, SHARMISTHA NARESHKUIVIAR SHAH, suffered serious and

permanent physical, psychological, and emotional injuries, fear of impending impact

and death, conscious pain and suffering, negligent infliction of emotional distress,

and other serious, severe, and extensive injuries, and Claimants will seek all

damages available at law.

27. As a direct result of the acts and/or omissions described above,

Claimant, SHARMISTHA NARESHKUMAR SHAH, was deprived of the support,

services, companionship, and consortium of her husband, NARESH RAMANLAL

SHAH, and Claimants will seek all damages available at law.

28. The full extent and amount of damages have not yet been determined

but include and shall not be limited to all past, present, and future damages

incurred for the following:

a. Pain and sufferingi

b. Negligent infliction of emotional distressi

c. Personal injuriesi

d. Loss of seryices, companionship, support, and consortiumi

t2



e. Other special and general damages as they manifest themselves

subsequent to the date of this notice.

29. The incident alleged herein was the direct result of the negligence,

carelessness, recklessness, and/or other culpable conduct ofthe Respondents and/or

Respondents'agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and/or

employees and others for whom the Respondents are vicariously and/or

contractually liable, without any negligence on the part of the Claimants.

13



WHEREFORE, the Claimants, NARESH RAMANLAL SHAH and

SHARMISTHA NARESHKUMAR SHAH, respectfully request that this claim be

allowed and paid by the Respondents, the CITY OF LOCKPORT, COIJNTY OF

NIAGARA, NIAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCE ANd

NIAGARA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. You are

hereby notified that unless it is adjusted and paid within 30 days of the date of

presentation to you, the Claimants intend to commence an action on this matter.

DATED: Buffalo, New York
September 

-,2023

Terrence IVI. Connors, Esq.,
Christina M. Eaton, Esq.,
CONNORS LLP
Attorneys for CI aimants
1000 Liberty Building
Buffalo, New York L4202
(zro) 8bz-bbag
tmc@connorsllp.com
cme@connorsllp.com

t4



STATE OF N&W YORK
COUNTY OF NIAGARA
CITY OF NIAGARA FALLS

\TS,RIFICAUON

$$,i
)
,,

)

NARffH BAIVIANI"AL SIIAII, berqg duly sworn, deposes and says that he is
a Claimant in the $rithin action, that he has reaA the foregoing Notico of CUi- *a
knowe &e contents thereof; tbat the Bame is hrue to d,eponenf,s own knowledge
ercept as to those matterrs therein etated to be alleged rrpon information andislief,
and as to those matters the deponent believee thed to bl true.

NareshRamanlal shah

qfotrn to before me this
J-d"V of September, 2028.

otary Pubtric

l0t*

'11$



\&RrI'ICATTON

STATE OF NEW YORI{
COU}TTY OF'NIAGARA
CITY OI'MAGARA FALLS

SHABI\{IS$IA }IAA&SHKUIvIAR $HAH, beins duly sworn, deposes aud

says that ehe is a Ctaimant in the within action, that she has read tbe for,egoing

Notice of Clainr agfl knows the contents tbereoff that the same is true to deponenf,e

own knowledge except as to those nattere therein stated to b9 a[eged upon

information and beti;t and as to those matters the deponent believes them to be

true.

? ., q. qL"ih
Sharmistha Nareshkumar Shah

Su,o,rn to before me this
Je.v of September, 2028.

sg.i
)
I
)

1S



STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT : COUNTY oF NIAGARA

CHRISTINE THOMAS,

NOTICE Otr'CLAIM FOA,
PERSOT{AI INJURTES

Claimant,

'vs-

THE CITY OF LOCKPORT,
THE COUNTY OF NIAGARA,
NIAGARA COUNTY INDUST&IAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, and
NIAGARA couMrY DEPAR1T\{EI\IT oF EcoNoMIc DEYELOPMENT

Respondents.

TO: Laura Miskell Benedict
City of Lockport Corporation Counsel
Lockport Municip al Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York L4Ag4

C1aude A. Joerg
Niagara County Attorney
175 Hawley Street
Lockport, New York L4Og4

Niagara County Industrial Development Agency
Niagara County Department of Economic Development
6811 Inducon Corporate Drive
Sanborn, New York 14182

hond delrvered
RECEIVED

tsrP 06 2023

CIW CLERK OFFICE



PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Ciaimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS, gives

Notice of Claim against the CITY OF LOCKPORT, COUNI|Y OF MAGARA,

NiAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMEI\T AGENCY, ANd NIAGARA

COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMEI\i1I (hereina{ter

collectively referred to as "Respond.ents"), and their agents, employees, and others

for whom the Respondents are vicariously and/or contractually liable, for the

injuries, damages, conscious pain and suffering, ple'impact terror, and negligent

infliction of emotional distress suffered by the Olaimant as the result of an incident

that occurred on June L2,2023 at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride,

located at 6 Gooding Stroet in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara, State of New

York ('I-,ockport Cave and Underground. Boat Ride').

In support of this Notice of Claim, the Claimant states the following:

1. The post office address of Claimant CHRISTINE THOMAS is2772

Lower Mountain Road, Ransomville, New York 14181.

2. The attorneys for the Claimant are FANIZZI & BARR, P.C. (Paul K.

Barr, Esq, of counseD, ?311 Niagara Falls Boulevard, Niagara Falls, New York

'J.43;04, telephone number (ZfA) 284-8888; and CONNOAS LLP (Terrence M.

Connors, Esq. and Christina M. Eaton, Esq. of counsel), 1000 Liberty Building, 424

Main Street, Buffalo, New York L4202, (ZfA) 862'5638.

2



3. Unless otherwise indicated, the facts set forth in this Notice of Claim

ale set forth upon information and beliefl the sources of which include an

investigation into this matter, interviews with witnesses, and a review of

documents related to this claim.

4. This claim alises out of an incident that occurred on June L2,2A23,

during a boat tour taking place in the underground caves, tunnels, walkways,

caverns, and/ot waterways at the Lonkport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

5. This claim is for the personal injuries, conscious pain and suffering,

and negligent infliction of emotional distrees suffered by Claimant, CHRISTINE

THOMAS, arising out of the June 12,2023 incident, which occurred as a result of

the acts, omissions, and negligence of the Reepondents and"/or their agents,

subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and"/or employees.

6. At the tine of the subject incident, Claimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS,

was working as a tour guide for Destination Niagara USA.

7. On June 12,2A28 at or around. 1L:20 4.r1., during the underground

boat ride portion ofthe tour through tJre underground caves, tunnels, caverns,

and/or waterways located at the L,ockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, a boat

carrying claimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS, capsized, causing its passengers,

including CHRISTINE THOMAS to fall into the water.

8. The passengers, including Claimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS, were

trapped in the cold, deep, mulky water! in a pitch-dark, unreasonably narrow,

underground tunnel behind one or mole locked gates, with no ledge, handrails, or

3



anything else to hang onto and no life vests, life preservers, or any other safety

and/or l'escue devices available for them to pull themselves out of the water, for

nearly one hour before rescue personnel arrived.

9. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and/or Respondents'agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,

servants, and./or employees, maintained and/or shared responsibility for inspecting,

maintaining monitoring, supervising, and"/or overseeing the premises at the

Inckport Cave and Und.erground Boat Ride, induding all caves, tunnels, walkways,

caverns, and or waterways, as well as the boats and/or vessels used to transport

patrons of the Lockport Cave and Underg:'ound Boat Ride through the underground

caves, caverns, tunnels, and/or.waterway6.

10. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and/or Respondents'agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,

servants, andlor employees, owed and/or shared a duty to inspect, maintain,

monitor, oversee and/or superviee the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride,

includ.ing, but not limited to, all caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and/or

waterways, as well as the boats, crafts, and/or veesels used to transport patrons of

the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, to ensure tbat the premises .rrere

maintained in a reasonably safe condition and to ensure the safety and well'being of

patrons, occupants, users, riders, and/or other vieitors of the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride.

4



11. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and/or Respondents' agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,

servants, and/or employees, owed andlor shared a duty to inspect, maintain,

monitor, oversee, and/or supervise the activities taking place at the Lockport Cave

and Undergrnund Boat Ride, including, but not limited to, transport of patrons by

boat, craft, vessel, and./or by other means through the caves, tunnels, walkways,

cavel'ns, andior waterways of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride, to

ensul'e that no umeasonably dangBrous activities were being conducted and to

ensure the safety and well'being of patrons occupants, users, ridere, and/or other

visitors of the Lockport Cave aird Underground Boat Ride.

L2, Respondents breached their respectivo duties by, among other things,

failing to ensure that the premises at the Lockport Cave and Undergruund Boat

Ride, including, but not limited to, all caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and/or

waterways, were maintaiaed. in a reasonably safe conditioni failing to inspect,

maintain, oversee, monitor, and-/or superviee the premises, including all caves,

tunnels, walkways, caverrur, and/or waterways at the Iockport cave and

Uuderground Boat Ridei failing to inspect, maintain, oversee, monitor, and/or

superviee the activities at the l,ockport Cave and Underground Boat Ridei failing to

ensure the safety and well'being of patrons, occupants, users, riders, and/or other

visitors of the lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ridei causing and/or

permitting unreasonably dangerous cond.itions at the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ridei advertisiug, promoting, and/or marketing the Lockport

5



Cave and Underground Boat Ride notwithstanding that the premises, including but

not limited to the caves, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and waterways wet€ not

maintained in a reasonably safe sonditioni advertising, promoting, and/or

marketing unleasonably dangerous activities at the Irockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ridei and causing andl/or permitting unreasonably dangerous

activities to occul at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

13, Respondents had actual and constructive notice of the aforesaid

unreasonably dangerous conditions and activities at the Lockport Cave and

Und.erground Boat Ride by virtue o{, among other thingu, a nearly identical incident

occurring in 2016, where a boat operated by the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride.capsized causing the passengers to fall into the lrater, Upon information

and belief, Respondents failed to investigate the incident or take any action to

prevent this type of incident from recurring.

L4. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, CIIRISTINE TIIOIvIAS,

was trapped, shivering in the cold mwky water for nearly one hour, with other

passengere climbing over and holding her beneath the surface of the water as they

attempted to climb on top of the boat in an effort to escape, causing lr/ater to fill her

lungs and wae caused to suffer severe, serious, and permanent phyeical injuries,

psychologrcal, and/or emotional injuries, conscioue paitt and suffering, and fear of

impending death.

6



15. As a direct result of the foregoing, C1aimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS,

was caused to suffel economis damages including, but not limited to, medical

expenses and lost wages.

16. As a direct result of the foregoing, Claimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS,

was physically endangered and caused to fear for her safety and well being, causing

her to suffer severe and permanent psychological injuries and emotional distress.

t7 . upon information and belie{ the June Lz, zaze incident, and the

damages sustained by Claimant as a result ther.eo{ were dir.ectly caused by the

negligence, recklessness, and carelessness ofthe Respondents and/or Respondents'

agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and./or employees, including,

but not limited to, the following:

a. negligently failing to reasonably inspect the premiseg at the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride, including but not limited to the

undergtound caves, caverns, tunnels, walkways, and waterwaysi

b. negligently failing to reasonably inspect, monito& and/or maintain the

boats andlor vessels used to carry and/or transport passengers through

tho underground caves, caverns, and waterways at the Lockport Cave

and Underground Boat Ridei

c. negligently failing to enforce building and/or safety codes rules, aud/or

regulations, including but not limited to requir.ements regarding exits,

Iighting, eleetrical wiring and electricity, handrails, life jackets, life

preser:vero, safety rope lines, life hooks, emergency workable radios,

' safety ring buoys, first aid kits, safety and evacuation plans, and first
responder/emergency personnel accessi

7



d. negligently approving and/or failing to prevent and/or remedy

dangerous conditions in obvious violation of buildine and/or safety

codes, rules, and/or regulations, including but not limited to

requilements regarding exits, lighting, electrical wiling and electricity,

handrails, safety lope lines, life hooks, emelgency workable radios,

safety ring buoye, first aid kits safety and evacuation plans, and fu'st

responder/emergency personnel aceessi

e. negligently failing to require compliance with building and/or safety

cod.es, rules, and/or regulations, including, but not limited to,

requirements regarding exits, lighting, electrical wiring and electrici$,

handrails, saiety mpo lines, life hooks, emergency workable radios,

safety ring buoye, fi.rst aid kits eafeff and evacuation plans, and first

responder/emergency personnel accessi

f. negligently causing and permitting the loqkport Cave aqd

Underground. Boat Ride to oporate and continue operating

notwithstanding its noncompliance with building and/or safety codes,

rules, and./or regulationsi

g. negligently causing and permitting the Inckport Cave and

Undergrouud Boat Ride to operate and continue operatingwithout

required and appropriate permits, inspections, and/or safety measuresi

h. negligently causing and permitting urueasonably dangerous conditions

to exist and continue at the lockport Cave and Undergtound Boat

Ridei

i. negligently caueiag and permitting unreasonably dangerous activities

at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ridei

j. negligently failing to supervise and/or monitor the Lockport Cave and

Undergvound Boat Ridei

8



k. negligently failing to ensure that the Iockport Cave and^ Underground

Boat Ride employed euffi.cient and adoquate on-site pereonnel,

including personnel trained in safety, first aid, and/or rescue

procedures, to ensure the safety ofits patronsi

l. negligently failing to ensure that the boats and/or vessele used to

transport passengers during the Lockport Cave and underground Boat

Ride were up to date on inspections, maintenan@, and/or repairsi

m. negligently failing to ensure that the boats and/or vessels used to

transpori pasgengers during the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride implementod reasonable and adequato safety measures, including

but not linited to, life vests an#or floatation devicesi

n. negligently faiti4g to monitor, supewiee, and/or inspect the number of
patrons at a time permitted to be on the boat during the underground

boat ride portion of the rockport cave and underground Boat Ride.

o. negligently failing to limit the number of patrons at a time permitted

to be on the boat during the underground boat ride portion of the

Iockport Cave and underground Boat Ride to what was reasonable

and safe under the circumetanceei

p. negligently failing to ensure ingress/egrees of patrons, occupants,

users, riders, and/or other visitors of the [ockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride, including but not limited to the underground

caves, tunnels, walkways, csverns, andlor waterwaysi

q. negligently failiag to ensune that tbe Iockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride implemented reasonable and adequate policies and

proceduree to engure the safety and well-being of its patrons

occupants, users, riders, and/or other visitorei

9



r. negligently failing to ensure that the Lockport Cave and. Underground

Boat Ride implemented reasonablo and adequate safety and first aid

trainings for its agents, contractors, servants, and/or employeesi

s. negligently ad.vertising, promoting, and/or marketing the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride notwithstanding that the premises,

including but not limited to the caves, tunnels, walkways, cavetns, and

waterways were not maintained in a reasonably safe conditioni and

t. ne gligently advertising, promoting, and/or marketing unreasonably

dangerous activities at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

18. As a direct reeult of the acts and/or omissions de$cribed above,

Claimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS, suffered serious and permanent physical,

psychological, and emotional injuries, fear of impending impact and death,

conscious pain and suffering, negligsnt infl,iction of emotional fistress, and. other

serious, severe, and extensive injuries, and Claimant will seek all damages

available at law.

19. The full extent and amount of damages have not yet been determined

but include and shall not be limited to all past, present, and future damages

inourred for the following:

a. Pain and sufferingi

b. Negligent infliction of emotional dietressi

c. Fersonal i4juriesi

d. Medical Expensesi

e. Lost wagesi

10



t. Other special and general damages as they manifest themselves

subsequent to the date of thie notice.

20. The incident alleged herein was the direct reeult of the negligence,

carelessness, recklessness, and/or other culpable conduct of the Respondents and/or

Respondents'agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors, servants, and/or

smployees and others for whom the Respondents are vicariously and/or

contractually liable, without any negligence on the part of the Clqimant.

11



WHEREFOR$, the Claimant, CHRISTINE THOMAS, respectfully requests

that this claim be allowed and paid by the Respondents, the CITY OF LOCKPORT,

COUNTY OF NIAGARA, MAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAT DEVELOPMENT

AGENCY, and NIAGARA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT. You are hereby notified that unless it is adjusted and paid within

30 days of the date of presentation to you the Claimant intends to commence arr

action on this matter.

DATED: Buffalo. New York
septembe, ffzoze

PaulK. Barr, Esq.
FANIZfi & BAR& P.C.
Attorneys far Claimant
?811 Niagara Falls Boulevard
Niagara Falls, New York 14804
(no) 284'8888
n b arr@f4r.riazi andB arr. com

Terrence M. Connors, Esq.,
Christina M. Eaton, Esq.,
CONNORS tLP
Attorneys for Claimant
1000 Liberty Building
Bufhlo, New York L4202
(zre) BFz-6689
tm@conqorslln.com
cme@onngrslh.com

T2



VERIFICATION

STATE OFNEWYORK )
COUNTY OF NIAGARA ) SS.:
VILI"AGE OF RANSOMVILLE )

OHRISTINE THOMAS, being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is a
claimant in the within action, that she has read the foregoing Notice of Claim and
knowe the contents thereoff that the same is true to deponent's own knowled,ge
except as to those matters therein stated to be alleged upon information and belief,
and as to those matters the deponent believes them to be true.

Christine

S$'orn to before me this
t[ auy of September, 2028.

Kelly L. Colucci
Com{eelo1y of D6eds, Oty of Ntagare fu,

C.rt. Fllod ln Nlagsra Counrv 
-

Commt$lon Expirm on t2-gl, Z62b_

13



t

SfATU OF NEW YORK
SUPREMS COURT : COU}UY CIF NIAGARA

COLLEEN GRAY,

NOflCE Qf'grA44 F'OR
EE&SONAI,INJUruEF

Claimant,

-vs'

TITE CIfY OF LOCKPORT,
TIIE COUN-TY OF NIAGARA,
NIAGA&A COUNfY IIIIDUSTBIAL DE\IELOPMEI{I AGENCY, aud.
NIAGARA COUNTY DEPARN\{ENT OF ECoNoMIc DWELOPIUENT

Rbqlondents"

TO: Laura Miske[ Benedict
CiW of Lockport Corporation Oounsel
Inckp ort, Muni-crp * Building
One Incks Plaza
Loc,$ort, New York 14094

Claude A Joerg
Niagnra County ..{ttouey
175 lXawley Street
Loc.fr11ort, Nsw Yark 14094

Niagara County Industrial Development Agency
Niagara Couaty Degartnont of Econoniic Development
6811 Inducon Coqporate Drive
$anbor-n, I.Iew Yofk L{Lez

hcrnd delVerlrd
RECEIVED

srP 002023

CITY CLERK OFFICE



PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Olaimant, COLLEEN GRAY, givos Notice of

Claim against the CITY OF LOCKPORT, COUbilfY OF NIAGARA, NIAGARA

COUNTY INDUSTRIAT DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, and NIAGARA COUbflrY

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIO DEVELOPMEI.{T (hereinafter collectively

refeued to as "Respondents'), and their agents, employees, and" otbers for whom the

Respondents ale vicariously and/or contractually liable, for: the injuries, damages,

conscious pain and suffering, prc'impact temor, and negligent infliction of emotional

dietress suffered. by the Clai'nante as the result of an incident tbat octurted, on June

12,2028 at the Lockport Cave anil Underground Boat Ride, located at 5 Gooding

Street in the City of Lockport, Coun$'of Niagara, State of New York ('Tnckport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride).

In support of this Notice of Olaim, the Claimant etateg the following;

L. The postoffrce addless of Clainant COLLEEN GRAY i6 285

Cregtmount Avenue, Tonawanda, New York L4150.

' 2;. The attorneye for ths Claimant are FANIZfl & B.ARR, P.C. Oaul K.

Barr, Esq. of counse|, ?81L Niagara Falle Boulevard, Niagarq Falls, New York

L43a4, telephone number (fre) 984'8888i and CONNORS LI:P (Terrence M,

Conuors, Eeq. and Christlna M, Eaton, Esq, of counsel), 1000 l,iber$ Buildingi 424

MainStr.eet, Burralo, New York 142012, (ZfA) S63'6633,

2



3. Unless otherwise indicated, the facts set forth in this Notice of Claim

are set forth upon information and belief, the sourceg of which include an

investigation into this matter, interviews with witnesees, &nd a review of

documents related to this claim.

4. Thie daim ariees out of an incident that occurred on June !2, 2028,

during a boat tour taking place in the undergrorud. cav,es, tunnels, walkways,

caverns, and/or waterways at'the l-,ockport Oave and Undergrouud Boat Ride.

6. Thie claim is for the personal injuries, oonscious pain and suffering,

and negligent infliction of emotional dietrese auf,fered by Olaimant, COLLESN

GRAY, arising out of tho June L2,2;fr28 incident, which occurred as a reeult of the

acts, omissions; and negligence of the Respondents,and/or their agents, subsidiaries,

asgociates, contraators, eervants, and/or employees.

6. At the time of the sqbject incident, Glaimaut, COLLEEN GRAY, was

lawfully on the prsmises of the Lockport eave aud Uudergrounil Boat ride wbiile

working ae a tour $dde for Deefinq.tiEu Niagura USA,

7. On Jutre L2,91028 at or around 11i20 a.nn., during the underground

bost ride portiop of the tour through tle undergmusd cey€F, tqnnpls; carrerns,

and/or waterways located atthe l;oc.lport Cave and Underg6ound Boat Rirle, a boat

carrying Claimant, COITLEEN GAAY, capsizo{ eausing its passongers, includiug

C0T.LE$N GRAY to falt into the waterand. causlng Clainqant, COLLEEN GRAY, to

etrike her head and. face:befors,entbrifig the wetsri

3



8. The passengerg, including Claimant, COLLEEN GRAY, were trapped

in the cold, deep, murly water in a pitch'dark, unreasonably narrow, und.erground

tunnel behind one or more locked gates, with no led.ge, handrails, or anything else

to hang onto and no life vests, Ii[e preservers, or any other safety and/or tescue

devices available for them to pull tbemselveq oqt of the watet, for nearly one'bour

before rescue pelsonnel arrived.

L Upon information and belief, at alltimes herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and/or Bespoudents: agente, subsid.iarie$, aseociates, contractors,

serants, andlor employees, naintatned and/or shartd responsibility for inepecting,

maintaining, nonitoring, eupervising, and/or overseeing the premieee at the

Lockport Cave and Under$qtrnd Boat Ride, including all caves, tunnels, walkwaye,

caverns, and or waterwaSi.s, a.s well as the boate and/or vessels used to hansport

paf,rons of the Lockport Oave and Underground. Boat Ride through the underground

caves, caverng, tunnels, and/or waterwaye

10. Upon informatlsn and.belief, at.all times herein"mentioned, the

Reepondents, and/or Respondentst agentS, eubsidiariee, associatea, contracbors,

servants; and/or emploS'eee, owed aad/or shared a duty to inspect, maintain,

monitor, oversee and/or eupervjg€ the lroakport Cave and Undergroqad. Boat Ride,

including, but not linited tsi all ca.v€s'tunnele, walkways, caverns, qad/or

waterwaye, as well as tle boat€i erafts,, and/or vessels usod to transport patrons of

the tockport Cave and Undergroqnd Boat Ride, to ensure that the pre'n'ibes were

mgintained in a.reaeonably safe aoudition aud fo ersure the eafeff and well'being of

4



patrons, occupants, users, riders, and./or other visitore of the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride.

1L. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and"lor Respondentsf agents, subsid.iaries, associates, contractors,

selanf,H, and/or employeos, owed end/or sbared. a duty to inspeat, maintain,

monitor, ovorsee, aqd^/or superviee the aetivities taking place at ths lockport Cave

and Undergmund Boat Ride, including, butnot limited to, transport of patmns by

boat, craft, vessel, artd/or by other me&ng thlough the caves, trrnnels, wallwaye,

caverns, and/or watenrays of the Lockport Cave and Und,erground Boat Ride, to

ensure that no unreasonably dangerous activities $'ere being eonducted and to

ensure the eafety and well'beingof patrons occupants, us€rs, riders, and/or other

visitors of the Lockport Cave and. Underground Boat Ride.

L2. Respondente breaohed theii respective duties by, among other thingn,

&iliugto 6nsure that the prenr.ises at the Loclqport Cave, and Undergfouud Boat

Ride, induding but not limited h, il oav€s, tunnels, welkwaye, caVorn8; aud/or

waterways, wete naintained in a reaeonably eafe conditioa; fniiing to inspsct,

maintain,. overeee, nonitor, aneUor supervise the Brenises, induding all canes,

tuunelq wall:ways, cav.ernsr and/orwaterways at fhe trookport Cave and

Underground Eoat Ridei eiling to ihspect, naintain, overe€e, monitor, .andlor

superviee the astivities at the IrodBort Cave and Underglound Boat Ridei failing to

ensure the eafety and woll'being of patrops, occupants, u6ors, ridere, and/or other

vieitgrs of fhe t oqkport Caye and Undergrggpd Boet Ri{ei causing and/or

5



permitting unreasonably d.angerrous csnditions at the Lockport Cave and

Underglound Boat Ridei advertisirg, promoting, and/or marketiug the Iockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride notsrithstanding that the premises, including but

not limited to the caves, tunnels; walkways, caverns, and waterways were not

maintained in a reasoaably sefe conditio$ advertising, promoting, and/or

marketing unleasonab[y dangerous actiyities at the Lochport Cave and

Underground Baat Ridei and caueing and/or permitting unreasonably dangerous

activitiee to occur at the Lockport Cave and Undergtound Boat Ride,

18. Respondents had astual and constructive notice of the afore-said

unreasonably dangemus conditious and activities atthe Iockport Cave and^

Underground Boat Ride by virtue of, anong otherthings, a noarly identical incident

oceurringin 2016, where a b,oatoperated. by the Lockporf Cave and Undeuground

Boat Ride capoized caueing the paeseugern to fall into the water. UBon iriformation

and belief, Respoudents failed to investigate the incideut or take any action to

prevent this type sf ineidont from recuning.

L4. As a direct result of the foregoibg, Claimant, COLLEEN GR,AY, was

trapped, ehivering inthe cold murL,y rqater for nearly one hour, wit& other

passengprs climbing over and hotding her beneath the surface of the water as they

attempted to. climb on top of the bsat in an effort to eseape caueing her to inhale

water into her luugs, and was caused to sufrer sevste, serious, and permanent

phyeical iqiuries fincluding, but nst limihd to, aspiration pneumonia aud iqiuries to

6



her head, face, ribs, arm, and knees), psychological, and/or emotional injuries,

conscious pain and suffering, and fear of irnFenrting death.

15. As a direct result of the foregoing, claimant, coLtEEN GRAy, was

caused to suffer economic damages including, but not linited to, nedical expenses

aud.lost wages.

16. Ae a direct reeult of the foregoing, clqimant, C0LLEEN GRAy, was

phyeically endangar€d and caqs€d to fear for her safety and well berng, causing her

to guffer Eev€re and petmanent psychological injuries and emotional distress.

t7. Upon infonaatio.n and be[e4 the June L2, 20gg incidenti and tbe

damageB sustained by Claimants'as a result thereof, were directly caueed by the

negligence, teaklessiiess, and careless4ese of the Respondents alrd/or Rospondents'

agents; subeidiaries, assosiatgs, cohtractore, servante, and/or enployees, including

but not limited to, the following:

a' negligently failiug to reasonably insBect the premises at the Inckport
Cave and Undergrouud Boat Ride, includingbut not Usit€d to the

underground cavee, c&ver$sf tunnels; walkways, and waterwaysi

b. negligentlyfalliag tn reaeonably inspect, monitgt, ancUor maintain the

boats and./or veseels used to carry and/or traneport passengers through

the updergrorEd caves, caverbc, aqd watenpays at ttre Lockport Cave

and Undergro und Boat:.Ridei

c. negligeatJy failing to enfurce building and/or safety codee rules, and/ol

regulations, iacluding but not limited to requirements regarding exits,

lighfing, elesb.fical wiring and eleahioity, hahdrails, life jackets, life

presery€rg, safety rope lines, Iife hookgl emorgQnof, workable radios,

7



safety ring buoys, first aid kite, safety and evacuation plans, and first

re$ponder/emergency personnel accesg;

d. negligently approving and/or failing to prevent andlor remedy

d.angerous conditions in obvious violation of building and/or safety

codes, rules, and/or regulations, including but not limited to

requirements regarding exits, Iighting, elsctncal wiiing and electricity,

handrails, s4fety rope lines, life hooks, emelgency workable t'adios,

safety ringbuoys, fiist aid kits safety an{ evacuation plans, and frrst

responderlemergency personnel acsess;

e. negligently failing to require mmpliance with building and/or safety

aodes, rules, and/or regulationsn indudhg, but not limiteil tq,

requ.irements regarding exits, lighting, electlical wiring and electricity,

han&ails, safety xope lines, life hooks, emergency workable radios,

safety ringbuoys, fir-st aid kits safety and evacuahon plans, and fiqet

reeponder/em€rgency personnel accesE;

f. negligently causing andpermittiugthe Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ride to operate and contihue operating

notudthqtanditg its noncompliance' wifh buildine and/or safety codes,

rules, andlor re gulationsi

g, nesligpntllr og,uging0nd permitting tha Lockport Cave and

Underground Boa.t Ride to operate and continue operating without

roquired and appropriate permite, ihspegtioas, and/or safety measuresi

b. negligegtJy eausirrg, eqd peruoitting wrroaoonably dangerous conditions

to exist and. continue atthe,IockB,ort Cave apid Underground Boat

B.idei

i. negligently caueing and permitting uffeasonably dangerous activities

at the l,ogkp.ort Cave anil Uaderground Boat Bidei

I



j' negligently failing to supervise and/or monitor the Lockport Cave and

Underground Boat Ridei

k. negligently failing to ensure that f,he Lockport cave and und.erpound

Eoat fi.ide employed sufficient and adequate ou.site porsonner,

inclutling personnel trained in safoty, first aid, andlor rsscue

pmcedures, to eneure tbe safety of its patronsi

1. negligently failiris to eneure that the boats and/or veseels used to

transportpassengers during the Lcckport.Cave and Underground. Boat

Bide were up to date on inspections, maiutenance, and/or repairsi

"r. negiligently failing to easure that the boate and/or rresgels used to

traneport passeng€m durinethe Ine$ort Oave and underginund Boat

Ride implemented reasonable and adequate safety rneasubes, including

but not limited to, life vests andlor floatation devicesi

n. negligently failiugto monitor, gupenrise, and./orinapeet the number of
patcone at a time permitted to be on the boat during the underground

boat ride portion of the Lookport Cavo and Underground Boat Ride.

o. negligonlly failinc to liuit the number of patrons at a time pernitted

to be on the boat dqriug the undergrorrad boat ride portiou of the

Lockport Cave and underground Boat Ride to wlat was reasonable

and eafe urider the circumstanoesi

p. neglignntly fqiline to engure irngross/egress of patrone, oecullants,

userg, rid.ers, and/or other visitors of the Lockport Cave and

Undergrouqd Boat Ride, iududing b,ut not lieited to.the undergtound

caves, tunnele, wallnilaye, cavsrng, andlor water"waysi

q. neetrkgnttry feiliry to ensule that the, Lockport Cave and Underground

Bsat Ride i+Flementsd reaeonable and adequate policies and

pmceduree to eneule f,he safrty and well-beine of its pahons

occupantsi rrsersi riders, andlbr other visitorei

I



r. negligently failing to ensure that the Inckport Cave and Und.erground

Boat Ride implemeuted reasonable and adequate safety and first aid

trainingr for itg agpnts, contractors; sewante, and/or employeesi

s. negligently advertieing, promoting, and/or marketing the Lockport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride notwithstanding that the premises,

includ.ing but not timited to the caves, tunuels, walkways, cavernB, and

tryaterways wete not maintained in a reaeonably s.afe conditioni and

t. negligently advertising, promoting, and/or marketing unreasonably

dangerous activities at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride'

18. Ae a direct yesult of the acts and/or onissipns described above,

Claimant, COTLAEN GBAY, suffered serisus and pgrmanent physical,

psychological, and enaotional injuties, fear of im;ending ippact and death,

conscious pain and guffering nogligent infliction of Bmotional distress,'and other

gerious, severe, arid. extensive i:ajruies, and Claimaat wili eeek all damages

availnble at law.

19. The fult exteut and anoult of damages have not yetbeen determined

but include and shall not be lindted to all paet pregent, and future damages

incurred for the following;

a. Pai'r andsuflerih'gi

b. Negligent infiiation sf emotional dietresei

c. Personal injuriesi

d. Medical Expenseai

e. Lost wageei

10



f. Other special and,general damagee as they mairifest themselves

subsequent.to the date of this notico.

90. The incident alleged herein was ths direct $esult of the negligeuoe,

carelegsness, recklessness, and/or otherculpable conduet of.the Reepondents and/or

Reapondents'agents, subsidiariee, aesosiatss, csntractors, sewante, and/or

employees,and others for whom the neepondents are vicariously and/or

conhactually liable, without an}r nsgliggnc€ on the pgrt of the Claimant.

tt



WI{ER&FORE, the Clqinant, COLLEEN GRAY, reepectilly regueets that

this claim be allowed and paid by the Bespondonts, the CITY OF LOCKPORT,

COUNTY OF NIAGARA, NIAGARA COUNIY INDUSTRI.AT DEVSLOPMSNT

AGENCY, and NIAGARA COUNTY DEPARIIVIENT OF ECONOMIC

DEVETOPMENT. You are hereby nstified that unlese it is adjusted andpaiil

within 30 daye sf the date,ofBresentation to you, the Claimant intends to commsnce

an action on thie uatter,

DATED: Buffalo. New Yolk
septemb*{9ieoze

Paul K Bal"r,. Eeq.
FANIZN & BARA, P.C.
Attotneys far Cliimaat
?8'11 Niagua Falle Boulevard
Niagara X'aUe, NewYork 14804
(no) zB4-BBB8
eb an{@fqpissiandB grr. com

Terrence IVL- Cougors, Eeq.,
Chribdna M. Eatqn, Esq.,
CONNOAS IJ{P
Aftorae.W far Claimqnt
1000 Lilerty Buililing
Bu&lo, New York L4209
$rs) B5a-66ss
tu@snLe$ilp.com
e$@connorellp;ao.m

L2



TTTRTFIOATI9N

STATE OF NEWYOBK )
COUI\TY OF EBIE) SS.:
TOWN OF TONAWAI\TDA.

COLLEEN G&AE being duly sworn, depoees and eays that she is a claimant
in the withiu action, that ehe has rsad the foregoing Notir:e of Clain and knows the
aontents thereoff- that the same i.s tnre to deponenf,s own knowledge except ae to
those matters thercin etated to be alleged upon.inforngtion and belief, and ae to
those mattere the deponent believes tbem to be true,

)

Sworn to before me this
la auy of Sgptenber, 2028.

,lftlly L 0oluocii
cornmErimf,r-ot OocOg, OtV gf iti,agerfi t

Oorr FlgdhMqganGflfro -
Conmbdm E gk6. on 12€1. n4

13



,<4

STATE OF NEWYORK
STIPRAME COURT : COUl\rrY OF IIIIAGARA

NINA BRIGLIO,
NOTIC.F OF CI"AIM fi)R
PEnSOlrAIl TNTURTES

Clainant,

-vs'

THE CITY OF LOOKPORT,
TITE COUIITY OF NIAGAAd.,
NIAGARA COUI\IIY INDUSTRIAT DE\IELOPME}.IT AGENCY, ANd
NIAGARA couhruY DEP,ABTMaI.IT oF EcoNoMIc DE\IELOPMENT

Reepoudente.

TO: Laura Miekell Benedist
CiW of lockport Corporation Counsel
Lockport Municipal Building
Oae Locks Plaza
L,ockport, New York 14094

Claude A Joerg
Niagara Gounff Attorney
176 Hawley Street
Lockport, New York I4Og4

Niagara County Induetrial Development Agency
Niagara Cowty Department of Economic Developmeat
681I Indtrcon Corporate Ddve
Sanborn, New York 14182

rrCInd delwercl
RECEIVED

srP 06 2023

CITY CLERK OFFICE



PLEASS TAIffi NOTICE that Claimant, NINA BRIGLIO, gives Notice of

Claim against the CITY OF LOCKPORT, COUI{TY OF NIAGARA, MAGARA

COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVEI,OPMENT AGANCY, ANd NIAGARA COUNIY

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEV, ELOPMENT (hereinaftet COIIECIiVEIY

referred to as "nespondents'), and their agente, employees, and others for whsm the

Respondents are vicar.i.ouely and/or.contractually liable, for the iqiuries, damages,

conscioug.pain and suffering, pre'inpact terror, and negligent infliction of emotional

d.istress suffered by the Claimant as the result of en iaeident that occurred on June

L2,2028 at the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Rid.e, located at 6 Gooding

Street in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara, State of New York ('IockBort

Cave and Underground Boat Bide").

In support of this Notice of Claim, the Clairuant statee the following:

1. lhe post offrce addrese of:Claiqaqt MNA BRIGLIO is 904Jarnes

Drive, Lewieton, New York 1J;A9Z'

2. The attorneye for the Claimaut are FANIZZI & BARR, P'C. Gaul K'

Barr, Esq. of counseO, ?811 Niagara Falls Boulevard, Niagaia Falle, New York

L4804, telephone number (?16) 284.8888; and CONNOAS LLP (Terrence M.

Counors, Esq. and Christina IVI. Eaton, Esq.of counseD, 1000 Liberty Building, 424

Main street, Buffalo, New York L42a2r(?16) 862:6538'

2



3. Unless otherwise indicated, the facta set forth in this Notice of Clain

are set forth upon information and belie{ the sourcos of which inslude an

investigation into this matter, interviewe with witnesses, and a review of

documents related to this claim.

4. This claip ariees out of an incident that occurred. on June L2,2023,

during a boat tour talring place in the underground caves, tunnels, walkways,

caverns, and/or waterways at the lrockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride.

5. This daim isfor the personal injuries, consciogepain and eqffering,

and negligent infliction of emotional disfrese euffer€d by Claimant, NII{,A

BRIGLIO, arising out of tlre June L2,hQZg incident, which occurred as a result of

the acts, omissione, and" negligeuce ofthe Roepondents and/or their agents,

eubsidiaries, associgtes, conkactors, ssry,ants, andlor employ- eeo,

6. At the tirne of the eubject incident, Claimarrt, htINA BRIGLIO, was

working as a tour guide for Deetination Nia$ra USA.

7. On June t2, 2028 at or around 11:P0 a,m., dr*ing the undergrnund

bsat ride portion of the tour through the uuderground caves, tunnels, c&verns,

and/or watelways located at the Lockport CIave and Undergrouad Boat Ride, a boat

carrying Olaimaut; NINA BffGLIO, capsized, causing ita passengers, including

NINA BRIGLIO to fatl i:eto the water aud caueing Olaimant, NINA BRIGLIO, TO

strike her head before entering the wator'.

8. The passengprs, including Slalmant,, NINABRICLIO, werohapped in

the cold, deep, murky water in a pitch.dark, unreagonably narrow, underground

3



tunnel behind one or more locked gates, with no ledge, handlails, or anything else

to haug onto and no life vests, life preservers, or any other safety and/or trescue

devices available for them to pull themselves out of the watet, for nearly one hour

before rescue personnel arrived,

g. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respond.ents, andlor Respond.ents'agents, subsidiaries, associates, conttractors,

servant$, and/or employees, maintained,aqd/or shar€d reeponeibility for inspecting,

maintaining, monitoring; supenrising, andlor overseeing the premisss af the

Lockport Oave and Undergtound. Boat Ridei including all caves, tunnels, walkwayst

caverns, and or watgrrrays, as well as the boats and/or vessels used to transport

pabons of the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat Ride thmugh the underground

cavec, caverns, tunnels, and/or waterwaye.

10. Upon information airil belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and/or Hespoaclentsl agents, subsidiarieg, a$sosiaw-s, contractors,

servants, and/or enployeee, owed and/dr shared a duty to inepect, loaintain,

monitor, ov€rsee and/or supervise th€ Lockport. Cave and Underground Boat Ride,

including, but not limited to, d caves, tunnels, Walk*ays, caverns, and/or

waterwaya, aB,well ae the boats, crafts, and/or veseels ueed to transportpatrone of

the Lockport Cave.and Underground. Boat Ride, to ensure that the premiAes were

maintained in a reasonably saf,e condition and to ensure the safety and well-being of

patrons, oecupants; us€r61 ridersr. and/or other visitors of the Irockport Oave and

Underground. Boat Bide.

4



11. Upon information and belief, at all times herein mentioned, the

Respondents, and"/or Respondents' agents, subsidiaries, associates, contractors,

servants, and./or employees, owed andlor shared a duty to inspect, maintain,

monitor, ovel'see, and/or supervise the activif,ies taking place at the lockport Cave

and Undergmund Boat &ide, including, but not lhritod to, transport of patrons by

boat, craft; voss€l, and/or by other neanir through the caves, tunnels, walkways,

c,avern8, andlor waterways of the Loclport Cave and. Underground Boat Ride, to

snsure that no unrtasonably dangemue activities wex€ being conducted and to

ensure the eafqty and well.beingof Batrons occupants, users, ridele, and./sr other

visitors of the lockport Cave eqd Undergrouad. Boat Ride.

L2. Respondeuts breached their respective duties by, arncng other things,

failing ts ensure that f,he premises at the lrockport Cave and Underground Boat

&ide, including but not limited to, ,all caveg, tunnels, walkways, caverrs, and/or

watetways, were maintained in a reasonably eafe conditioni failing to inqlect,

maintain, oversee, moni{or, and/or superviee the premieeq, including all caves,

tunnels, walkways, cavdrnb, and/or waterrrays,at the Inckport oave and

Underground Boat R.ide; failing to inspect, maintain, oyqrs€e, monitor, aud/or

srrperviee the aativities at the Lockport Cave and Underpound Boat Ridel failing to

ensure the safety aad well'beingofpatrons, occupants, u8ers, riders, and/or other

visitors of the Lockport Cave and Undergroirnd. Boat &idei caueing aad/or

permitting unreasonably dangerous conditions at the Iockport Cave and

Underground Boat-Ridei adverfising, promoting, and/or malketing the Lockport ,

5



Cave and Underground Boat Ride notwithstanding that the premibee, including but

not limited to the envest tunnels, walkways, caverns, and,.waterways were not

maintained in a reasonably safe conditioni adver.tising, promoting, andlor

marketing unteasonably dangerous activities at the Inckport Cave aird

Underground. Boat Ridei and causing and/or pernitting unreasonably dangerous

activities to occur at the Lockport Cave and Uaderground Boat Ride.

13. Respondente had aqtual and mnetructrive notice of the aforesaid

unreasonably dangproue conditioue and activitiee at the Iockport Cave and

Und.erground Boat Ride by virtue of among other things, a uearly identiaal ineident

occurring in 2015, where a boat olerated by the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride cepsized oausing tle passsngo.rs to fall into the water. Upon information

and belief; Respondents faileal to investigate,thp inaidentor take any action to

prevent this type of incident from recurrirlg.

L4, As a direst result of the foregniag, Glaimaut, NINA BRIGLIO, was

trappe.d, shivering in the cold nur$ water for ne,iuly one.hour, with f&e walls of

the cave crumbling in her hands ae she tried to eecape and other passeugerg

climbingover and hotding her beneath the,eurface of the,water as they attempted to

climb on top of the boat in an effor:t to escape, and was.caused to su&r savele,

serious, and permaaent physical injwies 0ncluding, but not limited to, injury to her

neck, shoulders, back, aud head), psychological, ti"ndror emotional iruiuries, conscious

pain and suil,bringi and f,ear of,inpending death.

6



15. As a direct result of the foregoing, claimant, NINA BRTGLIo, was

caused to suffer economic d.amages including, but not limited to, medical exponses

and lost wages.

16. As a dilect result of the foregoing, clainant, NINA BRIGLIO, was

physically endaugered and caueed to fear: for her safety and well being, causing her

to suffer severo and pernanent psychological iqiuries and emotional dietrees.

17. Upon inforuation andbelie{, the June LZ,ZAhB incident, agd the

dama€ps srrstained by Claimant ae a result thereof, were directfy cauged by the

negligeni:e, recHessnesg, and carelesgness of the Respondents and/or Respondentsf

agents, subsidiaries, aseociates, conhactors, servants, and/or employeee, including

but not limited to, the following:

a. ne$h'gently fading to reaeonably iaspeo.t the promiaes at the Lookport

Cave and Underground Boat Ride, including but not limited to the

underground caves, caverns, tunnels, walkways, and waterwaysi

b, negtigently &iling to reasonably inspect, monitor, and/or maintain the

boats andlor veegels ueedto carxy andlor fransport pass€ngers through

the uudergrogndcavep, caverns, and watsrways atthe Lookport Cave

and Underground Boat Ridei

c. negtrigeutlyfailing to en&rce bqildine and./.or eafoty codes rules, and/or

regulations, including but not lisite{d to,requirementg regarding exits,

Iishtin* elestrioal witing aud. eleetricity, harrdrails, life jackets, life
pressrvers, safety rope lines, li& kooks, emergency' workable radios,

aafety riag buovs, first'aid kite, safe,try and evaauqtion plan$i and first
responder/emergency personuel acaessi

7



d. negligently appruvi:rg and/or failine to prevent and/or remedy

dangerous conditions in obvious violation of building and-/or safety

codes, Iules, and/or regulations, including but not limited to

requiiements regarding exits, lighting, electrical wiring and elect:icity,

handrails, safety rope lines, life hooksr elnetgpncy wsrkable radios,

safety dng buoys, first aid kits Aafety and evacuation plans, and first

responderlemergpncy personnel acceesi

ei negligently faih4g to requiie conpliance $dth building andlor safety

c.odee, rules, and/or regulations, including, but not limited to'

requir€ments regalding exitd, Iighting electrical wiring and electricity'

ha-udraile, safety rope lines, life hoak6, emefgency vrorkable radios,

safety ring buoys, fi.rst aid kits safety and evacuation plans, and first

responder/emergency personnel a@8si

f. negligenfly causing and permitting the Iockport Cave and

Undergrouud Boat R,ide to operate and con$nue opemting

not'withstanding its noncompliance with builtting and/or safety cod-ee,

rules, and/or regulationsi

g. negligentlycausing a.lrd pernitting the lockport Oave and

Underground,Boat Ride to operate and continue oporatingwithout

requiied and appropriate permlte, ihspections, andlor safety measuresi

h. negligently causing and pereitting usreasonably dangerous conditione

to exiat and continue at the lockp.ort Cave and Underyround Boat

Ridei

i. negligently cauning and permitting u.tueaaonally dangeroua acbivities

at the lockport Cave and Underground' Boat R.idei

j. negligentty failtng to supervise antUsl'nonitor the L,ockport Cave and'

Underground Boat Ridei

k. neglignntly failing to 6asure that fhe L,oc,hport Cave and Undorground

Boat Ride employed sufficient and adequate on'site porsonnel,

8



including personnel trained in safety, first aid^, and/or rescue

procedures, tc ensure the safety of its patronsi

l. negligently failing to ensure that the boate and/or vessels used to

transport passengers during the Lockport cave and Underground Boat

Ride were up to date on inopections, maintenance, and/or repairei

m. negligeutly failing to ensure that the boats and/or vess€ls used to

transport passengers during the Lockport Cave and Underground Boat

Ride implemehted.'reaeonable and. adequate safety measures, including

but not limited to, life vests aud/or floatation devicesi

n. negligently failingto monitor, euperviee, and/orinspect the number of
patroue at a time perpit0ed to be on the boat during the underground

boat ride Bortion of the Lockpor,t cave and und.erground Boat Ride.

o. negligently railine to trimit the numn-er of pahons at a time permitted

to be on the boat duriagthe undorground boat ride porfion of the

Inckport Cave and Undergrouad Boat Ride to what was rsasonable

and e&fe under the circumstarcsei

p. nogligently failingto eirsur.6 ingr.sss/egress of patrone, occupants,

users, riders, and/or stler visitors of the Lockport Cave and

underground Boat Ride, includingbut not lieit€d to the underground

cavss, tunnels, walkv.rays, caverns, and/or waterwaysi

q. negligently failing to eneur€ that the Ioekport Cave and underground

Eoat 8,iite implemedtsd reasoneble aud adequate poticies and.

procedures to etrsure the safety and well-being of its patrons

occupante, users; riders, and/or other vibitorsi

I



r. negligently failing to ensure that the Lockport Cave and Underglound

Boat Ride implemented reasonable and adequate safety and first aid

trainings fsr its agents, oontractors, servants, and/or employeesi

s. negligently ad.vertising, promoting, and/or marketing the Lockport

Cave and gndsrground Boat Eide notwithstandirng that the premises,

includins but not linited to the cayes, tunnels, walkways, caverns, and

waterways were not naintained in a reasonably safe conditioni and

t. negligpntly advertieing; promoting, and/.or marketing unreasonably

dangerous ectivities at the Iockport Oaye and Uadergroutd Boat Ride.

18. As a direct result of the acts and/or omiseions described above,

Claimant, NINA BRIGLIO, suffered gerious and. pernanent pbysical, psychological,

and emotional injuries, fear sf impending impact and death, congci'ous pain and

suffering, negligent infliction of enotional distrcse, and other eer{ous, sever€, and

extensive injuries, and Claimant wjll seek all damages available at law.

t 9. The firtl extent and amount of damagee have not yet been deterudned

but include and shall not be limiteil to allBast, present, and futqre damages

incur:red for the followigg:

a, Pain andoufferingi

b. Negligerrt inflistiou of emotional distresei

c. Personal iniwiegl

d. Medical E:cpeusesi

e. Lost wageei

f. Other spec'ial and genoraldamagns as tley manifest tlemselves

subsequent to the date of this. notice.

10



20. The incident alleged helein was the ditect reeult of the negligence,

carelesenees, recklessness, and other culpable conduqt of the R;espondente and/or

Rospond,ents'agnnts, eubeidiaries, associatee, contraitora, sewants, and/or

employees and others for whom the Respondente are vicarioualy an#or

contractually liable, without any negligene€ on the part of the Claimant.

11



WIIEBEfi)RE, the Claim'ant, NINA BRIGLIO, reepectfully requests that

this claim be allowed and paid by the Respondents, the CITY OF LOCKPORT'

COUNTY OF NIAGARA, NAGARA COUNTY INDUSTruAL DEVELOPMENT

AGENCY, and NIAGARA COUNfY DEPARTI\{EI{T OF ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMEMI. You are hercby notifi.ed that unless it is adju*ted and paid

within 30 days of the date of pres€ntatisn to you, the Claimant intends to commence

an action on this matter,

DATED: Buffalo. N.ew lhrL
Septembet lS zoze

K, Barr, Esq.
FANIZZI & BAAR, P.C.
AttomeSrs for Claimant
?S11 Niagara Falls Boulevard
Niagara Falls, Nerv York 14804
(rre) 284-sgss
pbarr@fanizziandBarr. cgm

Tqrrence M. Connors, Eeq..,

Ohristina M, Eatoq Esq.t
cohtNoR"s LtP
Ath$eyg for Claiaaat
10. 0"0' Libepty guildtse
Buffal,oi New'llork 14202
(ne) B6a-6689
tm@counorslh,com
cn@c<innorsllp,.oos.

L2



lmRJrICA,fiON

STATE OF NEW YON,K )
COUNTY OF NAGARA ) SS.:
VILI,AGE OF LEWISTON )

NINA BRIGLIO, being duly sworn, depoees and eaye that she ig a claimaut in
the within action, that she hae read the foregoing Notice of Claim and knows the
contente thereofi t'hat the eame ie true to.deponenf,s own kuowledge except as to
those mattere therein stated to be alleged upon information anrt belief, and ae to
those matters the d.eponent believes th6m to be true.

t
a

Nina Briglio

$worn to before me thig
l$"y of September, 2028.

KelV L Colucd
Comnriscionrr'C OorO, gt! 6 Megatfra,

C6rt FLrth tgreuacotjltty I
Corxnb*rr Erpfrl m 1241, NL

13



L4



L
City of Lockport

1089 Ha

Employee Anniversary
Repoft

September

Building Maintenance

Building Maintenance

Police Department
Police Department
Police Department
City Clerk's Office

Date

1999

091031201e

0910312019

09l07lzozt
0910712021
0911312021

0913012022

Years

1104 Lucinskl, Kevin S pollce Department 09III/2006 17r
1059 Cercone, Anthony J public Works O\\OLIIOL7 6

1305 Qualiana, Gregory W
1456 Jarmusz, Ashlene P

1457 Maio, Max A
1458 Terrana, Nicole M

1506 Lanzo, Sarah K

4
4
2

2

2
1

ToGl Employees 11

Run by Mary Pat Holz on 0710712023 12:39:33 PM Page 1 of 1



3

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DAIE (MM/DDiYYYY}

07114t2023
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION OttILYAND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRII'ATIVELY OR NEGATVELY AMEND, EXTET{D OR ALTER THE COVER/qGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES llOT CONSTITUTE A CONTR.ACT BETWEEN THE lSSUlNc INSURER(S), AUTHORTZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE GERTIFICATE HOLDER.

the an OT
tf SUBROGATION ls WAIVED, 3Ubject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer to th6 certificate holder tn lieu of such

PRODUCER

Pavese - McCormick Agency

3759 U.S. Highway 1 South

Suite 200

Monmouth Junction

Patti \Mngen

(732) 247-9800 (732) 422-o70o

pattiw@pavesemccormick.com

COVERAGE *
NJ 08852 TNSURERA : American Alternative lnsurance Corporation 19720

INSURED

Pyramid ETC Companies LLC, DBA: T/A ETC Companies LLC

275 North Franklin Turnpike

P.O. Box 369

Ramsey NJ 07446

tNsuRER B ; Selective Fire & Casualty lnsurance Company 14377

tNsrJRERc: Berkley National lnsurance Company 38911

tNsuRER D : Twin City Fire lnsurance Company 29459

INSURERE : Travelers Casualty & Surety 1 9038

IN$URER F : Evanston lnsurance Company 35378
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUIUB 23-24 Master REVISION

tsTHIS TO THETHAT POLICIES OF BELOWLISTED HAVE THETO NAMEDINSURED POLICYTHE PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWTHSTANDING REQUIREMENT.ANY TERM OR OFCONDITION CONTRACTANY OTHEROR DOCUMENT RESPECTWTH vu-ilcHTO THI

MAYCERTIFICATE ISSUEDBE MAYOR THEPERTAIN, AFFORDEDINSURANCE THEBY DESCRIBEDPOLICtES HEREIN IS TOSUBJECT THEALL TERMS,
ANDEXCLUSIONS OFCONDITIONS POLICIES.SUCH LIM lrs MAYSHOV1N BEENHAVE REDUCED BY CLAIMS.PAID

TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY UMITS

EACH 1,000,000

1

5,000

& ADV INJURY 1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LNAILITY

.LA'M.-MADE lXl o""r*

POLICY

OTHER:

LIMITAPPLIES PER:
PRO-
JECT I I LOC

88A2GL00021487 07101t2023 07to|t2024

o

$ 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per psson)

BODILY IIUURY (Por accldent) $

$

B

ANYAUTO

ovl/NED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OVVIIED
AUTOS ONLY

AUTOMOgLE UABILITY

s 2310017 0710112023 0710112024

OCCURRENCE 5,000,000
UMBRELI.A UAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

5,000,000
c

10,000

MKC11100105 07t01t2023 07t01t2024

ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA 1,000,000

D N

Y/N

tf

WORKERS
EMPLOYERS'LIABIUTY

NH}
describs under

OF

N/A l3WEMM3WTM 071o1t2023 07to!t2024

1

A
Excess Liability

9342FF1000053 07!o1t2023 071o112024

Occunence

Aggregate $5,000,000

DESCRIPNON OF OPERANONS / LOCANONS 
' 

VEHICLES (ACORD l0l, Addluonal Remar*s Schedule, may be attactpd tf more spac€ b l€qutrcdl

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
T}IE EXPIRATTON DATE THEREOF, NO]ICE WLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WTH lHE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NY 14094Lockport

City of Lockport

One Locks Plaza

lJ;"g*,
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATW€

Prn"
o 1988-2015

ACORD 25 (2016t031 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ACORD CORPORATION. Ail rights reserved.



/?rv I
Yrott( I/ . I|T TE I

\l- 
|

ll/orkerC
Compm$Uon
Eorrd

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE
NYS DISABILITY AND PAID FAMILY LEAVE BENEFITS LAW

PART l. To be completed by NYS Disability and Paid Family Leave benefits carrier or licensed insurance agent of that carrier

1a. Legal Name & Address of lnsured (use street address only)

PYMMID ETC COMPANIES LLC
275 N FRANKLIN TPKE
RAMSEY, NJ 07446

Work Location of lnsured (Only required if coverage is speciticaily
Iimited to ceftain locations in New York State, i.e., Wrap-lJp Policy)

1b. Business Telephone Number of lnsured

(2011327-1919

1c. Federal Employer ldentification Number of lnsured or Sociat Security
Number

200072875

2. Name and Address of Entity Requesting Proof of Goverage
(Entity Being Listed as the Certificate Holder)

Clty of Lockport
One Locks Plaxa
Lockport, NY 14094

3a. Name of lnsurance Carier
HARTFORD LIFE AND ACCIDENT INSURANCE COMPANY

3b. Policy Number of Entity Listed in Box la
LNY645245002

3c. Policy effective period

0141-2023 to 12-31-2023

4. Policy provides the following benefits:

El n. notn disabitity and paid Famity Leave benefits.

n B. Disabitity benefirs only.

fl C. eaiO Family Leave benefits only.
5. Policy covers:

[l n' ntt of the employer's employees eligible under the NYS Disability and paid Famity Leave Benefits Law
f] A, Onfy the following class or classes of employer's employees:

Under penalty- of P€rjury, I certify that I am an authorized representative or licensed agent of the insurance carrier referenced above and that the
insured has NYS Disability and/or Paid Family Leave benefits insurance coverage as described above.

Date
ffdgaMl,TeJIt

or NYS

Num Name

IMPORTANT: lf Boxes 4A and 5A are checked, and this form is signed by the insurance carriey's autiorized representative or NyS
Licensed lnsurance Agent of that carrier, this certificate is COMPLETE. Mail it direcily to the certificate holder.

PAU@wcb.ny.gov or it can be mailed
Unit, PO Box 5200, Binghamton, NY I

Boxtf 4C 5Bor checkedr3 tsth4B., tscertificate COIIIPLETENOT for Sectionof Subd. of8purpos€s 220, NYSthe
Paidand Leave Law-BenefitsDisability mustIt emailedbe toFamily for
theto Workens'completion PlansGompensation Board, Acceptance 3902-5200.

PART 2. To be completed by the NYS Workers' BOafd (Only if Box 48, 4C or bB have been checked)

State of New York
Workers' Compensation Board

According to information maintained by the NYS Workers'Gompensation Board, the above-named employer has complied with the
NYS Disability and Paid Family Leave Benefits Law (Article 9 of the Workerc' Gompensation Law) with'rejpect to all oi their employees.

Date

(Slgnature of Authorlzed NYS Worfiers, Compensa$ofl Board Employee)
Telephone Number Name and Title

carrers and
those insurance caniers are authorized to issue Form DB-120.1

DB-120.r (12-211

lnsurance brokers are NOT authorized to lssue thls form.



Additional lnstructions for Form DB-l20.i
By signing this form, the insurance carrier identified in Box 3 on this form is certifying that it is insuring the business
referenced in Box 1a for disability and/or Paid Family Leave benefits under the ruVS DisaOility and Piid Family Leave
Benefits Law' The insurance carrier or its licensed agent will send this Certificate of lnsuranc-e Coverage (Ceriificate) to
the entity listed as the certificate holder in Box 2.

The insurance carrier must notify the above certificate holder and the Workers' Compensation Board within 10 days lF a
policy is cancelled due.to nonpayment of premiums or within 30 days lF there are reasons other than nonpaymeni of
premiums that cancelthe_policy or eliminate the insured from coveiage indicated on this Certificate. (Tfrede fiotLes may
be sent by regular mail.) Othenrvise, this Certificate is valid for one ye-ar after this form is approved ny tne insurance carrier
or its licensed agent, or until the policy expiration date listed in Bor3c, whichever is earlier.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This Certiflcate
does not amend, extend or.alter the coverage afforded by the policy listed, nor does it confer any rights or responsibilities
beyond those contained in the referenced policy.

This Certificate.may be used as evidence of a NYS disability and/or Paid Family Leave benefits contract of insurance only
while the underlying policy is in effect.

Please_Note: Upon the cancellation of the disability and/or Paid Family Leave benefits policy indicated on this
form, if the business continues to be named on a iermit, license or contract issued by'a cergficate holder, the
businels must provide that certificate holder with-a newCertificate of lnsurance Cov6rage for NyS disabifity
and/or Paid Family Leave Benefits or otherauthorized proof that the business is comp$ng with the
mandatory coverage requirements of the NYS Disabilitir and Paid Family Leave eeneliti Uiw.

NYS DISABILITY AND PAID FAMILY LEAVE BENEFITS LAW

5220. Subd. 8
(a) The head of a state or municipal department, board, commission or office authorized or required by law to issue any
permit for or in connection with any work involving the employment of employees in employment as dehned in this article,
and not withstanding any general or special statute requiring or authorizing tire issue olsuth permits, shall not issue
such permit unless proof duly subscribed by an insurance carier is produced in a form satisfactory to the chair, that the
payment of disability benefits and after January first, two thousand and twenty-one, the payment of family leave benefits
for all employees has been secured as provided by this article. Nothing herein, howevei, shall be construed as creating
any liability on the part of such state or municipal department, board, commission or office to pay any disability benefits to
any such employee if so employed.

(b) The head of a state or municipal department, board, commission or office authorized or required by law to enter into
any contract for or in connection with any work involving the employment of employees in enrploymenias defined in this
article and notwithstanding any general or special statute requiring or authorizing any such contract, shall not enter into
any such contract unless proof duly subscribed by an insurance carrier is produCed in a form satisfactory to the chair, that
the payment of disability benefits and after January first, two thousand eighteen, the payment of family leave beneflts for
all employees has been secured as provided by this article.

DB-l 20.1 (12-21) Reverse



  CITY OF LOCKPORT  TIM RUSSO  
   One Locks Plaza   Director of Finance

 Lockport, New York 14094  

   (716) 439-6631 

 E-mail:  trusso@lockportny.gov  

 
 
 

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS 
 

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for 
 

Lockport Fire Department – Medix RP-90 Ambulance  
 
 
Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received and considered by the City of Lockport up to 2 
pm on September 7th, 2023  at the office of the City Clerk, municipal building, One Locks Plaza Lockport NY, 
14094.  
 
Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the equipment.  
 
Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at 716-439-6776 or city.clerk@lockportny.gov with any questions.  
 
The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the reputation and 
experience of the Proposal in making its selection; to waive any informalities or minor deviations from the 
proposal form, and to award word to other than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is 
considered in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs 
associated with the preparation of RFP(s).  
 
 
Publish Date: August 24, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:city.clerk@lockportny.gov


 2 

 
Introduction: 
 
The City of Lockport is seeking proposals from qualified suppliers to provide an emergency medical 
services vehicle as per the specifications detailed below. The purpose of this RFP is to identify a supplier 
that can meet our requirements and provide a Metro Express RP-90 ES Type III ambulance based on a 
Chevy/GMC 3500 Cutaway chassis. 
 
Vehicle Specifications: 
 
Chassis Model: Chevy/GMC 3500 Cutaway 
Engine: 6.6L DI Gasoline 
Wheelbase: 139 inches 
Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR): 12,300 lbs 
Interior Dimensions: 146" Length x 90" Width x 68" Interior Headroom 
Pass-through configuration 
Cabinets: Laminated Wood, Laminate Color: Grey 
Upholstery Color: To be specified 
Cabin Color: Ash Grey, Brand: EVS 
Flooring: Lonseal - Lonspeck Topseal Twilight Zone SX111 
 

 
Proposal Includes: 

 NYS inspection 

 Pre-delivery inspection 

 Supply and installation of Vanner 1000watt inverter with charger 

 Supply and installation of four (4) Whelen 900 series LED side scene lights 

 Supply and installation of adjustable H/M-cylinder oxygen tank bracket 

 Supply and installation of Bilstein 24-187435 front shocks 

 Install exterior block-off plate over entire front wall cabinet 

 Installation of customer supplied Stryker Power Load system 

 Detail 

 Delivery to the City of Lockport Fire Department 

 
 
Vendors may elect to discuss with City officials to determine greater specifics as required. If desired, 

please contact Fire Chief Luca Quagliano at lquagliano@lockportny.gov or 716-439-6611. Further 
specifications to be made with Fire Chief may be required to furnish quote.  
 
 

Selection Process 
 

It is intended that the Council will be voting on this bid on September 13, 2023.  City Officials and 
Council may award contract, however please note that this RFP does not obligate the City to select a bidder 
or accept a bid at this time or any time in the future. The City can at its sole discretion revise the 
requirement, scope, and selections process for this RFP at any time.  

mailto:lquagliano@lockportny.gov


	

	

 

 
 
 
AGREEMENT OF SALE FOR AMBULANCE – TAG-ON CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made between Gorman Emergency Vehicles, of Six Hundred Ninety One Bullis 
Rd, Elma, New York, ("Company") and the (“Purchaser”): 

City of Lockport Fire Department 
1 Locks Plaza 

Lockport, NY 14094 
 

FOR THE PURCHASE OF ONE:  Medix RP-90 Ambulance – 2023 Chevrolet G3500 Gas – Per 
proposal dated 8/18/23.  Tag-on to attached City of Lockport contract dated 8/23/23 for NYS 
OGS Vehicle Marketplace Mini-Bid #13448 
 

1.  ACCEPTANCE:   Company agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to purchase the Ambulance described 
in the Company’s specifications, as may be amended in writing, and the equipment listed herein, all in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 
2.  DELIVERY SCHEDULE:  The Ambulance shall be ready for delivery F.O.B. at City of Lockport Fire 
Department, approximately 30 days from receipt of chassis and approved order, subject to extension 
due to changes made by Buyer.  

 
3.  PRICE:  Buyer shall pay to Company the Purchase Price for the Ambulance the sum of: One 
Hundred Seventy Two Thousand Five Hundred Seventy U.S. Dollars - $172,570.00 

 

This purchase price does not include any taxes.  Any applicable taxes not specifically noted above will 
be paid by the Buyer directly, or will be added to the Purchase Price and paid by Company.  If Buyer 
claims exemption from any tax, Buyer agrees to promptly furnish the applicable exemption 
certificate(s) and to indemnify and save Company harmless from any such tax, interest or penalty, 
which may at any time be assessed against Company as a result of this transaction. 
 
 
4.  TERMS OF PAYMENT:       $172,570.00 – DUE AT DELIVERY 

 
 

5.  WARRANTY: Ambulance manufacturer provides a limited warranty in accordance with the 
warranty terms set forth in the Specifications. 
EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PROHIBITED BY LAW, COMPANY MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES THAT EXTEND 
BEYOND THE FACE HEREOF.    
 

***SEE SEPARATE WARRANTY STATEMENTS FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION*** 

 



	

	

6.  DISCLAIMER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES:  COMPANY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY 
LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES WHICH MAY BE SUSTAINED BY 
BUYER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THOSE ARISING FROM THE USE, INABILITY TO 
USE, MAINTENANCE OR REPAIR OF THE AMBULANCE, WHETHER UNDER THEORIES OF 
BREACH OF EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, OR 
OTHERWISE. 

 
7.  CANCELLATION:  This contract is not subject to cancellation by Buyer, unless for material breach 
by Company, except upon payment to Company of reasonable cancellation charges, which shall take 
into account expenses already incurred and commitments made by Company and Company's 
anticipated profit. 
 

8.  FORCE MAJEURE:  The seller shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost 
when delay in delivery of goods is due to:  

Any preference or priority of an allocation order duly issued by a government agency. 

Unforeseeable cause beyond the control and without the fault, of the ambulance manufacturer, or acts 
of God or of the public enemy, acts of the purchaser, acts of another contractor in the performance of 
a contract with the purchaser, fire, flood, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, 
and unusually severe weather; and; 

Any delays of subcontractors occasioned by any of the causes specified in the two immediately 
preceding clauses. 
 

9.  TAG-ON CLAUSE:  It is the intent of this contract to make available to other New York State 
ambulance entities, by mutual agreement of the selling “Company”, the right to purchase the same or 
like equipment and or products using the prices quoted in this contract for a period of 3-years from 
signed contract.  The prices are subject to annual manufacturer price increases. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Buyer and Company have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
duly authorized representatives this ______ day of September, 2023. 

By:                                                                              

Title:                                                                          

Of: City of Lockport 

Authorized Signature Only: ________________________________                  

This contract is not a valid and binding obligation until approved, dated and executed by Gorman 
Emergency Vehicles,  

By: William J. Gorman  

Title: Sales Manager 

Signature: _________________________________ 

Date: _____________________________________   
 



	

	

 
 
 
 
 
APPARATUS PROPOSAL 
 

DATE: August 18, 2023 
FOR: City of Lockport Fire Department 

MAILING ADDRESS: 1 Locks Plaza, Lockport, NY 14094 

Bidder hereby proposes to manufacture and furnish to Purchaser, subject to Purchaser's acceptance of 
the Bidder's proposal and the proper execution of the appropriate contract, the following apparatus and 
equipment to be built in accordance with the attached specifications, whether purchase is made via 
contract or customer purchase order. 
 

Quantity: One (1) Medix RP-90 Ambulance – 2023 Chevrolet G-3500 Gas – Unit #22-90980 

For the sum of:  One Hundred Seventy Two Thousand Five Hundred Seventy Dollars.      

 TOTAL: $172,570.00 
 

Delivery is to be made subject to all clauses of the attached contract, in approximately 21 days from 
receipt of contract.  Company will not be liable for any delay, failure to make delivery, or other default 
due to strikes or labor unrest, war, riot, federal, state or local government action, fire, flood or other 
disaster or acts of God, accidents, breakdown of machinery, lack of or inability to obtain materials, parts 
or supplies, or any other causes or circumstances beyond the reasonable control of Company which 
prevent or hinder Company's manufacture and/or delivery of the Apparatus. The Bidder's right to 
withdraw this proposal, if not accepted within thirty (30) days from the above date is hereby 
acknowledged. 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
 
William J. Gorman 
  
William J. Gorman  
Sales Manager 
 

 

 

 



	

	

PROPOSAL EXPLANATION & OPTIONS 
 

DATE:  August 18, 2023 
FOR: City of Lockport Fire Department 

• PROPOSAL INCLUDES: 

o Everything in provided work order #22-90980 

o NYS inspection 

o Pre-delivery inspection 

o Supply and installation of Vanner 1000watt inverter with charger 

o Supply and installation of four (4) Whelen 900 series LED side scene lights 

o Supply and installation of adjustable H/M-cylinder oxygen tank bracket 

o Supply and installation of Bilstein 24-187435 front shocks 

o Install exterior block-off plate over entire front wall cabinet 

o Installation of customer supplied Stryker Power Load system 

o Detail 

o Delivery to the City of Lockport Fire Department 
 

 



$217,741.00 City of Jamestown Ambulance Contract 
$1,500.00 Add factory conversion adjustment cost for dealer stock unit

$500.00 Add increase in transportation costs (from factory to dealership)

($26,175.00) Delete Stryker Power Pro XT mid configuration cot

($31,945.00) Delete Stryker Power Load System

$4,000.00 Add discount amount for Stryker package when purchased with ambulance

($744.00) Delete high gloss wall laminate upgrade

($609.00) Delete Lonplate II flooring upgrade

$1,188.00 Add power locks on module doors

$183.00 Add radio coax/power/ground prewire

$103.00 Add 125v outlet

($82.00) Delete 12v outlet

$60.00 Add upgrade to blue Whelen 900 series warning light

$171.00 Add oxygen outlet

($421.00) Delete CPI OA1201-D-1 D-tank bracket

($272.00) Delete difference in custom ALS cabinets

($196.00) Delete inventory control tabs

($242.00) Delete difference in factory cot mount preperation

$2,500.00 Add installation of customer supplied Stryker Power Load system

$2,200.00 Add upgrade to four (4) Whelen 900 series LED scene lights

$1,425.00 Add Vanner 1000watt inverter with charger

$860.00 Add exterior block-off plate to entire front wall cabinet

$275.00 Add upgrade to adjustable H/M-cylinder oxygen tank bracket (labor only)

$550.00 Add Bilstein 24-187435 front shock absorbers

$172,570.00 Contract price for the Village of Silver Creek Emergency Rescue Squad 5/11/23

City of Lockport Fire Department

2023 Ambulance Purchase

Tag-On Contract Change Orders (2023 City of Jamestown awarded NYS OGS bid)



Gorman Emergency Vehicles Received 12/9/22

DEMO Sent for Approval 2/7/23

691 Bullis Road Rec'd Approved

Elma, NY 14059 Scheduled

Bill Gorman GPC Number:

bjgorman@gormanent.com

716-435-3720

Bill Gorman

Becky Isza

To be assigned by MEDIX Form Revised 8/19/22

2023
Metro Express RP-90 ES, Type III - Pass through

Chevy/GMC 3500 Cutaway,6.6L DI Gasoline, 139" WB

12,300 GVWR

146"L x 90"W x 68" Interior Headroom

QTY STD/OPT Description Cost Each Total

Chassis Model Year Adjustment TBD

-

01- Flooring & Interior Colors

1 STD
Cabinets: Laminated Wood

    Laminate Color: Grey
0.00

1 STD Upholstery: (Specify Color) 0.00

1 STD    Color:  Ash Grey     Brand: EVS 0.00

1 STD Flooring: Lonseal - Lonspeck Topseal Twilight Zone SX111 0.00

-

02- Body & Chassis
NOTE Weld 

Shop
Need to delete the static vent over the side entry door

1 STD
This chassis is equipped with a Gasoline Exhaust System to meet 

the EPA standards for Gasoline exhaust emissions
0.00

1 STD

Anti-Theft Device: IdleLock Ignition Security System, PN: A-

IDLE611 for G-3500/4500 Series Chassis Only. Locate 

activation button to the right side of the steering wheel.

0.00

1 STD

Camera System: RVS RVS-MV3-IR Surface Mount backup 

camera with infra-red illuminators and GM adapter harness. NOTE: 

For GM3500/4500 with OEM back up prewire and monitor system.

     Locate: Camera mounted off lower RH corner of center rear 

Amber light; OEM Monitor mounted on cab windshield rear view 

mirror.

0.00

1 STD
All Exterior compartments coated with light gray colored rubberized 

polyurethane material.
0.00

1 STD Pass-Thru Window. 0.00

1 STD

Compartment Lights: Optronics ILL36CB LED Compartment 

lights- ALL Models

   Locate: (1) Ceiling of Compt #1; (2) in Compt #2- (1) URH, (1) 

LLH; (1) in ceiling of Compartment #3; (2) in Compt #4/5; (1) in 

Compt #6 (if applicable).

0.00

1 STD

Compartment #1 SS Forward: Smooth Aluminum body, ADP 

interior door panel, O2 "M" cylinder storage for STEEL tank, Door 

w/rubber socket/nylon ball hold-open.

0.00

1 STD

Compartment #2 SS Center: Smooth Aluminum body, ADP 

interior door panel, Open Storage, Door w/gas strut hold-open and 

Seat Belt Strap.  Order Gas chassis tub #41-101223

0.00

Customer Email:

DEALER:

CUSTOMER:

Street or P.O. Box

City, State, Zip

Customer Contact:

CHASSIS

BODY

Customer Phone #:

Sales Associate:

Sales Engineer:

VIN#:

Chassis Model Yr

MEDIX Model

Unit #:
22-90980

  Page 1 of 7  



1 99-0334-C3

Compartment #2: SS rear, Drop Floor, 5" for Stair Chair 

storage PN: 33-10-5604

     NOTE:  RP-90ES/ME-150 Type III Chevy Models Only.

271.00 271.00

1 STD

Compartment #3 SS Rear: Smooth Aluminum body, ADP interior 

door panel, Vertical backboard storage w/2- belts. Door w/2" nylon 

strap hold-open.

0.00

2 STD

Rear Entry Doors: Single piece laminated smooth aluminum door 

liner w/stainless steel center panel for black paddle handles; ADP 

kick panels.

0.00

1 STD

Compartment #4/5 CS Forward: NO body above floor, ADP 

interior door panel, ALS Cabinet w/ Inside/Outside access, Full-

height, single Door w/gas strut hold-open. Bottom section smooth 

aluminum body w/roll-out battery tray w/removable, latching door.

0.00

1 200090

Compartment #6: CS rear, spare tire aft of rear wheel well with 

(1) seat belt strap. Smooth Aluminum with rubberized 

urethane coating, drop floor for tire with removable cover 

plate and (1) LED light in ceiling. NOTE: (no drop floor on Type 

I Chevy due to larger tire).

     NOTE:  RP-90ESES Models Only.

1654.00 1654.00

1 STD

Curbside Entry Door: Single piece, laminated smooth aluminum 

door liner w/stainless steel center panel for black and chrome 

paddle handles; ADP kick panels. Gas strut door hold-open. 

Smooth aluminum stepwell w/Dri-Dek insert. 

0.00

1 STD

All Entry Door paddle handle and rotary latching components will 

include emergency door releases located top and bottom of each 

door and shall meet the FMVSS 206 30G Test Requirement

0.00

1 200200A

Power Door Locks: All Entry and Compartment Doors, wired 

to OEM door lock system.  (Does not include additional lock 

switches inside module)  

NOTE: Not for use on MSV-II Mods.

1188.00 1188.00

1 99-0678G

Power Door Locks: Stealth Switch, Power Door Lock System, 

Push Button Switch (Grille brackets: Chevy G-Series 33-

102397) 

     LOCATION: Front Grille Area

90.00 90.00

1 STD
Rear Bumper: ADP corner pods w/Dock bumper pads, Center grip-

strut flip-up step, powder coated steel frame
0.00

2 STD
IV Hangers: (2) Cast black rubber fold-down over knee area of Cot 

and Squad Bench
0.00

1 STD

Mirrors: Velvac, 2020XG for G-series cutaway with 8D8 option, 

Heated/Remote Deluxe head w/bottom convex, no turns, Black, 

Kit# 718416

0.00

1 STD OEM Chrome wheel covers 0.00

4 STD Stone Guards: lower body corners, ADP 0.00

1

New Bid 

Option 

#1309

Stone Guards: ADP, Shaped to cab contour, installed between 

the corner ADP stone guards and the lower front of the body.  

PNs: XXX & XXX

     NOTE: For Chevy G-3500 only

129.00 129.00

1

New Bid 

Option

#1322

Threshold Trim: Stainless steel threshold trim package for RP-

90ES modular entry and compartment doors. (Includes 

Compartment #6)

     NOTE:  RP-90ES & G3500 Gas Only

338.00 338.00

1 STD Kick Plate, Rear: ADP, below rear doors across to corner posts. 0.00

1 STD
Rub Rails: C-Channel, tapered ends, Lower Body off-set mount 

with neoprene spacers.
0.00

1 200277
Chassis: Running Boards, "Starburst" grip punched pattern.     

NOTE:  Type III Models Only.
70.00 70.00

1 STD Fender Flares: Black rubber 0.00

1 STD Fuel Fill: Cast aluminum fuel fill bezel. 0.00

1 STD
Insulation: Pink, double sided radiant barrier/acoustic material, 

installed on curbside and streetside rear wheel wells.
0.00

  Page 2 of 7  



1 STD
Insulation:  Spray in place foam applied to curbside entry step well 

and both rear wheel wells
0.00

1 STD Undercoating: Per OEM Guidelines 0.00

-

03- Brake, Turn & Back-Up Lights

1 STD Lights: DOT, Brake/Tail, Turn, Back Up: Whelen 600 Series LED. 0.00

1 STD

DOT Marker Lights: TecNiq LED, rubber grommet bezels; (7) S34-

AC09-1 Amber- (5) on front of body as Marker lights, (2) side 

facing on rear extrusions as Turn Signals; (7) S34-RC90-1 Red- (5) 

on rear of Body as Marker lights, (2) side facing as Turn Signals.

0.00

-

04-
Electrical, Power Distribution, Control Center & 

Interior Lighting

1 STD
Battery Switch, Automatic: TST CDR-400. Located in Electrical 

Cabinet.
0.00

2 STD
Batteries: OEM

   Locate: (1) Under hood, (1) In roll-out tray in Compartment #4/5
0.00

1 STD

Front Console/ Switch Panel: Formed Aluminum body powder 

coated black and attached to chassis floor. Switch panel: Engraved 

black plastic with LED lighted switches for Emergency Master, 

Primary/Secondary Modes, Siren/Horn, Left, Rear and Right 

Floods, Back-Up Alarm, Module Disconnect. Siren mounted in 

engraved panel below switches.

0.00

1 99-0747

Electrical: Antenna, (2) 25' Coax with 3/8" through-hole 

antenna bases prewired to roof ILOS standard coaxial cables. 

NOTE: Medix to drill hole and complete mount.  Terminate 

coax with standard Power/Ground for each behind driver's 

seat. LOCATION: Run (1) from above dome #1 to behind 

driver's seat; Run (1) from above dome #2 to behind driver's 

seat.

     Note: Modular Units Only.

174.00 174.00

1 99-1328

Electrical: Antenna, (1) 25' Coax with 3/8" through-hole 

antenna bases installed/prewired to roof IATS standard 

coaxial cables; NOTE: Medix to drill hole and complete mount.  

Install Power/Ground behind driver's seat.  LOCATION: Run (1) 

from above dome #3 to behind drivers seat.

     NOTE: Modular Unit Only.

183.00 183.00

8 STD
Lights: Dome, Whelen LED, 18-diodes w/chrome flange 

MX80EHZA , switched separately with Hi/Lo functions. 
0.00

1 99-0550-A

Switching: Timer, Momentary 15-Minute timer switch for 

patient compartment dome lights. Locate switch in Positron 

switch panel in standard position on curbside wall. (PNs: 

MX09150 switch, MX09151 Timer)

     NOTE:  A-Line Models Only

121.00 121.00

1 STD
Action Area Light: Whelen PSC0ADCR, 12 VDC LED Strip light, 

6 diodes and On/Off switch on rear control panel
0.00

1 STD USB Port: Vanner VSS-USB dual port 2Amp mounted on A/A wall 0.00

1 99-0617

Electrical: Shoreline, 125VAC, 20-Amp, Kussmaul SUPER Auto 

Eject P/N: 091-55-20-120 side wired with hinged, yellow, 

weatherproof cover, Located above Compartment #2 on 

Streetside. Will have to be mounted on a Kussmaul Stainless 

Steel E-Z mounting plate P/N: 091-185-009 with green indicator 

light for ease of access. Mating Connector to be shipped 

loose.  ILOS

609.00 609.00

1 STD Timer: 5-minute check-out, wired to CS High mode dome lights 0.00

1 STD
Inverter: Pre-Wire ONLY w/switch on rear panel. Pre-wire located 

in cabinet below pass-through.
0.00

  Page 3 of 7  



1 STD
Battery Conditioner: Power Source, 45-Amp, Located in lower 

aisle-facing bulkhead cabinet.
0.00

1 STD
Breaker Box: 125 VAC w/20-Amp Breaker located behind the 

driver's seat base.  GFI receptacle located on the Action Area wall.
0.00

2 STD 12 VDC Outlets: (1) in Action Area, (1) in ALS Cabinet 0.00

2 STD 125 VAC Outlets, Duplex: (1) in Action Area, (1) in ALS Cabinet 0.00

1 400100
Electrical: 125VAC, Duplex Outlet, IATS

     Specify Location(s): Head of squad bench
103.00 103.00

1 MODIFIED

Rear Switch Panel: Engraved black plastic panel with (10) LED 

lighted switch positions for Dome Lights (2), Vacuum (1), Vent (1), 

A.A. Light (1), Inverter (1),  MOD Disconnect (1) Cabinet Light 

(1), Spare switches and digital clock w/Mode Buttons. MX01517.

0.00

1 99-0284

Switching: (2) Module Disconnect with Red Bezel, 3-Way 

"ON/ON" switches P/N: MX09174 located in (1) in rear switch 

panel IATS and (1) in front switch panel ILOS.  Locate in the 

far right hand blank switch position on rear switch panel.  

Requires three additional wires from front console to rear 

console.  Switches will not have an off position.  

103.00 103.00

1 STD
Electrical Cabinet: Located over cabin-module connection 

w/latching, recessed, vented door
0.00

1 99-0404

Switching: Momentary Disable for Scene/Load Lights PN: 

MX09144 and Power Doors Locks PN: MX09145. Locate: (1) 

horizontal, 2-position Positron panel on Curbside Wall at head 

of bench and (1) stacked, 2-position Positron switch panel on 

wall at curbside rear entry door in standardized position.

306.00 306.00

2 99-0931

Lighting: Cabinet, (1) TecNiq D04-W001-1 Linear Dragon Light 

Vertical, White LED with white case (D04-0WV0-1) and 36" 

wire.  Will have Rocker On/Off Switch in rear switch panel, 

labeled "Cabinet Lights" (MX09188) - operates all at same 

time.  Price per light.  Locate LEDs just inside front top corner 

of each cabinet. NOT ON BACK WALL.  

     Cabinet Locations:  (1) each side of A1

70.00 140.00

6 99-2469

Lighting: Accent, TecNiq E44-W03V-1 Flexible LEDs, WHITE - 

(1) 13.5" for interior cabinet - to be wired to an interior cabinet 

light switch and tied to other cabinet lights.

   Locate: (1) each side of cabinet A2, A3, and C

103.00 618.00

1 99-2467

Lighting: Accent, TecNiq E44-W010V-1 Flexible LEDs, WHITE - 

(1) 36" for cabinet - to be wired to the interior cabinet light 

switch and tied to other cabinet LEDs. 

   Locate: (1) in Middle ALS section runs vertically (this is in 

addition to the exterior compartment lights at ALS).

123.00 123.00

05- Warning Lights & Sirens

1 STD

Lights:  Warning, Whelen LED EMERGENCY Lighting Package- 

Ford, Chevy Type I and Type III- Models ONLY.

NOTE:  Does not include LED Scene Lights.

0.00

All LED lights shall have CLEAR Lenses.  All emergency and 

scene lighting shall have chrome flanges in standard 

locations.  
Front of Body: Add (7) Whelen 900 Series Super-LEDs- Specify 

pattern by LED Color (4) Red and (3) White: R-W-R-W-R-W-R  

Outer (2) lights and (1) Center light flash on K-Spec flasher. 

Inner (4) flash independently on Light Bar switch on front 

console.
Sides of Body: (4) Whelen 900 Series Red Super-LEDs: (2) each 

side in upper corners 

  Page 4 of 7  



MODIFIED

Rear of Body: (4) Whelen 900 Series Super-LEDs: (2) RED in 

upper outboard corners wired as Warning/Brake, (1) BLUE 

Street Side and (1) RED wide Mid-Body at the window level; (1) 

Whelen 900 Series Amber Super-LED in the center position over 

the rear doors.

1 99-0809

Lights: Warning, (1) Whelen 900 Series Super-LED 90BB5FCR 

Blue, ILOS 900 Series Super-LED 90RR5FCR Red.

     NOTE:  Rear Wall Mid Body, streetside

60.00 60.00

Brake, Turn & Back-Up Lights: Whelen 600 Series LEDs

Lights, Warning, Intersection Lights: (2) Whelen 700 Red Series 

Super-LEDs on front fenders

2 STD
Lights, Warning, Grille: LINZ6R Red LED w/clear lenses & 

chrome flanges on center grille bar
0.00

4 STD
Lights: Scene,  Whelen 900 Series Halogen with flange included - 

(2) Each Side of Module
0.00

2 STD Lights, Load: Whelen 700 Series LED 7SC0ENZR, (2) on rear 0.00

1 STD
Flasher: Dual mode flasher for Warning Light system, Vanner 

9860GCPE
0.00

2 STD
Siren Speakers: Dual 100 Watt drivers mounted through the front 

bumper
0.00

1 STD Siren: Whelen 295 SLSA1, 200 Watt 0.00

-

06- Oxygen, Vacuum & Miscellaneous Items

3 STD
Oxygen Outlets: Quick-connect style, (2) in Action Area, (1) over 

Squad Bench
0.00

1 600100

Oxygen: O2 Outlets, Single OHMEDA Z-QD0101MO outlet, 

IATS

     Specify Location(s): Ceiling over head of patient

171.00 171.00

1 STD

Suction Aspirator System: Rico disposable container mounted in 

Action Area w/gauge and quick-connect; SSCOR vacuum pump 

mounted behind lower rear main wall.

0.00

1 STD
Oxygen Cylinder Retention: For "M" cylinder, black steel w/3-

spring buckle straps and top collar, located in Compartment #1
0.00

1 STD O2 Regulator: Amvex, 50psi, pre-set 0.00

-

07- AC / Heat

1 99-3356

HVAC System: Valeo PN: 11139975A 90T, High capacity, 

horizontal blow combination Heat-AC system with Valeo 

digital thermostat control on the action area wall. HVAC unit is 

mounted in bulkhead at the top of the ALS.

    NOTE: Chevy G-3500/G-4500 Type III Models ONLY 

(Standard kit)

350.00 350.00

-

08- Cabinets, Hardware & Miscellaneous Items

1 STD Main Streetside Wall Cabinets:  Specify desired configuration- 0.00

1 OPT Cabinet Configuration- CPR Seat w/EVS V-4 seat belt system 670.00 670.00

Main Wall Cabinets will have (1) adjustable shelf in each and 

sliding polycarbonate doors with full height extruded handles. See 

Prints for Configuration.

1 STD

Action Area Overhead Cabinet: Single cabinet full-height/full-

depth of Action Area with sliding polycarbonate doors and full 

height extruded handles.

0.00

1 STD

Action Area and Switch Panel: Laminated, sealed countertop and 

vertical ALUMINUM panel with Suction system collection canister, 

Vacuum gauge, (2) Oxygen outlets, (1) USB, (1) 12VDC Outlet, (1) 

125VAC Outlet and digital Thermostat. Switch panel MX01517 

includes (10) switch positions and digital clock w/Mode Buttons.

0.00

  Page 5 of 7  



1 STD

Bulkhead Wall Cabinets: Cabinet above Tech Seat- general 

storage w/hinged, latching door; Electrical Cabinet located over 

cabin-module connection w/latching, FLIP-DOWN, vented door

0.00

2 STD

Bulkhead hallway Cabinets: Upper cabinet- general storage with 

non-locking, hinged door; Lower cabinet- general storage facing 

rear w/VENTED REMOVABLE PANEL-to latch at top - OPENING 

TO BE AS LARGE AS POSSIBLE, Panel print: #33-103274

0.00

1
New Bid 

Option  

ALS Cabinet: Lower Locking storage for 747 with LifeDefender 

latch and LifeDefender key lock; Middle Section with dual 1/2" 

acrylic doors and Medix two-point Paddle Handles. Right hand 

door will have a locking paddle handle , Left hand door will 

have a non-locking paddle handle with door stop ILOS hinged 

wood doors.

     NOTE: 153 Models Only.

350.00 350.00

1 99-0798

Glove Box Holders: (3) with hinged, black 11ga steel powder-

coated door, above Curbside Entry Door.

   NOTE: DELETES STATIC VENT OVER SIDE ENTRY DOOR

238.00 238.00

1 99-0546

Cargo Net: Head of Squad Bench, bolted to taping plates in 

the floor, wall and ceiling. PN: ZRS-NETMEX009-02-B.

     NOTE: Type I / III ME166, RP-90, MSV II ONLY.

387.00 387.00

1 Modified Squad Bench: (Box out around Comp #6 inside bench) 0.00

1

Full length hinged lid w/TriMark latch for access to interior 

storage; Full length upholstered seat cushion except over 

Sharps/Waste Area.

2
(2) EVS V-4 Belted seating positions w/progressive foam back and 

head pads and (3) short bottom straps for 2nd Patient restraint

1 STD

Sharps/Waste: Drop-in style with aluminum, powder coated red, 

hinged lid and standard containers, located at head of squad 

bench.

0.00

1 STD Rear Overhead: Vinyl wrapped foam header over rear doors. 0.00

1 99-1058

Seating: EVS 1880 Child Safety Seat, (1) Rear facing 

automotive style chair with 4Pt seat belt system mounted on 

standard steel base- ILOS 4Pt seat.

     NOTE: BLW or RP-90ES Models that have V-4 Seat Belt 

Harness as standard.

405.00 405.00

1 STD Seat Base: EVS CB-Side storage base for EVS Technician's Seat 0.00

1 STD Assist Rail: overhead off-center toward Streetside of unit. 0.00

3 STD
Grab handles: 12" x 1.25" dia. stainless steel mounted on each 

rear entry and curbside entry door
0.00

2 99-0997

Grab Handles: (1) 12", 304 Stainless Steel with 30° offset and 

oval mounting flanges (PN: 63-07-3213 / 49-10-3755).  “Not for 

use on forward door frame on SL-157, MSV-II 170 ALS or any 

ALS cabinet with hinged doors."

     NOTE:  Must specify handle position forward or rearward 

on door frame of curbside entry door using 1/4" x 20 Type F 

self tapping machine screws.

     LOCATION:  (1) Just inside side entry door on bench side, 

in between cargo net mounting feet on door frame.

LOCATION: Just inside rear curbside entry door on rear entry 

door frame.

223.00 446.00

1 STD
Reflective Striping, Door Open Protection: .50" Red reflective 

striping around interior door pan of all body doors.
0.00

-

09- Cots & Miscellaneous Items

  Page 6 of 7  



1 900060

Cot Mount: Styker 6370, single position, removable cot mount 

ILOS FW #175-3.

     Mounting Locations:  Center Position

          NOTE:  RP-90ES, BL90 and Chevy Type 2 models only.

   NOTE:  For Non-CN-8 Compliant States only.  Must have 

letter on State letter head in file for non-compliance. 

800.00 800.00

-

10- Paint & Lettering
1 STD Paint: Body all OEM White 0.00

-

1 1000100 Roof Star ONLY, INSTALLED 110.00 110.00

-

SHIP LOOSE  

2 STD Fire Extinguisher: (2) 5 lb- Ship Loose is Standard  0.00

I have reviewed this Order and find it to be acceptable and ready

to build.

 

_______________________________  Date: ________________

                Dealer Signature

I have reviewed this Order and find it to be acceptable and ready

to build with the addition of the attached, approved changes.

_______________________________  Date: ________________

                Dealer Signature

NEW!
Please click the link below to complete the Medix Purchase Agreement

Standard Terms & Conditions.  

Please note, your order will not be accepted without receipt of the signed

Terms & Conditions.

Medix Purchase Agreement Standard Terms & Conditions for Sale

Due to on-going product improvements and the changing requirements of the ambulance industry,

MEDIX Specialty Vehicles, Inc. reserves the right to change product specifications and related

products without prior notice and without any obligation to change prior products or parts. ALL

PATENTS RIGHTS RESERVED.

Product quotes are subject to change. Purchase Price will be the published price list within

Quote/Order Entry System on the date of order acceptance by Company

  Page 7 of 7  

https://lp.constantcontactpages.com/cu/8VnIcFz


DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

 COMPARTMENT SIZES
NO. COMPARTMENT TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT DEPTH

COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS
NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

 COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR SIZES
NO. COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT

COMPARTMENT TUBS
NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

A

 COMPARTMENT SIZES
NO. COMPARTMENT TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT DEPTH

COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS
NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

 COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR SIZES
NO. COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT

COMPARTMENT TUBS
NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS TO HAVE POWER LOCKS, WIRE TO OEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WARNING, SCENE, AND TAIL LIGHTS TO HAVE CHROME BEZELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GREEN DIMENSIONS ARE TAKEN FROM EDGE OF WALL SURFACE PRIOR TO CORNER CAP BEING APPLIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUBBER FENDER FLARES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS WHEEL COVERS W/VALVE EXTENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
7X3 RED LED INTERSECTION LIGHTS W/CHROME BEZEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADP RUNNINGBOARDS STARBURST PUNCHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 HALOGEN SCENE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:THE DIMENSIONS BELOW ARE OVERALL INTERIOR SIZES FOR EACH SPECIFIED COMPARTMENT TUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS/BATTERY COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
19  "38"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18  "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10910

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-116128

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS/BATTERY COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
58  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE ENTRY DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
29  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
69  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101372

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB SIDE EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:THE DIMENSIONS BELOW ARE OVERALL INTERIOR SIZES FOR EACH SPECIFIED COMPARTMENT TUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS/BATTERY COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL SPARE TIRE COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
32  "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
25  "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10907

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS/BATTERY COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
58  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL SPARE TIRE COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
31  "916"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE ENTRY DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
29  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
69  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101372

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101226

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

 COMPARTMENT SIZES
NO. COMPARTMENT TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT DEPTH

COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS
NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

 COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR SIZES
NO. COMPARTMENT / ENTRY DOOR TYPE WIDTH HEIGHT

COMPARTMENT TUBS
NO. PART NUMBER NO. PARTNUMBER

B

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS TO HAVE POWER LOCKS, WIRE TO OEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK RUBBER FENDER FLARES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WARNING, SCENE, AND TAIL LIGHTS TO HAVE CHROME BEZELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS WHEEL COVERS W/VALVE EXTENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7X3 RED LED INTERSECTION LIGHTS W/CHROME BEZEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GREEN DIMENSIONS ARE TAKEN FROM EDGE OF WALL SURFACE PRIOR TO CORNER CAP BEING APPLIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADP RUNNINGBOARDS STARBURST PUNCHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 HALOGEN SCENE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" DROP PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
20A 125V SUPER AUTO-EJECT W/INDICATOR LIGHT (SIDE WIRE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:THE DIMENSIONS BELOW ARE OVERALL INTERIOR SIZES FOR EACH SPECIFIED COMPARTMENT TUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2 COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
13  "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
63  "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID STORAGE COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25  "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
39  "18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKBOARD STORAGE COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
13  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
76  "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10901

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-A10902

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-A10904

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2 COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12  "916"

AutoCAD SHX Text
62  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID STORAGE COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24  "916"

AutoCAD SHX Text
37  "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKBOARD STORAGE COMPARTMENT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12  "516"

AutoCAD SHX Text
75  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101222

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-101223

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
41-103020

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET SIDE EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

SIREN
SPEAKERS

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

C

 REAR ENTRY DOOR SIZES

NO. WIDTH HEIGHT PART NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOORS TO HAVE POWER LOCKS, WIRE TO OEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINZ6 RED LED GRILLE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VELVAC MIRRORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WARNING, SCENE, AND TAIL LIGHTS TO HAVE CHROME BEZELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GREEN DIMENSIONS ARE TAKEN FROM EDGE OF WALL SURFACE PRIOR TO CORNER CAP BEING APPLIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBER LED  CLEARANCE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS WIRE TO BRAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X7 BLUE LED MID-BODY LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
LED CLEARANCE LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7X3 AMBER LED WARNING LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7X3 LED LOAD LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) WHELEN 9X7 RED LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) WHELEN 9X7 CLEAR LED WARNING LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN 6X4 LED BRAKE/TAIL/TURN LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL 64 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAT. PEND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK-UP CAMERA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHELEN ENG. CO. 900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-STI-91  DOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAE-WW2W5-91

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEALTH SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT & REAR EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
64  "116"

AutoCAD SHX Text
71-116130

AutoCAD SHX Text
-



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

B
A
C
K
B
O

A
R
D

S
TO

R
A
G

E

CABINETS
CPR SEAT

ACTION
AREA

ADVANCED
LIFE SUPPORT
CABINET WITH
ACCESS DOOR

HEAT & A/C
ABOVE

ENTRY STEP

SQUAD BENCH

O2
TANK

TECH
SEAT

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARGO NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COT MOUNT  STRYKER 6370 CENTER POSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIENT AREA PLAN-CPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

ADJ.
SHELF

C
Action Area Light

SUCTION

ACTION AREA

D

A1

A2

ADJ.
SHELF

ADJ.
SHELF

A3

MEDIX

VANNER
VSS-USB

EXPERIENCE POWER.. EXPERIENCE VANNER

CLASS 2, 5VDC 2. 1A

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

E

 INTERIOR CABINET STORAGE
ITEM HEIGHT WIDTH DEPTH SPECIAL NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVS V-4 HARNESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIALTY VEHICLES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH LEFT DOME LOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C HEAT OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACUUM  OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERTER  OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH RIGHT DOME LOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AA  LIGHT OFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
125V

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAGON LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAGON LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET SIDE INTERIOR-CPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
9  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
16  "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
23  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16  "14"



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

O2

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

F

 INTERIOR CABINET STORAGE
ITEM HEIGHT WIDTH DEPTH SPECIAL NOTE

4" SEATBELT
PLATE LOCATION

WELD SHOP 30 INCHES NOTE: THIS DIMENSION IS FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE WALL TO THE BOTTOM OF THE 4" PLATE.

CABINET SHOP NOTE: THE HOLES FOR THE TOP SEATBELT BOLTS ARE 1 14" FROM THE TOP OF THE SQUAD BENCH TO THE CENTER OF THE SEATBELT BOLT.
NOTE: THE HOLES FOR THE BOTTOM SEATBELT BOLTS ON THE SQUAD BENCH ARE 9 38" FROM THE TOP OF THE FLOOR TO THE CENTER OF THE BOLT.

NOTE: READ THE
DIMENSIONS FROM RIGHT

TO LEFT AS VIEWED

THE LOCATION OF THE BOTTOM SEATBELT HOLES ARE FROM THE
REAR OF THE SQUAD BENCH TO THE CENTER OF THE 12" HOLE BOTTOM 57 14" 35 12" 19 14"

THE LOCATION OF THE TOP SEATBELT HOLES ARE FROM THE REAR
WALL TO THE CENTER OF THE 12" HOLE TOP 57 14" 39" 19 14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARGO NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHARPS &WASTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY  RELEASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVS V-4 HARNESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVS V-4 HARNESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
/AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Off

AutoCAD SHX Text
On

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
/AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Off

AutoCAD SHX Text
On

AutoCAD SHX Text
125V

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" GRAB HANDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB SIDE INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

CHILD
SAFETY
TECH
SEAT

STORAGE

PASS-
THRU

ELEC.
CAB.

ALS2ALS2

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

G

 INTERIOR CABINET STORAGE
ITEM HEIGHT WIDTH DEPTH SPECIAL NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERTER CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER LOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECNIQ STRIP LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
125V

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V

AutoCAD SHX Text
125V

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ. SHELF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKING PADDLE LATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14  "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
23  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALS-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
26  "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
23  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20  "12"



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

B
A
C
K
B
O

A
R
D

S
TO

R
A
G

E

CABINETS
CPR SEAT

ACTION
AREA

ASSIST RAIL

ADVANCED
LIFE SUPPORT
CABINET WITH
ACCESS DOOR

HEAT & A/C
ABOVE

ENTRY STEP

SQUAD BENCH

O2
TANK

TECH
SEAT

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
LED DOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
O2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARGO NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IV

AutoCAD SHX Text
IV

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL COMPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEILING LAYOUT-CPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY  RELEASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fan

AutoCAD SHX Text
Speed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Low

AutoCAD SHX Text
High

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fan

AutoCAD SHX Text
Speed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Low

AutoCAD SHX Text
High

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" GRAB HANDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'



DRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

"LET US SHOW YOU THE MEDIX DIFFERENCE"
WWW.MEDIXAMBULANCE.COM

3008 MOBILE DRIVE
ELKHART, IN 46514
PH:   574-266-0911
FAX: 574-266-6669SPECIALTY VEHICLES, INC.

Note: Drawings are for reference only, measurements may vary from actual product.

REVISED BY:

DATE CREATED:

DATE REVISED: REVISION:

SCALE:

Dealer: Approved By: Customer:Date: Sheet

J

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.STANSBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/25/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVY G-3500-GAS 139" W.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
146" RP90-ES TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) CUP HOLDERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLANK RADIO PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD SWITCH PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-90980

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT CONSOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"=1'





























 

Specifications for: 
Type III Ambulance – 146”L x 90”W x 68”HR 
2023 Chevrolet G-3500 Gas  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Jamestown Fire Department 
200 Spring Street 
Jamestown, NY 14701 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 1 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

AUTOMOTIVE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AMBULANCE 
Type III Chevrolet G-3500 Gasoline - 146”L x 90”W x 68”HR Module 

 
 
Table of Contents 
 
1.0 MANUFACTURER     

2.0 CHASSIS          

3.0 MODULE CONFIGURATION       

4.0 MODULE CONSTRUCTION – GENERAL      

5.0 FLOOR CONSTRUCTION        

6.0 SIDE STRUCTURE         

7.0 ROOF CONSTRUCTION        

8.0 DOOR CONSTRUCTION        

9.0 COMPARTMENT CONSTRUCTION & CONFIGURATION   

10.0 CORROSION:  Anti-electrolysis procedures      

11.0 REAR BUMPER         

12.0 BODY PROTECTION        

13.0 CABINETRY          

14.0 CABINET CONFIGURATION       

15.0 UPHOLSTERY         

16.0 INTERIOR HARDWARE        

17.0 OXYGEN, VACUUM SYSTEMS       

18.0 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM - 12-Volt Direct Current     

19.0 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM - 125-Volt Alternating Current    

20.0 ENVIRONMENTAL         

21.0 CONSOLES, SWITCH PANELS       

22.0 VISUAL CONSPICUITY - EXTERIOR LIGHTING    

23.0 AUDIBLE CONSPICUITY        

24.0 INTERIOR LIGHTING        

25.0 COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT      

26.0 PAINT, LETTERING, DECALS, MISCELLANEOUS    

27.0 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 

28.0.    ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT 
 
 
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 2 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

SCOPE & GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
This specification describes a commercial cutaway chassis with a transferable modular body 
converted into a Type III, 4x2 ambulance configuration as defined in the currently approved 
Federal Specification for Star-of-Life Ambulance KKK-A-1822 inclusive of all GSA change 
notice requirements. Unless otherwise specified, this vehicle shall be manufactured in 
accordance with these current requirements along with the design and safety requirements 
of the National Highway Traffic Administration and the U.S. Department of Transportation.  
Documentation shall be submitted with the bid that validates the manufacturer's current and 
full compliance with the current KKK-A-1822 requirements or submits proof of the 
manufacturer's intent to have this testing completed prior to delivery of the proposed new 
ambulance.  The completed vehicle shall not be accepted if not in full compliance.  The 
ambulance described herein shall be type and model tested to and in compliance with the 
National Truck Equipment Association's Ambulance Manufacturing Division, Standards 001 – 
028 and all currently required SAE test requirements.  Certifications must be current to 
manufacturer's most recent manufacturing/engineering design criteria.   
 
The standard for the configuration and design of this ambulance exceeds the current KKK 
Federal Specification due to the requirements of this department.  Manufacturers who are 
unwilling or unable to meet the requirements herein will not be considered. 
 
The primary manufacturer shall submit proof that it is a ‘member in good standing’ with the 
Ambulance Manufacturers Division (AMD) of the National Truck Equipment Association 
(NTEA). 
 
The purpose of these specifications is to provide a set of minimum general requirements and 
test parameters for the manufacture of an emergency medical care ambulance that meets 
the needs and desires of this agency.  The bidder is responsible for understanding that this 
specification establishes the essential criteria for design, performance, equipment and 
appearance of the ambulance or rescue vehicle.  This specification requires an all-aluminum 
modular exterior and interior wall structure.  The compartment and cabinet sizes are critical, 
and changes will not be allowed.  While it is not the intent of this specification to preclude any 
qualified bidder, it must be clear that any bidder deviating in any substantial manner from 
these specifications will be rejected as non-compliant.  
 
This is an engineer, design, construct and delivery type specification and it is not the 
intention of this agency to write out vendors or manufacturers of similar or equal equipment 
of the types specified.  It should be noted, however, that this specification is written around 
specific needs of this agency.  With the intent to standardize certain components, therefore, 
in numerous places we have named specific brands of components.  This has been done to 
establish a certain standard of quality.  Other brands will be accepted providing the vendor 
provides documentation in the bid that the brand offered meets or exceeds the quality of the 
actual brand called for in the specification. 
 
The bidder is fully responsible for carefully reviewing every requirement of this specification 
and to respond by checking yes or no for compliance. Requirements in this bid that are not 
checked off with a Yes or No response will automatically be interpreted as non-compliant and 
incomplete. The bidder must include separate documentation clearly marked "Exceptions" 
that includes line-item references to the page number and category where any exception is 
taken.  Written responses, in lieu of the required yes or no response will not be accepted.  All 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 3 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

“Yes” responses will be interpreted as an indication of strict compliance with the written 
requirements of these specifications. Incomplete or inconsistent bids will be rejected. 
 
Bids taking total exception to these specifications or bids submitted for stock units not 
meeting these specifications will automatically be rejected. 
 
All bid prices shall be complete and include warranty and delivery of the completed vehicle to 
the purchaser.  Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms, and conditions of 
these specifications.  Payment will be made upon delivery and acceptance of the vehicle(s) 
and equipment specified herein. 
 
Bid prices shall be valid for 30 days from the date of the bid opening, or as otherwise 
specified in the bid proposal.  Payment in full will be made as each unit is received, inspected 
and found to comply with these specifications.  The vehicles(s) shall be free of damage and 
properly invoiced.  
 
It is the intent of this bid document to make available to other entities, by mutual agreement 
with the successful bidder, the right to purchase the same or like equipment and or products, 
at the prices quoted, subject to regular price increases, for the period of the contract. Each 
bidder shall indicate in the bid proposal if the bidder will honor other entities’ orders, in 
accordance with contract terms and conditions. This procedure is sometimes identified as a 
“piggy-back” bid. 
 
By submission of this signed bid response, the bidder certifies under penalty of perjury, that 
to the best of his/her knowledge that the pricing in this bid response has been prepared 
independently without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose 
of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such pricing with any other bidder or 
competitor.  The bidder also acknowledges that the pricing quoted has not been discussed 
with or disclosed by the bidder prior to the opening of the bid, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Company shall not be liable or responsible to Purchaser, or be deemed to have defaulted or 
breached these Standard Terms and Conditions, for any failure or delay in fulfilling or 
performing any of these Standard Terms and Conditions when and to the extent such failure 
or delay is caused by or results from acts or circumstances beyond the reasonable control of 
Company including, without limitation, acts of God, flood, fire, earthquake, explosion, 
governmental actions, war, invasion or hostilities, terrorist threats or acts, riot or other civil 
unrest, national emergency, revolution, insurrection, epidemic/pandemic, telecommunication 
breakdown, power outage, lockouts, strikes or other labor disputes (whether or not relating to 
either party's workforce), restraints or delays affecting carriers, inability or delay in obtaining 
chassis from an original equipment manufacturer or other supplies of adequate or suitable 
components or materials at reasonable prices. 
 
 
1.0  MANUFACTURER 
 
1.1 Shall be a modified vehicle up fitter approved by the OEM chassis manufacturer 
whose chassis is used to complete this Specified vehicle. Additionally, the manufacturer shall 
hold current certification in the Ford Motor Company Qualified Vehicle Modifier Program, and 
shall submit a copy of the QVM certificate as part of the bid proposal. This certification 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 4 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

ensures the integrity of the “conversion” of a vehicle into an ambulance regardless of chassis 
make. 
 
1.2 Shall submit a copy of current certification of compliance with Federal Specification 
KKK-A-1822 for the type vehicle described herein, as prepared by an ISO/IEC 17025 
certified, independent, third-party testing laboratory. 
 
1.3 Shall carry not less than ten million dollars ($10,000,000.00) in product liability 
insurance. The bidder's proposal packet shall include a copy of the ambulance 
manufacturer's current insurance certificate.   
 
1.4 Shall employ full-time Parts personnel. 
 
1.5 Shall employ a full-time Electrical Troubleshooter. 
 
1.6 Shall employ a full-time Service/Warranty Representative. 
 
1.7 Shall furnish custom Computer Aided Design (CAD) interior and exterior construction 
drawings specific to the vehicle to be produced under this Specification. Drawing dimensions 
must comply with AMD Standard 019- Measuring Guidelines: Cabinets and Compartments 
 

The drawing package shall include the following: 
1. Streetside Exterior Detail 
2. Curbside Exterior Detail 
3. Front & Rear Exterior Detail 
4. Streetside Interior Detail 
5. Curbside Interior Detail 
6. Front & Rear Interior Detail 
7. Overhead Floor Layout Detail 
8. Overhead Ceiling Layout Detail  
 

1.8 Shall furnish custom CAD electrical illustrations (including physical layouts of switch 
panels and electrical component mounts) and electrical schematics specific to the vehicle to 
be produced under this Specification. 
 
1.9 Shall furnish proof of manufacturing complete ambulance packages for a minimum of 
15 years. 
 
1.10 The ambulance and the allied equipment required by this specification shall be the 
manufacturer's current commercial ambulance model of the type and class specified.  The 
ambulance shall be complete with the required options and accessories as specified herein.  
Items will be furnished with such modifications as may be necessary and specified to enable 
the ambulance to function reliably and efficiently in a strenuous, sustained operation.  The 
design of the vehicle and the specified options shall permit accessibility for servicing, 
replacement and adjustment of components and accessories with minimum disturbance to 
other components and systems.  The term "heavy-duty" as used, shall describe equipment or 
items that are in excess of the usual quality or capacity that is normally supplied with 
standard production vehicles or components. 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 5 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

1.11 This department requires that the manufacturer of the ambulance be a 100% 
American owned company.  American owned defines the manufacturer as well as the 
majority equity owners of the manufacturer as US companies, individuals and/or 
stockholders.  
 
The ambulance and the allied equipment required by this specification shall be the 
manufacturer's current commercial ambulance model of the type and class specified.   
 
1.12 The bidder shall be obligated to provide an estimated delivery time from award of bid 
and a selection of flooring, upholstery and graphics design and colors for the customer to 
make the appropriate selections.  These color selections shall become a part of the 
customer’s order and the bidders manufacturing document. 
 
1.13 The bidder's proposal packet shall include copies of all warranties listed in these 
following detailed specifications.  The minimum acceptable required warranties are:  
Conversion Warranty, Electrical Warranty, Modular Structural Warranty and Paint Warranty.  
The bidder shall include a copy of these warranties within the proposal package.  If the 
bidder does not include a copy of the warranties, the bid will automatically be rejected. 
 
Manufacturer’s Name: _____________________________________________________  

Address: _______________________________________________________________ 

Contact Person for Questions Regarding Bid: __________________________________ 

Phone Number: _______________   Fax Number: _______________ 

Name of Authorized Agent: ________________________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Agent: _____________________________________________  

Date: ____________  

 
SERVICE ABILITY FORM 
 
Service Center Location:  
 
_____________________________________________________ 
 
Distance in miles (one way) from local service center Location to the Purchaser's Location is:  
_______________ miles. 
 
Is this shop an authorized warranty center for the apparatus builder? 
 
Is this shop owned and operated by the dealer of the ambulance being bid? 
  
Is the Service Center enclosed and heated?  
 
Number of full time Service Center Employees: ____________ 
 
Number of fully equipped mobile service vehicles: ____________ 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 6 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

Is your shop equipped to handle the following repair work: 
 
Cab & Chassis Repairs:  
 
Body Repairs:  
 
Paint Work:  
 
General Fabrication:  
 
General Welding:  
 
Frame & Spring Repairs:   
 
Power Train Repairs: 
 
Electronic Diagnostic and Repair:  
 
 
SERVICE CENTER REQUIREMENTS 
The Purchaser places a very high priority on service.  All bidders shall therefore provide 
complete details, in writing with photos of their ability to service the apparatus proposed, 
including but not limited to the following:  
     
1.  Service facility: size, location, bays, paint and body capabilities, fabrication capabilities, lift 
capabilities, and other capabilities.  Provide photos.    
 
2.  Mobile service vehicles: number and limitations.  Provide photos. 

3.  Certified service employees: number of EVT and ASE certified technicians.    

4.  Service: hours of operation.    

5.  Emergency contact and service outside of regular business hours.   

6.  Parts volume at local service facility.  Provide dollar amount and photos of local parts 
inventory.  
 
The service ability section of these specifications will be a major factor in determining the 
successful bidder.  Limited manpower does not allow for the apparatus to be taken to various 
places for repairs.  It is the desire of the Purchaser that repairs to the apparatus that can be 
reasonably accomplished in the fire station shall be done so to reduce the out of service time 
of the apparatus.  
     
The bidder’s factory authorized service center shall have a minimum of two fully equipped 
service vehicles, which shall carry spare parts and repair equipment needed to work on the 
apparatus proposed.  
     
The bidder’s service center shall have a fully enclosed and heated facility which shall be 
located within 100 miles of the fire station where the apparatus proposed will be housed after 
delivery, and must be owned and operated by the agency selling the apparatus.  This facility 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 7 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

shall have adequate security to protect this Agency’s equipment while undergoing necessary 
service or repair.  The service center shall be certified by the apparatus builder and shall be 
able to provide body, paint, electrical, hydraulic, HVAC and chassis repairs. NO 
EXCEPTIONS 
 
The local service center shall be available for an inspection by designated representatives of 
the purchaser prior to bid award.  

Outsourcing repairs of any type shall not be acceptable. Certified technicians employed 
by the dealership representing the apparatus being proposed shall complete all repairs.   
 
Proof of dealerships liability insurance with a minimum of five (5) million dollars coverage, 
workers compensation, EPA and DEC compliance, as well as current business certificates 
must be submitted upon request. 
     
There shall be no exception to the Service Ability section of these specifications.  

 
BIDDERS AFFIDAVIT 
 
Bidders Name: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
I, ____________________________ as the authorized agent for _____________________ 
do hereby swear and affirm that the following information is true and that the proposal that 
our firm is submitting complies with all the General Instructions, Requirements, and 
Specifications contained in this Bid Package, except where indicated below. 
 
1. The apparatus offered is manufactured in the United States of America: 
  
2. The apparatus proposed is not a prototype:  
 
3. The performance tests shall be performed in compliance with the specifications: 
  
4. All pages of the General Instructions, Requirements, and Specifications have been 
received and reviewed:  
 
5. All questionnaires and blanks have been completed and filled in:  
 
6. Bidder complies with Specifications without Exception:  
 
7. Bidder complies with Design Criteria:  
 
8. Bidder has included Apparatus Drawings per Specifications:  
 
9. Apparatus proposed complies with dimensional requirements:  
 
10. The manufacturer provides a program for the familiarization for the purchaser:  
 
11. The manufacturer meets the $10,000,000.00 product liability insurance requirement:  



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 8 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

12. All specified warranties are included:  
 
13. All proposed warranties are in compliance with specifications and term length:  
 
14. The proposed apparatus and equipment new in all respects:  
 
15. A complete copy of the bidder’s detailed proposal is included:  
 
16. A separate sheet of exceptions is attached:  
 
17. Service Ability form completed and attached:  
 
18. Dimensions of the proposed apparatus are as follows:  
 

Module Headroom: 68” 
 
Module Length:  146” 
 
Module Width:  90” 

 
 
2.0     CHASSIS 
 
2.1 TYPE III AMBULANCE: The apparatus shall be a Type III, Class 1, 2-door, Chevrolet 
G-3500 Cutaway van with a transferable, modular ambulance body. 
 
 
2.2 AMBULANCE PREPARATON PACKAGE:  The chassis provided shall be equipped 
with an ambulance preparation package designed and installed by the O.E.M.  The package 
shall be designed to meet the demands and duty cycles inherent in Emergency Medical 
Vehicles.   The chassis shall be equipped with dual 770CCA OEM batteries. 
 
 
2.3 THROTTLE – HIGH IDLE: An O.E.M. throttle control shall be provided.  The throttle 
shall be programmed for charge protect.  The throttle control module shall be located in the 
console base. 
  
 
2.4 GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT RATING (GVWR): The GVWR of the chassis supplied 
shall be at least 12,300 pounds. 
 
 
2.5 FRONT AXLE WEIGHT RATING (GAWR-F): The GAWR-F shall be rated at no less 
than 4300 pounds. 
 
 
2.6 REAR AXLE WEIGHT RATING (GAWR-R): The GAWR-R shall be rated at no less 
than 8600 pounds. 
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 9 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

2.7 REAR AXLE TYPE AND RATIO: The axle type shall be limited slip differential with a 
3.73 gear ratio. 
 
 
2.8 ENGINE:   A 6.6L Direct Injection V-8 gasoline engine rated at 401HP @ 5,200 rpm / 
464 lb. ft. @ 4,000 rpms shall be provided.  The engine performance shall comply with or 
exceed all applicable KKK-A-1822 and AMD Standards. 
 
 
2.10 TRANSMISSION:   A 6-speed automatic, heavy-duty electronically controlled with 
overdrive and tow/haul mode. Includes Cruise Grade Braking, Powertrain Grade 
Braking, and Tap-Up/Tap-Down Driver Shift Control (Requires (L8T) 6.6L gas V8 engine shall 
be provided. 
 
 
2.11 BATTERIES/ALTERNATOR:  Two OEM batteries shall be mounted to provide easy 
access for servicing. The batteries shall be at least 770 CCA each.  The engine shall be 
equipped with a single 220-amp alternator. 
 
 
2.12 BRAKES:  4-wheel anti-lock, power assisted hydraulic brakes shall be supplied by the 
O.E.M.  The brakes shall be 4-wheel Disc type.  The parking brake shall be an independent 
mechanical brake, provided by the O.E.M. 
 
 
2.13 TIRES:  All tires shall be identical make, tread type, size and load range.  For 
aforementioned GVWR the tires shall be LT225/75R16E.  A label with the recommended tire 
pressure shall be located above each wheel opening, unless specified otherwise by the 
purchaser.  All tires shall be balanced per KKK-A-1822F 3.6.10.  
 
 
2.14 STAINLESS-STEEL WHEEL INSERTS: Stainless-steel Wheel Inserts shall be 
installed. Both rear wheels shall have braided valve extenders installed. Wheel inserts shall 
not be attached to the wheels utilizing the OEM lug nuts. 
 
 
2.15 MUD FLAPS:  Heavy duty rubber Mud Flaps shall be provided behind the rear dual 
wheels. 
 
 
2.16 SPARE TIRE:  One (1) spare tire and wheel assembly shall be supplied.  When the tire 
is to be carried on the unit, the tire hold down and O.E.M. jack and tire tools shall be provided 
with the spare.  
 
 
2.17 OCCUPANT RESTRAINT SYSTEM: The front, forward facing cab seats shall be 
equipped with O.E.M. installed Type II lap and shoulder belt assemblies.   
 
The seat belts shall have pre-tensioners built into the seatbelt assembly to take up belt slack 
during a frontal collision.  The seat belt assemblies shall meet or exceed F.M.V.S.S. 208 and 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 10 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

209.  Any transition trim panels installed in the cab shall not interfere with the swivel arc of the 
shoulder rings. 
 
 
2.18 SUPPLEMENTAL RESTRAINT SYSTEM: An O.E.M. air bag shall be installed on the 
driver and passenger side.  Permanent or quick release ambulance conversion components 
shall not interfere with air bag deployment.   The air bags must be completely operational.  
Modifications by the secondary manufacturer are not acceptable.  
 
 
2.19 FUEL TANK: The fuel capacity shall be at least 32 U.S. gallons.   The fuel range shall 
be at least 250 miles per KKK-A-1822F 3.4.8. 
 
 
2.20 CAB SEATS:  O.E.M. High back, stain-resistant cloth covered bucket type seats shall 
be provided in the cab.  The seats shall adjust forward and aft.  Seat base must be O.E.M.  
After-market seats and/or bases are not acceptable due to certified requirements regarding 
S.R.S. (Air bag) deployment geometry. The seats shall have external moisture repellant in 
case of contact with blood or body fluids. 
 
 
2.21 CAB STEREO:  An O.E.M. AM/FM/CD in dash radio shall be included with the chassis. 
 
 
2.22 MIRRORS:   Dual Velvac 2020XG deluxe heated/remote controlled mirrors with built in 
convex mirror shall be provided.  The chassis shall come with OEM installed option 8D8 
prewire for the Velvac mirrors. 
 
 
2.23 DOOR LOCKS:  The cab doors shall have O.E.M. power door locks.  The system shall 
include a remote keyless entry system with two key fobs.  A momentary rocker type switch 
shall active (Lock/Unlock) both cab doors. 
  
 
2.24 TRIM PACKAGE:  The highest-level trim package shall be supplied from the O.E.M.  
The package shall include high quality chrome-like bright work on the grille face.  Chrome 
plated steel bumper(s) shall also be supplied by the O.E.M.   Argent or painted bumpers are 
not acceptable.   The O.E.M. grille work shall remain O.E.M. 
  
 
2.25 RUNNING BOARDS: Running boards shall be constructed of .125 aluminum diamond 
plate and provide “splash guard” components to protect the running board surfaces from front 
wheel wash.  There shall be a punched star burst pattern for additional traction. 
 
 
2.26 UNDERCOATING: Chassis and module shall be fully undercoated in accordance with 
the chassis manufacturer’s guidelines.  
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 11 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

2.27 WINDSHIELD SUN VISORS: OEM, stain resistant cloth covered sun visors shall be 
installed over the driver’s and passenger’s sides of the windshield. 
 
 
2.28 ANTI-THEFT: The manufacturer shall install an OEM approved idle lock ignition 
security system for a Chevrolet G-3500 chassis.  The activation button shall be located to the 
right side of the steering wheel.  
 
 
2.29 BACK-UP CAMERA:  The ambulance shall utilize an RVS back-up camera system 
with the Harness tied into an RVS rear-view mirror style display.  The camera shall be an 
RVS-MV3-IR. 
 
 
3.0 MODULE CONFIGURATION 
 
3.1 OVER ALL LENGTH:  The overall length of the vehicle shall not exceed two hundred 
fifty-seven inches (257”). The finished vehicle shall meet or exceed KKK-A-1822F 3.4.10.4 for 
Angle of Departure, Ramp Break Over and Angle of Approach.  
  
 
3.2 MODULE LENGTH:  The module length shall be at least one hundred fifty-three (146”) 
inches. 
 
 
3.3 MODULE WIDTH:  The module width shall comply with State requirements regarding 
width of vehicles permitted on its roads and highways. The module shall be ninety-four (90”) 
inches wide, excluding lights and accessories. The rear wheels of the chassis shall not extend 
further than 2.5” from the vertical sidewall and be covered by fender flares as cited in Item 10.5 
of this Specification. 
 
 
3.4 PATIENT COMPARTMENT HEADROOM: The headroom within the module shall be 
sixty-eight (68”) inches. The measurement shall be taken from the center of the patient 
compartment floor to the ceiling panel. 
 
 
3.5 BULKHEAD CONFIGURATION:  The bulkhead wall shall be open only by an 18”W x 
15”H pass-thru opening. There shall be a sliding Lexan window of at least 200 square inches 
of viewing area. The window shall be transparent and shatterproof. 
 
  
3.6 SPARE TIRE STORAGE: Unless otherwise specified, a full size, fully inflated spare tire 
matching the wheels and tires mounted on the chassis shall be shipped loose.  An O.E.M. jack 
and tire tools shall also be provided and shipped loose. 
 
 
4.0 MODULE CONSTRUCTION  
The ambulance body shall be all aluminum.  The body sheet shall be reinforced with 
structural members designed to resist deflection and penetration and withstand conditions as 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 12 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

per the current Federal Specification KKK-A-1822 and SAE J3057.  Additionally, the modular 
body and structural and add on components shall be tested and in full compliance with SAE 
J3027, SAE J3026, SAE J2917, SAE J2956, SAE J3102.  The OEM ambulance 
manufacturer, not an outside vendor, shall manufacture the body structure.  This Agency will 
not accept bids from ambulance manufacturers that sub-contract the manufacture the 
ambulance body being bid.   
 
 
4.1 BODY STRUCTURE ALLOY:  The side, roof, front and rear sheets shall be derived 
from .090 thick 5052-H-32 Aluminum sheet.   The roof sheet shall be one piece, from roof rail 
to roof rail.    The side, roof and floor structure and structural shapes shall be 6005A-T61 
extruded structural aluminum. The ambulance supplier represented in this bid is required to 
be the manufacturer of the modular body: this agency will not accept bids from ambulance 
manufacturers that sub-contract the ambulance body build process to an alternate supplier.   
 
All frame and structural members shall be MIG (metal inert gas shielded) welded together to 
form a "roll cage" type structure.  No rivets, screws, adhesive or other mechanical fasteners 
shall be used for the attachment of any structural or frame member used to form this critical 
structure.      
 
 
4.2 BODY WARRANTY: The body shall carry a 15-year warranty following the date of 
delivery to the end user.  The warranty shall cover repairs or replacement of body elements 
or components that fail due to structural defects in materials and workmanship. “Lifetime 
Warranties” shall not be acceptable, unless the protection coverage is clearly specified and 
attached in its entirety, with the bid. Hollow, no content and/or unclear “Lifetime Warranties” 
are not acceptable.        
 
 
4.3 BODY PANEL MANUFACTURE: Each body panel, front wall, rear wall, two side 
walls, and roof panel, shall be manufactured utilizing .090” aluminum sheet, 2”x2”x.125” and 
1”x2”x.125” 6005A-T61 extruded structural aluminum framework with voids between the 
tubular structure filled with 2” thick block polystyrene and covered with .125” laminated Luan. 
These panel components shall be integrated utilizing high strength adhesives.  The 
aluminum sheet shall be attached to the wall structure with a Methacrylate adhesive with at 
shear and tensile strength of approximately 2,215 psi and a tensile modulus of 157,090 psi.  
The block foam and ply shall be attached with a urethane adhesive with a minimum tensile 
strength of 300 psi.  The entire assembly shall be vacuum cured to form a solid, penetration 
resistant composite body panel.  In no case shall screws, rivets, VHB tape or any other 
mechanical fasteners be used to attach the skin to these structural members. 
 
The four vertical corners shall be configured so that the actual corner wall extrusions overlap 
allowing the wall sections to have full, vertical seam welds outside.  This offset will also allow 
for the four vertical corners to be stitch-welded in 5” – 6” increments every 5” along the full 
vertical contact point inside.  
 
Similarly, the four sidewall structures at the roofline shall be full seam welded around the 
entire horizontal perimeter of the roof and stitch-welded in 5”-6” increments every 5” around 
the full horizontal perimeter inside. Four full-welded vertical corner seams and four full-
welded horizontal roof seams shall be covered with .090” extruded aluminum, radius corner 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 13 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

extrusion welded at the corner caps and bonded with Lords 406-17 acrylic adhesive creating 
an integrated corner support column. The cast aluminum corner caps shall be seam-welded 
in place. All exterior body holes for lighting or other appliances shall be routed, drilled or 
punched prior to prime and paint process to assure complete coverage of raw metal and to 
reduce the possibility of paint breaks and resulting corrosion. 
 
 
4.4 MODULE INSULATION:  The insulation material installed in the walls and ceiling 
shall be 2” thick, 1-lb. high density block foam insulation.  The material shall be cut so that it 
fits securely between the structural wall members and will be installed with a full urethane 
coating along both sides of the material to provide a permanent bond between the outer wall 
skin and the interior liner.  The front, side, rear and roof wall panels will be filled providing full 
wall insulation.  
Additionally, the wheel wells shall be insulated on the interior with a three-part, self-adhesive, 
radiant barrier material designed for extreme temperature protection and on the exterior with 
a two-part spray in place, adhesive foam for acoustical/thermal insulation.  The underside of 
the side entry step well shall also be insulated with the two-part spray in place, adhesive 
foam. 
 
  
4.5 WELD QUALITY:  All welds within the modular body shall meet American Welding 
Society codes for structural and sheet welding. All weld sites shall be cleaned prior to 
welding. All welds shall be free of cracks, cavitation, oxidation and foreign substances. All 
MIG welds shall be shielded with Argon, during the process.  
 
 
5.0 FLOOR STRUCTURE 
 
5.1 FLOOR MEMBERS: The floor shall be at the lowest level permitted by clearances 
and shall meet the floor height requirements of the current KKK-A-1822 standards.  The 
lateral and longitudinal floor structure shall consist of 2” x 2” x .250” 6061-T6 primary 
structural members and 2" x 2" x .125" and 1” x 2” x .125” 6005A-T61 secondary structural 
aluminum tubing. The finished assembly shall be securely welded to the wall structures and 
exterior compartments. There shall be .50” aluminum plates welded into the floor structure to 
facilitate mounting of the Technician’s seat base and cot retention hardware. The floor weight 
bearing capability shall be compliant with AMD Standard 020- Floor Distributed Load Test, 
S4.3 Bariatric Load. 
 
 
5.2 MOISTURE BARRIER: Over the floor substructure there shall be applied a moisture 
barrier of .060” aluminum skin.  This skin shall be attached to the floor structure by a full bed 
application of a high-performance elastomeric adhesive/sealant.  This adhesive bed shall be 
adequate to eliminate any material vibration and to completely seal the patient compartment 
from fumes and moisture penetrating the interior.   
 
 
5.3 CARBON MONOXIDE PROTECTION: To prevent carbon monoxide penetration into 
the patient compartment, it is imperative that the entire underside of the modular body be 
sealed.  All hollow corner structural members shall be sealed with either expansion foam or 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 14 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

sealed metal plates.  This completed vehicle shall be compliant with AMD Standard 007- 
Patient Compartment Carbon Monoxide Test. 
 
 
6.0 SIDE STRUCTURE 
 
6.1 SHEET:  The skin covering the front, sides, and rear walls shall be a .090” single 
aluminum sheet with an alloy and temper strength of 5052 H32 for strength, ease of welding, 
and corrosion resistance.  Modular bodies fabricated from “multi-piece” front, rear or side 
skins are not acceptable to this agency.    
 
These panel components shall be integrated utilizing high strength adhesives.  The 
aluminum sheet shall be attached to the wall structure with a Methacrylate adhesive with at 
shear and tensile strength of approximately 2,215 psi and a tensile modulus of 157,090 psi.  
The material shall be applied full length to every structural member prior to assembly. The 
block foam and ply shall be attached with a urethane adhesive with a minimum tensile 
strength of 300 psi.  The entire assembly shall be vacuum cured to form a solid, penetration 
resistant composite body panel.  In no case shall screws, rivets, VHB tape or any other 
mechanical fasteners be used to attach the skin to these structural members. 
 
 
6.2 SIDE STRUCTURAL MEMBERS:  The side assembly shall be reinforced vertically 
with extruded square aluminum structural tubing a minimum of sixteen (16) inch centers. 
These structural members shall be 2” x 2” x .125” 6005A-T61 structural aluminum tubing.  To 
minimize the possibility of the extrusion bending, twisting or suffering other deformation when 
stressed, the extrusion shall be designed that each boxed formed corner extrusion on the 
sides, front, rear, and roof overlap the opposing extrusion, thus allowing for full length vertical 
welds on the entire outside of the body and interval welds on the inside of the body.  There 
shall be .50” aluminum plates welded into the curbside and streetside walls structure to 
facilitate the mounting of a PRO4 4-point harness restraint system.  Each harness restraint 
system/seating position along the curbside or streetside wall shall be pull tested to 6,000 
pounds and passed SAE J3026 Dynamic testing.  These structures shall be MIG welded 
together to form the body’s roll cage and corner impact protection. 
 
 
6.3 CORNER SIDEWALL ASSEMBLY:  The four full-welded vertical corner seams and 
four full-welded horizontal roof seams shall be covered with .125” extruded aluminum, radius 
corner extrusion bonded with Lord’s 406-17 acrylic adhesive with a tensile strength of 4,650 
psi and an elastic modulus of 130,000 psi creating an integrated corner support column. The 
cast aluminum corner caps shall be seam-welded in place. All exterior body holes for lighting 
or other appliances shall be routed, drilled or punched prior to prime and paint process to 
assure complete coverage of raw metal on edges of holes. 
 
 
7.0 ROOF STRUCTURE 
 
7.1 PERIMETER EXTRUSIONS: The roof's substructure assembly shall consist of 
perimeter extrusions, lateral roof bows, and interconnecting corner caps. 
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 15 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

7.2 ROOF SHEET: The roof skin shall be .090” and will have an alloy and temper 
strength of 5052 H32.  The skin shall be attached to the perimeter and lateral roof bows with 
a high strength structural Methacrylate adhesive with a tensile strength with a minimum 
2,150 PSI and a tensile modulus of at least 157,090 PSI.  The material shall be applied full 
length to every structural member prior to assembly and then cured in a vacuum bonding 
process to provide even and consistent adhesion of the roof skin to the structural extrusions.  
The use of screws, rivets, VHB tape or other mechanical fasteners be used to attach the skin 
to the lateral roof bows.   
 
 
7.3 ROOF BOWS: The lateral roof bows shall be 2” x 2” x .125” primary and 1" x 2" x 
.125” 6005A-T61 secondary extruded structural aluminum tubing.  These structures shall be 
MIG welded together to form the body's "roll cage". These structural members shall be 
located so that the roof skin is supported on a minimum "center" distance of 14 inches.  The 
roof bows shall interconnect with the roof side rails and be continuously welded at all contact 
points.  In no case shall a lateral roof bow have free span of more than 42 inches. There 
shall be eleven (11) .125” aluminum plates welded into the roof structure to facilitate 
mounting of the patient compartment dome lights. There shall also be .250” aluminum plates 
welded into the roof structure to facilitate mounting of the overhead grab rail and a cargo net 
at the head of the squad bench.  There shall be 1” x 2” x .125” tubing welded into the roof 
structure to provide secure mounting support for four CPI model 2008 folding IV hanger. 
 
  
7.4 ROOF CORNERS:  The roof rail extrusions shall be welded together along the roof 
bow mating walls at the corners.  In addition, the outer surfaces of the roof rail extrusions 
shall be continuously M.I.G. welded to cast aluminum corner castings.  The castings shall 
have integral flanges behind the weld sites to interlock the joint. These extrusions shall be 
attached and sealed along their entire length with a high strength acrylic adhesive, Lord 406-
17 or equivalent. 
 
 
8.0 DOOR STRUCTURE 
 
8.1 DOOR SKIN:  The door skin shall be .090 thick 5052-H32 aluminum sheet CNC cut 
and formed to create a robust, crevice free environment to mirror the mating surface of the 
door jamb extrusions and to provide optimum paint adhesion and corrosion resistance.  The 
formed edges shall not have elongation cracks due to forming but shall have edges uniformly 
rounded for strength and aesthetic appeal. The forming process will produce a door with an 
integral surface for mounting a pliable air core rubberized neoprene gasket around the full 
perimeter of the door that will seat and seal against the mating surface on the door jamb.  
Each door shall have a one-inch finished hole to be fitted with a black plastic, snap-in plug. 
The purpose of this hole, located in the door edge adjacent to the paddle handle, shall be to 
provide easy access to the paddle handle internal mechanism for periodic lubrication.  The 
CNC process will provide the cut-out for windows, latches, door panel mounting holes and 
hinge mounting points all machined into the finished raw door.  The CNC cut fold and weld 
process provides a guaranteed consistent tolerance within 1/5,000th of an inch, which yields 
a finished product that is consistently repeatable and easily replaceable in the event of 
damage. 
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 16 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

8.2 DOOR PANELS: The inside door panels shall be made of .090” aluminum sheet 
laminated to match the interior of the unit.  The lower approximate ¼ of the panel surface 
shall have a smooth aluminum kick panel installed to protect the lower portion of the door.  
Exposed, raw, sheared, unfinished sheet-metal edges are not acceptable.   The panels shall 
be fastened to the door with Phillips head stainless-steel, #10-32 machine screws with 
rubber washers to assist in cushioning the impact of door.  There shall be a 10” x 20” 
aluminum diamond plate kick panel installed along the lower edge of each door. 
 
 
8.3 DOOR JAMB:  The door jamb shall be an extruded aluminum extrusion measuring 
approximately 2.725” x 3” x .1875” wall thickness to accommodate rigid fastening of 
compartment door components.  The corners of the extruded door jamb shall be CNC 
mitered, fixture fit and welded full perimeter to hold the door opening square.  The mounting 
and access points for the Nader pins, hinges and cage nuts shall be CNC routed for 
precision and repetitive consistency.  The door jamb shall have a full perimeter flange that 
shall be secured to the body side skin with 3M panel bond adhesive rated at no less than 
2,150PSI.  The jamb shall also be secured with ¼” x 20 Type “F” self-tapping, stainless-steel 
sheet metal screws installed around the full perimeter of the framed door opening into the 
wall structure that is welded into place around the door opening in the side wall structure.  
The jamb shall be CNC to accommodate the consistent placement of the TriMark cage nuts 
used to mount the Nader pins and for consistently locating the door hinge. 
 
 
8.4 HINGE:  All doors shall have stainless-steel, continuous, piano hinges.  The pin 
diameter shall be .250”and staked into place to prevent drifting out of the hinge leaves.  The 
knuckle lengths shall be 1”.  Alternating mounting slots shall be incorporated in the hinge to 
facilitate fine adjustment. The hinge attachment bolts shall be ¼” x 20 x 1” long stainless-
steel Type F pan head screws.  The screws shall be spaced 4 inches apart on each leaf for 
the full length of the hinge.  The tapping points along the door and jamb shall be designed in 
and CNC placed for consistently repetitive production and ease of replacement.  The hinges 
for each individual door shall be identically cut for all common door heights and the CNC 
process used to fabricate the door and jamb shall insure that all the door components are 
easily replaceable and interchangeable. 
 
 
8.5 LATCHES:  All exterior door latches shall be TriMark two stage, rotary type latches 
with and OEM installed emergency release mechanism that meet FMVSS 206 requirements 
for door locks and door retention components.  The latches shall be through bolted to the 
door with 5/16 UNC countersink, machine type bolts and lock nuts that comply with the latch 
manufactures requirements.  All entry doors shall have two rotary latches per door.  To 
assure uniform latch timing and functional door reliability, only straight, 3/16” diameter rods 
shall connect the latches to the handle.   All latch timing shall be set at the handle site.  Other 
than at the latch site, bends in door latch rods are NOT acceptable. 
 
The Nader pins for each door latch shall be installed through the door jamb into TriMark cage 
nut assemblies designed to be through bolted into the door jamb extrusion with grade 8 
machine type bolts per the manufacturer’s requirements.  The cage nut assembly will support 
the mounting nut should the Nader pin need to be removed for maintenance or service. 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 17 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

All single, short compartment doors shall have one rotary latch.  All double doors or tall 
compartment doors shall have two rotary latches per door.  All Nader pins shall be headed to 
prevent the door(s) from opening under impact. 
 
The upper and lower rotary latches on each patient compartment entry door shall be 
equipped with an emergency release cable with an accessible handle secured to the interior 
door panel.  The emergency release is for use in the event of an accident or paddle handle 
failure and can be used to open any of the individual entry doors. 
 
 
8.6 EXTERIOR HANDLES:  TriMark powder coated black finished, free floating exterior 
paddle handles shall be provided to open all doors.   Blind fasteners shall be used to fasten 
the handles to the door.  Exposed fasteners to the outside are unacceptable for security 
reasons. Paddle handles shall have an isolation gasket between the paddle body and the 
door skin.   All door skin surfaces shall be CNC cut to produce a uniform fit and shall be 
painted prior to installation of the hardware.  The handle shall be long enough to 
accommodate four gloved fingers for door actuation. All paddles on single doors and leading 
double doors shall be locking type and keyed the same. Trailing doors shall have non-locking 
paddle handles mounted on the interior door panel.  The inner side of all exterior handles 
shall have a strip of 3M Safety Grip material installed to provide a slip resistant surface in 
bad weather. When locked, the paddle handle shall “float” to prevent unnecessary pressure 
being applied which may damage the handle and function as a signal that the handle is 
locked. 
 
The rotary latches for each door shall be fit with metal rods, individually clipped to both the 
latches and the paddle handles.  The rods shall be designed to be adjustable; however, they 
will be secured when adjusted so that they cannot voluntarily move.  The door latching 
assemblies shall be fully tested to comply with FMVSS 206 requirements including 30G 
testing, no exceptions.  A copy of the testing certificate validating the door system and testing 
shall be provided with the bid.  
 
 
8.7 INTERIOR HANDLES:  TriMark powder coated black interior paddle handles shall be 
supplied on all module entry doors. A Lock/Unlock lever shall be installed and be clearly 
marked Lock/Unlock. As a safety feature, the interior paddle handles on the curbside and 
rear entry doors shall be capable of unlocking and opening the door without switching the 
Lock/Unlock lever.  The interior handles shall be chrome plated. 
 
 
8.8 WINDOWS:  All entry doors shall be equipped with an upper window.   The curbside 
entry door shall have a fixed pane window with a nominal area of 320 square inches.  The 
rear access doors shall each have a fixed pane window with a nominal area of 320 square 
inches.  All windows shall have anodized frames and blind inner mounting ring screws, 
fastened from the inside. The exterior portion of the frame shall have a full perimeter seal 
mated against the door skin.  All glass shall be tinted safety glass compliant with FMVSS 
205. 
 
 
8.9 DOOR CHECKS:  All compartment doors and the curbside entry doors shall be 
equipped with a heavy-duty gas strut door check (hold open).  The gas strut shall keep 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 18 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

positive pressure on the door in the open and closed position. Door check brackets shall bolt 
through an overhead structure to provide a solid attachment to the doorframe and through a 
.250” support plate welded into the door.  All doors shall open 90 to 110 degrees, unless 
otherwise specified by the end user. 
 
Rear access doors shall open at least 150 degrees.   The door checks shall be 2-piece, 
heavy-duty, cast aluminum, grabber type.  The door shall have a ½” thick cast aluminum loop 
that plunges into a positive rubber/cast aluminum socket mounted on the body. Each 
component of the door checks shall be insulated from the skin with a rubber gasket. Each 
door-check component shall be rigidly mounted on the door or body with ¼” x 20 x 1” 
stainless-steel machine screws through .250” plates permanently mounted behind the skin to 
stabilize the grabber. 
 
 
8.10 ENTRY DOOR ASSIST HANDLES: All entry doors shall be equipped with two-point, 
1.25” diameter stainless-steel, and “ergonomic-style” grab handles to aid in door closure and 
entry assistance. The handles shall run horizontally, directly above the inside door handle. 
The door handles shall be fastened directly to the horizontal door structure that is welded into 
the door assembly. 
 
 
8.11 DRIP RAILS: A drip rail shall be provided over each compartment to prevent water 
roll off from spilling into the opened compartment door.  Drip rails shall be attached with 
double-sided adhesive tape for ease of replacement. Full height compartments shall be 
exempt because the perimeter roof rail drip rails cover these compartments.  
 
 
9.0 COMPARTMENT STRUCTURE & CONFIGURATION 
 
9.1 MATERIALS:  All exterior compartment walls, back and floor shall be constructed of 
smooth aluminum and coated with a rubberized polyurethane coating, Herculiner or 
equivalent. The ceilings and floor components shall be CNC cut, formed and welded to 
provide overlapping joints. The floors and ceilings are both welded and seam sealed as 
necessary to the walls and back prior to applying the rubberized coating.  The compartment 
shall be designed so that the floor to the compartment will be below the lower edge of the 
doorjamb.   
 
 
9.2 COMPARTMENT CONFIGURATION:  The exterior compartments on this vehicle 
shall be as follows: 
 

9.2.1 Compartment #1:  The Streetside front compartment will be designated 
as the Oxygen Storage compartment.  The compartment dimensions will be 
approximately 13.75”W x 63.75”H x 13.5”D with a single door held open by a 
rubber door grabber.  The compartment will be coated with a rubberized 
polyurethane coating to both reduce transfer of noise to the patient 
compartment interior and to facilitate cleaning.   

 
A universal cylinder retention bracket suitable for an “M” tank shall be 
provided to secure a vertically stored cylinder.  The retention bracket shall be 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 19 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

through bolted to the compartment wall backed by ½” aluminum plate with four 
3/8-16 grade 8 bolts with grade 8 nuts. The retention bracket shall be 
powdercoated steel and remain rust free for the life of the ambulance. The 
oxygen cylinder shall be attached to the bracket with three (3) spring-buckle, 
webbed retention straps. The retention bracket and mounting structure shall 
be tested and in full compliance with SAE J-3043 requirements. 

  
9.2.2  Compartment #2:  The Streetside middle compartment will be designated as a 

stair chair storage compartment.  The compartment dimensions will be 
approximately 30.75”W x 34.75”H x 13.75”D with a single hinged door held 
open by a single gas strut. The interior of the compartment will be coated with 
a rubberized polyurethane coating to both reduce transfer of noise to the 
patient compartment interior and to facilitate cleaning. 

 
This compartment shall have 5” drop floor to accommodate the storage of a 
stair chair. 

 
9.2.3  Compartment #3:  The Streetside rear compartment will be designated as a 

backboard storage compartment.  The compartment dimensions will be 
approximately 13.675”W x 76.75”H x 17.5”D with a single hinged door.  The 
interior of the compartment will be coated with a rubberized polyurethane 
coating to both reduce transfer of noise to the patient compartment interior 
and to facilitate cleaning.  

 
This compartment shall have two equipment straps for backboard retention. 
 

9.2.4  Compartment #4/5:  The Curbside front compartment will be designated as 
access to the ALS cabinet (#4) in the upper portion of the compartment with a 
sealed battery access storage area (#5) below.  There will be a single access 
door to provide technicians with full access to equipment stored on the lower 
and middle interior cabinets without lifting or pulling equipment over any 
extrusion separating the upper and lower compartment sections. The door will 
be held open by a rubber grabber.  The battery compartment dimensions will 
be approximately 15.5”W x 18”H x 15”D.  The interior of the battery storage 
compartment will be coated with a rubberized polyurethane coating and will be 
vented below the chassis floor line.  The ALS compartment access area will 
be approximately 18”W x 58”H.  

 
 

9.2.5  Compartment #6:  The Curbside rear compartment will be designated as 
miscellaneous storage.  The compartment dimensions will be approximately 
32.875”W x 25.875”H x 12”D with a single door held open by a single gas 
strut. The interior of the compartment will be coated with a rubberized 
polyurethane coating to both reduce transfer of noise to the patient 
compartment interior and to facilitate cleaning.   

 
 
9.3 VENTILATION: All exterior compartments shall have louvered, automotive style 
ventilation to the exterior, underside of the vehicle.   The oxygen cylinder compartment shall 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 20 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

be louvered through the door with a minimum of 9 square inches of free-vented area in 
compliance with KKK-A-1822F, 3.11.3 as well as the underbody ventilation.   
 
 
9.4 STEP WELL:  An intermediate, full depth step to the patient compartment floor shall 
be provided at the curbside entry door. The step well shall include a smooth aluminum plate 
step body with a Dri-Deck insert step and rubberized polyurethane walls. The step insert 
shall provide a step surface that is flush with the lower jamb of the side entry door. The step 
shall have a tread dimension of not less than 10 inches.  The step well shall be illuminated by 
an LED light head located on the forward wall of the step well.  There will be a formed 
stainless-steel threshold trim installed around the upper edge of the step well.  The threshold 
will be installed with a high strength sealant adhesive to eliminate the need for mounting 
screw penetrations and to provide a permanent full perimeter seal.  3M safety step material 
shall be installed along the top of the threshold to provide a slip resistant surface. 
 
 
10.0 ANTI-CORROSION/ELECTROLYSIS 
 
10.1 EXTERIOR FASTENERS:  Dissimilar metal contact is known to cause corrosion at 
fastener sites.  All exterior device fasteners, especially light fasteners, shall not contact the 
painted aluminum surface.  All fasteners that are NOT aluminum or plastic bodied are 
considered Dissimilar.  Each hole drilled after the prime and paint process shall be treated 
with an Electrolysis Corrosion Control compound prior to installation of the mounting screws.   
All mounting screws shall be stainless steel and shall be coated with the Electrolysis 
Corrosion Control compound prior to installation.   
 
 
11.0 REAR BUMPER 
 
11.1 FRAMING:  The rear step bumper shall meet or exceed current KKK-A-1822 
requirement 3.9.6 and be compliant with AMD Standard 018. The bumper shall be a 
minimum 1/8” welded tubular steel frame with a ¼” flange designed to be bolted directly to 
the chassis frame without cutting, drilling or welding.  The frame shall be bolted with a 
minimum four ½” steel bolts, washers and nylon lock washers on each side. In addition, the 
bumper will be configured so that the bottom of the bumper shall be mounted below the body 
skirt-line. The steel bumper frame shall be powder coated black for a durable, corrosive 
resistant finish. 
 
   
11.2 CENTER STEP:  A flip up step shall be provided to facilitate access to the patient 
compartment floor loading and unloading the stretcher.   The step shall be as wide as the 
rear access door jamb.   The step shall have a grip strut surface for aggressive traction.  
Snow and ice shall not compromise the level of traction on the center step. A stainless-steel 
piano hinge shall have a staked in, ¼” diameter pin, 1” knuckles and Type-F ¼”x 20 
stainless-steel bolts every four inches. 
 
 
11.3 OUTER BUMPER PODS:  The step bumper shall have an aesthetically pleasing 
appearance.  The outer bumper pods shall be polished aluminum diamond plate.  The outer 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 21 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

corners shall be rounded to eliminate sharp corners around the working area.  Each pod 
shall have a heavy-duty rubber rear dock bumper attached to further protect the bumper.  
 
 
12.0 BODY PROTECTION 
 
12.1 FRONT OF BODY:  The front of the body shall have 12” high protection plates made 
of aluminum diamond plate fitted between the contour of the cab and the corner posts.  The 
corner posts shall also have 12” high formed diamond plate protection panels. 
 
 
12.2 REAR OF BODY:  An aluminum diamond plate kick panel shall run from rear corner 
post to corner post and house a recessed, cast aluminum, license plate holder. The kick 
panel shall be 12” in height and shall extend downward from below the rear doorjamb to the 
bottom edge of the body. The corner posts shall have 12” high formed diamond plate 
protection panels. 
 
 
12.3 LOWER BODY RUB RAILS: The entire skirt-line of the body, forward and aft of the 
rear wheels shall have extruded aluminum “C” channel skirt rails to protect the edge of the 
lower body. Each rail shall be chamfered 45 degrees at each end. The rails shall be mounted 
with .250” x 20 stainless steel, counter sunk machine screws with a 3/16” neoprene spacer 
between the rail and the body.  There will be a 3/4” reflective stripe installed down the center 
of the rail so that the hardware shall not have exposed fasteners when viewed from the 
standing position. 
 
 
12.4 REAR ENTRY DOOR THRESHOLD: At the rear entry doors, a full width, formed, 
stainless-steel jamb protection plate shall be provided to prevent the cot frames from 
chipping the body paint.  The threshold shall extend in a single piece from 6” inside the rear 
door opening along the surface edge down to 1/2" below the bottom of the lower edge of the 
doorjamb.  The threshold will be mounted with a sealant/ adhesive to eliminate the need for 
screws and to provide a sealed edge at the floor level.  3M Safety Walk materials will be 
installed along the full width of the threshold step surface to provide a safe, slip resistant step 
area. 
 
 
12.5 SIDE ENTRY DOOR STEPWELL/THRESHOLD:  A rubberized urethane coated, 
smooth aluminum dual step shall be installed at the side entry door.  The threshold transition 
between the side entry step well and the patient compartment floor shall be formed, bright 
aluminum diamond plate.  The threshold shall have a high-quality anti-skid material applied 
in full width strips to provide a slip resistant step into the patient compartment.   
  
 
12.6 COMPARTMENT THRESHOLD TRIM:  There will be formed stainless-steel threshold 
trim installed around the upper edge of all the exterior compartment doors.  The threshold will 
be installed with a high strength sealant adhesive to eliminate the need for mounting screw 
penetrations and to provide a permanent full perimeter seal.   
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 22 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

12.7 MODULE FENDER FLARES:  The rear fender flares shall be extruded rubber. The 
fender flares shall be through bolted around the wheel well opening with ¼”-20 stainless-
steel pan head bolts coated with an anti-corrosion chemical. 
 
 
13.0 CABINETRY 
 
13.1 SUBSTRATES: The interior cabinets and components shall be constructed of high 
quality, domestic, A-C grade plywood. The exposed layers shall be hardwood on both sides 
of the sheet.  The layers shall be free of voids between layers.  Cabinet interiors shall be 
made from 3/8” or 1/2” thick, 5-ply plywood determined by the application for each.  Bench 
lids, doors and the primary cabinet fascia shall be made from 3/4” thick, 7-ply plywood.    
 
 
13.2 CABINET INTERIOR FINISH: Cabinet interior shall be laminated with white colored, 
high impact, abrasion resistant laminate. The contact adhesive shall be a high bond contact 
adhesive, specifically designed to bond plastic laminates to wood. Painted cabinet interiors 
are not acceptable. The interior corners of the cabinets shall be sealed to prevent 
contamination and to facilitate cleaning. 
 
 
13.3 FLOOR AND SUBSTRATE: The sub floor of the module shall be 3/4” thick, 7-ply, 
exterior grade, A-C plywood.  The vinyl floor covering shall be a Lonseal solid vinyl material.  
 
The Lonseal flooring shall be Lonplate II Gunmetal 424. 
 
 
13.4 LAMINATE:  A high impact, phenol backed, high impact, and abrasion resistant 
laminate shall be used. The laminate shall be selected from the ambulance manufacturer’s 
samples.  The material shall be standard grade. This material as well as all interior 
components shall meet or exceed F.M.V.S.S. #302 (Burn Rate of Interior Components).     
 
The laminate color shall be high-gloss white. 
 
 
13.5 CABINET ASSEMBLY: To maximize fastener bite, cabinet substrate parts shall be 
stapled with pneumatic fired equipment. The length of the fastener shall be at least 2.25 
times the thickness of the material being pierced.  Staples shall be placed on two-inch 
intervals along the corner joints.  In addition to staples, the entire cabinet assembly must be 
screwed together with a minimum #8 screw size and a length not less than 2.25 times the 
thickness of the pierced substrate.  Screw heads shall be counter-sink type and driven flush.  
Cabinet fascia shall be CNC cut or drop cut to eliminate the use of cleats or stick built 
components.  The use of stick built components to create cabinet components will not be 
acceptable. 
 
 
13.6 CABINET TRIM: All trim throughout the interior conversion shall be anodized 
aluminum or formed stainless steel.  All exposed corners within the patient compartment 
shall have either padded or rounded corners. Excess adhesive-sealant shall be removed. 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 23 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

Intermittent placement of screws is not acceptable due to cleaning difficulty inherent in screw 
head design. 
  
 
13.7 FIT AND FINISH: Mitered joints throughout the interior conversion shall have a gap-
less, hairline fit. Openings and misalignments at the corners are not acceptable.  Misapplied 
trim to cover manufacturing mistakes is not an acceptable solution to poor design and/or 
workmanship. Doors shall be warp free. Sliding Lexan door assemblies shall be scratch free 
and all edges shall be smooth and free of saw marks and sharp edges. Cabinet to cabinet 
joints shall not require welting to create a finished/well-fit look. Cabinets shall fit tightly 
against the ceiling without the use of vinyl covered trim pieces to cover the seam between 
cabinets and ceiling.  The fine line seam between the cabinets and the ceiling will be sealed 
with a flexible, permanent sealant/adhesive. 
 
 
13.8 FUNCTION:  Doors and drawers shall fit the opening. Flush fitting doors shall have 
even door to opening spacing around the perimeter. All doors shall open and close without 
binding.  Drawers shall slide in and out freely, without drag.  All drawers shall be mounted on 
side mounted, full-extension drawer slides, rated at no less than 100 pounds per pair. All 
hinged wood-core doors shall have positive latches.  
 
 
13.9 SLIDING POLYCARBONATE DOORS: All interior cabinets requiring the sliding, 
transparent polycarbonate door assembly shall have a mitered, anodized aluminum frame. 
The polycarbonate material shall be ¼” thick. 
 
Each sliding door shall be fitted with an anodized, full height extruded aluminum door handle. 
The door pull extrusion shall also reinforce the ends of the doors.  The door track/frame 
extrusion shall incorporate a flocked natural rubber track insert to prevent the doors from 
sliding free during transit. All extrusions shall be anodized. 
 
 
13.10 HINGED ACRYLIC DOORS: All interior cabinets requiring a hinged, transparent door 
assembly shall have a ½” smoked acrylic door with either a full-length stainless-steel piano 
hinge or a combination of Southco constant torque hinges and a latch to secure each door. 
 
 
14.0 CABINET CONFIGURATION 
 
14.1 STREET SIDE:  The cabinet configuration and design shall provide a product that 
has been tested and is in full compliance with the current KKK-A-1822, AMD and SAE test 
requirements.  The primary configuration of the streetside main wall will include a CPR seat. 
The cabinets shall be easily accessible over the primary cot. The cabinet configuration and 
dimensions shall be described as follows:  

 
14.1.1  Cabinet “A1” shall be located at the upper rear of the CPR seat. The cabinet 
shall have sliding Polycarbonate doors, and shall measure approximately 9.75”H x 
19.75”W x 15”D.   
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 24 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

14.1.2  Cabinet “A2” shall be located at the mid-level rear of the CPR seat. The 
cabinet shall have sliding Polycarbonate doors and one (1) adjustable shelf. Cabinet 
A2 shall measure approximately 21.75”H x 27”W x 15”D.   

 
14.1.3  Cabinet “A3” shall be located at the low-level rear of the CPR seat. The 
cabinet shall have sliding Polycarbonate doors and one (1) adjustable shelf. Cabinet 
A3 shall measure approximately 21.75”H x 27”W x 15”D.   

 
14.1.4  The street side CPR seating area shall be approximately 32”W.  The CPR 
seat shall include an EVS V-4 four-point seatbelt assembly.  The seat base shall be 
equipped with a TriMark near flush mount black latch and hinged lid to access 
storage below the seat.  There shall be a formed, welded and powder coated white 
cover cap on the interior of the latch to prevent damage to any item stored below the 
seat. 
 
14.1.5  Cabinet “C” shall be located above the action area. This cabinet will 
hereinafter be described as the “action area overhead cabinet”. The cabinet shall 
have sliding Polycarbonate doors and shall include one (1) adjustable shelf.  Cabinet 
“C” shall be approximately 16.75”H x 35.25”L x 15”D.  

 
 
14.2 CURB SIDE:  A two position squad bench shall be installed.  Two sets of EVS V-4 
four-point belts shall be supplied.   The belts shall restrain two seated occupants or one 
secondary patient, on a back board.  All seat belts and anchorages shall comply with 
F.M.V.S.S. 209 and 210. A padded back and head rest shall be supplied for all seated 
personnel along the squad bench. The cabinet configuration and dimensions shall comply 
with the drawings attached. Squad bench lid shall utilize gas struts as support when opened 
and shall have a positive paddle latch to hold the lid in the closed position. 

 
Located in the forward section of the squad bench shall be a separate storage area for 
sharps and waste containers. Access to these containers shall be through a flip up 
Polycarbonate lid – red in color and marked with the “BIOHAZARD” symbol. 

 
 

14.3 GLOVE BOX STORAGE:  Curbside overhead glove box storage for three boxes shall 
be located above the side entry door.  The storage box will have a hinged cover with oval 
access openings for and there shall be a positive latch located at each end of the cover 
plate.  The cabinet shall have a 1” high-density foam cushion pad located across the bottom 
for head protection when entering or leaving the vehicle. 

 
 

14.4 SQUAD BENCH NET:  A removable retention cargo net shall be mounted at the head 
of the squad bench, mounted to tapping plates in the floor, wall, and ceiling. 
 
 
14.5 RIGHT FRONT CABINET:  The right front cabinet is hereinafter known as “ALS 
Cabinet”.  The ALS cabinet shall be finished in color-keyed laminate. The cabinet shall be 
configured for ease of access from either the interior or the exterior of the ambulance unless 
otherwise stated below.  
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 25 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

14.4.1 The upper cabinet configuration shall house the HVAC and return air filter.  
There shall be a removable air distribution panel and a separate return air grille with 
HEPA air filter. 
 
14.4.2 The upper intermediate cabinet shall measure 10”H x 23.5”W x 20.5”D, and 
shall be configured with dual hinged solid doors with Southco M1 latches.  There shall 
be a cylinder lock on the right door, and the left door shall not be able to open unless 
the right door is open.  This section shall have inside access only. 

 
14.4.3 The lower cabinet shall measure 31.375”H x 23.5”W x 20.5”D, and shall have 
dual hinged acrylic doors with Eberhart two-point latches with paddle handles, as well 
as one (1) adjustable shelf.  This section shall have both inside and outside access. 
 

 
14.5 BULKHEAD CABINETRY:  The upper bulkhead cabinets shall include an electrical 
cabinet and a storage cabinet above the walk-through.  The electrical cabinet shall be 
equipped with a ¾” solid wood door hinged on the right-hand side, with (2) louvered vents 
and a locking flip latch.  The storage cabinet shall be equipped with a ¾” solid wood door 
hinged on the left-hand side and a LifeDefender push to close latch and LifeDefender lock. 
 
 
14.6 ACTION AREA COUNTERTOP:  The countertop surfaces shall be color coordinated 
laminate material. The edge of the action area shall have a lip to prevent items from sliding to 
the floor.  The action area shall be forward of the CPR seat will hereinafter be called the 
EMSP Action Area.  It shall be approximately 36”W. 
 
 
14.7 TECHNICIAN’S SEAT:  The Technician’s seat shall be an EVS 1880 steel-framed, 
high-back contoured style captain’s chair with a V-4 four-point belt and child safety feature. 
The seat shall match the other upholstery within the patient compartment. The seat base 
shall be a black, powder coated storage base.  The Technician’s seat shall be fastened with 
Grade 8 fasteners through the top of the seat base that is secured with Grade 8 fasteners 
through the floor and through 1/2” aluminum mounting plates with flat washers and Grade 8 
nylon locking nuts.  The technician’s seat and seat base shall comply with FMVSS 207/210. 
 
 
14.8 PASS-THRU CABINETS: Located to the left of and below the pass-thru of the module 
behind the Technician’s Seat shall be two additional storage cabinets. These cabinets shall 
each be as follows: 
 

14.8.1 Upper cabinet “D” shall be the cabinet left of the pass-thru.  It will be 
approximately 23.5”H x 6.75”W x 1625”D.  The cabinet will have a single hinged solid 
door with a LifeDefender push to close latch.  This cabinet shall be configured for 
general storage. 

 
14.8.2 Below the pass-thru shall be an electrical overflow cabinet.  It shall have a 
louvered door and a thumb-latch. 
 

 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 26 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

14.9 OCCUPANT HEAD CLEARANCE ZONES: All designated occupant seating positions 
in the vehicle described in the Specification shall be in compliance with AMD Standard 025- 
Measuring Guidelines: Occupant Head Clearance Zones. 
 
 
14.10 I.V. HANGERS:  There shall be two (2) flush-mount, CPI Model #2008 IV hangers 
mounted, (1) at the torso area over the cot, and (1) at the torso area over the squad bench.  
They shall be mounted so that in the event of a forward collision, the IV hanger will fold up 
upon impact. 
 
 
14.11 INVENTORY CONTROL:  The four (4) sliding cabinets on the interior streetside wall 
shall have inventory control footman’s loops near each handle, along with a hole drilled in 
each handle for inventor control tabs. 
 
 
15.0 UPHOLSTERY 
 
15.1 UPHOLSTERY MATERIALS:  All padding and upholstered seating shall be covered 
in vacuum formed vinyl. Sewn, exposed seams in the seat covers and cushions are not 
acceptable.   
 
The color of the upholstery shall be Cobalt Blue.        
 
 
15.2 SEAT / BACKREST CORE MATERIAL: The foam shall meet Federal Specification 
KKK-A-1822F 3.11.4. All seating and trim materials shall meet or exceed FMVSS 302- 
Flammability of Interior Materials.  
 
 
16.0 INTERIOR HARDWARE 
 
16.1 OVERHEAD ASSIST RAIL: There shall be one (1) assist rail mounted in the ceiling 
area of the patient compartment.  This rail shall be naturally accessible to assist working 
technicians in maintaining their balance. The rails shall meet or exceed Federal Specification 
current KKK-A-1822 requirement and comply with AMD Standard 008- Patient Compartment 
Grab Rail Static Load Test. The rails shall be 1.25” diameter, 100% brushed stainless-steel 
radius formed at each end and 72” long.  The assist rails shall be mounted with 1/4" x 20 
stainless-steel machine screws tapped into 1/4” plates welded into the ceiling structure. The 
rail shall be located over the primary patient. 
 
 
16.2 ENTRY DOOR ASSIST RAILS:  This rail shall be naturally accessible to assist 
working technicians entering and exiting the vehicle. The rail shall meet or exceed Federal 
Specification KKK-A-1822F. The rail shall be 1.25” diameter, 100% brushed stainless-steel 
radius formed at each end and 14” long.  The assist rail shall be mounted with 1/4" x 20 
stainless-steel machine screws tapped into 1/4” plates welded into the door support 
structure.  The rail shall be horizontally located just below the window level on each entry 
door. 
  



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 27 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

 
16.3 REAR WALL ASSIST RAIL:  There shall be a knurled 12” brushed stainless steel 
assist rail with a 30* offset mounted vertically on the wall inside primary rear entry door to 
assist with entering and exiting the unit.  The rail will be bolted through the wall with 1/4" x 20 
machine screws and into tapping plates. 
 
 
16.4 SIDE ENTRY ASSIST RAIL:  There shall be a knurled 12” brushed stainless steel 
assist rail with a 30* offset mounted vertically on the wall at the head of the squad bench just 
inside the side entry door to assist with entering and exiting the unit.  The rail will be bolted 
through the wall with 1/4" x 20 machine screws and into tapping plates. 
 
 
16.5 STRYKER POWER LOAD SYSTEM:  The bidder shall install a new Stryker Power 
Load system in the center of the floor. 
 
 
17.0 OXYGEN, VACUUM SYSTEMS 
 
17.1 MAIN OXYGEN SUPPLY:  Accommodation shall be made to carry and secure one 
(1) “M”-sized oxygen cylinder. The cylinder and its universal retention components shall be 
located in the streetside front exterior compartment as specified in 9.3 of this Specification.    
         
The Oxygen System shall also include a 50 PSI, pre-set Oxygen Regulator.  
 
The retention bracket shall be positioned so that the cylinder’s main valve and regulator are 
visible through a Lexan viewing window in the forward end of the EMSP Action Area. 
 
 
17.2 OXYGEN OUTLETS:  Three oxygen outlets shall be provided: 
 

Two (2) Oxygen outlets shall be provided in the EMSP Action Area panel.  The outlet 
latches shall be Ohio style, quick connects.   
 
One (1) Oxygen outlet shall be located on the wall above the forward section of the 
squad bench. Outlet latch shall be Ohio style, quick-connect. 

 
 
17.3 OXYGEN HOSES:  All oxygen system service hoses, fittings and devices shall be 
made of non-ferrous materials. Hoses used to pipe Medical Oxygen shall be ¼” inside 
diameter with an abrasion resistant, green colored, electrically conductive outer jacket. All 
hoses, connectors and outlets shall withstand a system test pressure of 200-PSI test as 
prescribed in Federal Specification KKK-A-1822F 4.4.1 and AMD Standard 015- Ambulance 
Main Oxygen System Test. Each ambulance shall be tested. “Type Testing/Certification” is 
not acceptable.  
 
 
17.4 VACUUM (SUCTION) SYSTEM:  A 12-Volt DC electric vacuum pump shall be 
installed in the upper left-hand corner of compartment #2.  The system shall meet 
performance guidelines set forth by Federal Specification KKK-A-1822 requirement 3.12.2 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 28 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

and AMD Standard 021- Aspirator System Test, Primary Patient. An SSCOR vacuum 
regulator and gauge panel shall be installed in the action area control panel.  The vacuum 
regulator shall control the vacuum pressure delivered to a collection system with a 
disposable collection canister.  The Vacuum gauge shall not be mounted on the collection 
canister but on the Action Area wall as an integral part of the vacuum control panel and be 
hard plumbed to the electric vacuum pump. Each ambulance shall be tested. “Type 
Testing/Certification” is not acceptable.  
 
 
17.5 PORTABLE OXYGEN CYLINDER BRACKETS:  One (1) CPI OA1201-D-1 crash 
stable strapless portable oxygen cylinder bracket shall be supplied and mounted against the 
ALS cabinet in the pass-thru, 5”H from the floor to aid in cleaning. 
  
 
18.0 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM – 12-Volt Direct Current 
 
The 12 VDC Electrical system installed in this vehicle must comply with AMD Standard 005- 
12-Volt DC Electrical System Test. This electrical System shall be covered under the 
manufacturer’s Warranty for a period of 72 months (6 yrs.) or 72,000 miles which ever shall 
occur first.  The electrical system relays, breakers and control modules shall be located on 
the upper bulkhead wall behind the technician’s seat in a cabinet with a locking door. 
 
 
18.1 BODY GROUNDING:   A minimum of (2) two 2” wide braided ground straps shall be 
bolted through the chassis frame and the floor structure of the modular body.   The bolts shall 
be 3/8” diameter.  A flat washer shall be provided under the head of the bolt, over the strap 
lug and an internal tooth lock washer shall be installed under the lug to preclude loosening. 
Chassis frames with asphalt/wax coating or E-coating shall have grounding sites prepared by 
lightly grinding or sanding the coating away to reveal raw metal.      
 
 
18.2 GENERAL GROUNDS:   To comply with federal specification KKK-A-1822F 3.7.12 
plus enhance ground quality and reduce trouble shooting time, all devices wired within the 
ambulance conversion shall be centrally grounded on a ground bar located in the Electrical 
Cabinet. The ground bar is grounded to the chassis frame by a 2AWG cable and attached in 
the same manner as the braided body ground cables.  Each device shall have a separate 
ground wire routed to a central buss bar then grounded via fine strand cable to the module 
body.      
 
 
18.3 12 VOLT WIRE:  All wires within the ambulance harnesses shall meet Federal 
Specification KKK-A-1822F 3.7.2 and 3.7.2.1.   All wire insulation shall be GXL cross-linked 
polyethylene.   
 
Permanent wire identification and wire function shall be stamped on 4” centers along the full 
length of the wire.  Wire conductors shall be stranded copper.   Single strand copper 
conductors are not acceptable due to vibration concerns and stiffness which promotes 
loosening of the terminals. 
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 29 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

18.4 WIRE PROTECTION:   All wire within the conversion shall be protected and run in 
split convoluted loom with a melting temperature of 300 degrees Fahrenheit.  All wire 
harnesses shall be clamped and routed to eliminate possibility of damage due to cut/chaffed 
wire.  Grommets made of rubber or plastic shall be used where harnesses pass through 
metal or wood. Large holes and irregular shaped wire passages shall use automotive edge 
trim to protect the wire conduit/loom. Wire harnesses shall be neatly clamped into protective 
routing areas away from heat sources, unfriendly edges or moving devices. 
  
 
18.5 CIRCUIT BREAKERS: All conversion 12VDC circuits shall be protected by non-
proprietary, manual reset, circuit breakers. The trip value for the breaker shall not exceed 
80% of the amperage rating of the weakest component in the circuit.  Branch circuit wire 
sizes shall be rated 125% of the expected load per KKK-A-1822F 3.7.2.1. 
  
 
18.6 12-VOLT DC OUTLETS:  Three (3) 12-volt DC, 20 Ampere, cigarette style outlets 
shall be supplied in the following locations:  
 

• Two (2) in the action area 
• One (1) in the upper section of lower ALS cabinet 

 
Each outlet shall be separately protected and shall be electrically isolated from other 
electrical functions on the vehicle.  The outlets shall be wired per Federal Specification KKK-
A-1822F 3.7.7.3. 
  
 
18.7 DUAL 2-AMP USB OUTLET:  There shall be a dual Vanner 2-amp USB charging 
receptacle mounted next to the 12-volt DC receptacle on the action area wall. 
 
 
18.8 STEALTH UNLOCK SWITCH:  A stealth door unlock switch shall be hidden in the 
grille of the cab. 
 
 
19.0 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM - 125-Volt Alternating Current 
 
19.1 The 125-Volt AC Electrical System described in this Specification shall comply with 
AMD Standard 009- 125-Volt AC Electrical Systems Test. This electrical System shall be 
covered under the manufacturer’s Warranty for a period of 72 months (6 yrs) or 72,000 miles 
which ever shall occur first. 
 
 
19.2 PRIMARY SHORELINE INLET:  A 125-volt, 20-amp Kussmaul Super Auto-eject 
shoreline inlet shall be provided on the module streetside, positioned forward of the 
streetside front compartment.  The inlet shall be yellow in color and shall be mounted on a 
removable stainless-steel plate for servicing.  
 
An indicator light shall be included to alert users when positive connection has been made. 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 30 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

This inlet shall supply power to all interior 125-volt outlets. The inlet shall be grounded to 
keep continuity with the G.F.I. breaker in the building in which the vehicle is housed or where 
it is most frequently connected to shore power.  The inlet shall have a spring-loaded, 
weatherproof cover.  The inlet must be a “male” plug configuration to accommodate the 
“female” plug on the shoreline cord.  A permanent, aluminized vinyl label, stating voltage and 
amperage shall be located above the inlet in compliance with KKK-A-1822F 3.7.8, 3.7.8.1. 
 
 
19.3 INVERTER PRE-WIRE:  The vehicle shall include a complete pre-wire for a 1200 
watt maximum 'UL' listed inverter with internal transfer relay and battery conditioner.  The 
pre-wire shall include a wired connection to the shoreline inlet and output wiring to all 
125VACoutlets provided in the vehicle. There shall be a single on/off switch located on the 
rear action panel. This pre-wiring shall be in accordance to KKK-A-1822F 3.7.8.3 and 
Section 250-6 (Portable and Vehicle Mounted Generators) of the National Electrical Code 
(NEC). 
 
  
19.4 BATTERY CHARGER: To provide protection for the vehicle’s battery system, a 12 
VDC, 45-amp battery charger wired to the vehicle battery system and to the 125VAC 
shoreline power system. (NOTE: If this agency specifies that an Inverter be installed, the 
Battery Charger requirement shall be deleted). 
 
 
19.5 125-Volt AC OUTLETS:  Two (2) 125-volt AC, hospital grade, straight blade outlets 
shall be provided in the following locations:  
 

• One (1) in the action area 
• One (1) in the upper section of lower ALS cabinet 

 
The outlets must be grounded and protected by a G.F.I. (Ground Fault Interrupter) breaker. 
The outlets must illuminate a green indicator light when power is applied to the outlet. 
  
 
20.0 ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
20.1 REAR AIR CONDITIONING:   The design of the environmental system is to provide 
optimal air flow and distribution of conditioned air to the module interior.  Conditioned air shall 
be discharged from one vent area and shall be distributed through five vents evenly spaced 
across the face of the upper section of the ALS cabinet.  The module shall have an 
additional, self-contained A/C evaporator unit complete with dual blower, brushless PWM 
motor driven, high output fans. The fans shall provide up to seven variable speeds and shall 
contain a 720 CFM fan. The A/C unit shall also incorporate a hot water heater core for heat.  
All heater hoses shall be 3/4 inch QVM approved Nomex for improved circulation.  Hot water 
flow shall be controlled by one (1) vacuum actuated inline water valves.  All A/C fittings shall 
be ferruled, banded, or snap ring type. 
 
The valves shall operate with the heater/defrost controls. The unit shall be rated at least 
32,000 British Thermal Units (BTU) in A/C Mode and 36,000 BTU in Heater Mode. The 
Vehicle A/C – Heater system must meet or exceed federal specification KKK-A-1822F 3.13.1 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 31 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

thru 3.13.3 and must be compliant with AMD Standards 011- Equipment Temperature Test, 
012- Interior Climate Control Test. 
 
 
20.2 REAR AC CONTROLS:  The digital thermostat control switch shall be located in the 
action area.  The thermostat shall control the On/Off function, temperature control and fan 
speed. 
 
 
20.3 HVAC SYSTEM INSTALLATION & WARRANTY:  The auxiliary heating and air 
conditioning system shall be installed in the ambulance at the ambulance manufacturer’s 
facilities by technicians employed by the manufacturer of the HVAC equipment. Said 
technicians shall document the installation on forms provided by the HVAC manufacturer and 
on forms required by the ambulance manufacturer. Warranty on the installation of, and the 
equipment content and performance of the equipment, shall be the sole responsibility of the 
HVAC manufacturer. 
 
 
21.0 CONSOLES, SWITCH PANELS 
 
21.1 CAB CONSOLE: The ambulance conversion control console shall be ergonomically 
designed, fully formed and welded .125” 5052-H32 aluminum console and adapter to the 
match the contour of the engine cover. Sharp and other unfriendly edges shall be rounded. 
The body of the console shall be powder coated with a textured, black finish. The console 
shall be tested and secured in a manner to meet the requirements of SAE J3043.  It shall 
also provide ease of accessibility for maintenance and service and to minimize engine repair 
access and time.  The console shall include an electronic siren, the driver’s switch panel, two 
cup-holder positions, a map pocket and area for mounting radios with a removable cover for 
mounting radios. 
  
 
21.2 SWITCH PANEL, CAB CONSOLE: A switch panel made from a thick, translucent, 
acrylic sheet shall be installed on the outboard wall of the Action Area. The panel shall be 
coated with a black colored, rigid plastic film that evenly disperses label and indicator 
illumination.  All switches and controls shall have illuminated legends indication function and 
status. The Switch Panel shall have the following minimum controls and indicators: 
 
 1.  Compartment Open indicator    
 2.  Battery On indicator     
 3.  Door Open indicator     

4.  MASTER Emergency Switch, red bezel   
 5.  Primary/Secondary Mode Switch    

 6.  Siren/Horn Switch      
 7.  Left Flood Switch 

8.  Rear Flood Switch 
9.  Right Flood Switch 
10. Back-Up Alarm Switch 
11. Spare switch positions 
12. Digital Volt/Amp Meter 
13. Module Disconnect Switch 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 32 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

21.3 SWITCH PANEL, ACTION AREA: A switch panel made from a thick, translucent, 
acrylic sheet shall be installed on the outboard wall of the Action Area. The panel shall be 
coated with a black colored, rigid plastic film that evenly disperses label and indicator 
illumination.  All switches and controls shall have illuminated legends indication function and 
status. The Switch Panel shall have the following minimum controls and indicators: 
 
 1.  Dome Lights, Streetside Switch (Hi/Lo)   
 2.  Dome Lights, Curbside Switch (Hi/Lo) 
 3.  Vacuum System Switch, red bezel   
 4.  Exhaust Vent Switch    
 5.  Inverter (if equipped)     
 6.  Cabinet Lights 

7.  Thermostat 
8.  Module Disconnect Switch 

 
 
21.4 MODULE DISCONNECT SWITCH: Two (2) three-way module power disconnect 
switches shall be installed, one (1) in the cab control panel, and one (1) in the action area 
control panel.  This will allow the module power to be activated from the patient 
compartment. 
 
 
22.0 VISUAL CONSPICUITY - EXTERIOR LIGHTING 
 
22.1 WARNING LIGHTS:  The warning light system shall meet or exceed KKK-A-1822F as 
demonstrated with the documentation provided by the lighting manufacturer.   
The warning lights shall be configured like, and flash in compliance with, KKK-A-1822F 
3.8.2.1, and Table 1.   
 
 
22.2 DUAL MODE FLASHERS: A dual mode Primary/Secondary flasher shall be provided 
for the vehicle emergency warning light system as required in KKK-A-1822F.  Lights shall be 
configured as depicted in the attached drawings and as described below: 
 

22.2.1 WARNING LIGHTS - FRONT WALL: The front wall shall be configured with 
seven (7) Whelen 900 series Super LED warning lights mounted on the front of the 
body. From left to right, the LED colors shall be RED / WHITE / RED / WHITE / RED / 
WHITE / RED.  The lenses shall be clear. 
 
22.2.2 WARNING LIGHTS - DRIVER SIDE:  There shall be two (2) RED Whelen 900 
series Super LED warning lights mounted on the driver side of the module; one (1) In 
the upper forward and one (1) in the upper rearward corners of the module. The lenses 
shall be clear. 
 
22.2.3 WARNING LIGHTS - PASSENGER SIDE: There shall be two (2) RED Whelen 
900 series Super LED warning lights mounted on the passenger side of the module; one 
(1) In the upper forward and one (1) in the upper rearward corners of the module. The 
lenses shall be clear. 

 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 33 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

22.2.4 WARNING LIGHTS – REAR UPPER: The ambulance shall be equipped with two 
(2) Whelen 900 series outer and one (1) Whelen 700 series center Super LED warning 
lights positioned on the upper module rear wall.  The lights will be configured as follows:  
RED / Load / AMBER / Load / RED.  The lenses shall be clear.  

 
22.2.5 WARNING LIGHTS – REAR WINDOW LEVEL: This unit shall be equipped with 
two (2) RED Whelen 900 series Super LED warning lights mounted on the rear of the 
module set to show through the both of the rear door windows when the rear doors are 
open. The lenses shall be clear. 
 
The red warning lights shall be wired to function as brake lights when not in emergency 
mode.   
 
22.2.6 GRILLE LIGHTS:  This unit shall be equipped with two (2) RED Whelen LINZ6 
Series Super LED warning lights mounted on the upper cross bar of the OEM grille in 
compliance with the OEM chassis manufacturer's guidelines and the lighting 
requirements of KKK-A-1822F.  These LEDs shall function in the primary mode only.  
The lenses shall be clear. 
 
22.2.7 INTERSECTION LIGHTS – CAB: This unit shall be equipped with (2) Whelen 
LINZ6 Red LED warning lights mounted in the forward area of the chassis front fenders 
in compliance with the OEM chassis manufacturer's guidelines and the lighting 
requirements of KKK-A-1822F.  These warning lights shall function in the primary mode 
only.  The lenses shall be clear.  

 
  
22.3 TAIL LIGHTS:  The tail light configuration shall be Whelen 600 Series LED Tail/Brake, 
LED turn signals, and LED back-up lights installed on either side of the rear entry doors. 
These lights shall be stacked vertically above the diamond plate rear kick plate in the order 
presented above. 
 
 
22.4 SCENE LIGHTS:  Two Whelen gradient 900 series Opti-scene lights shall be 
provided on each side of the module. The curbside lights shall come on when the curbside 
entry door is opened.    
 
The streetside and curbside scene lights may be turned ON/OFF with (2) two separate, right 
and left scene rocker switches located on the cab console switch panel.  There will be a 
momentary disconnect switch located at the side entry door for disabling the curbside scene 
lights during the daylight hours. 
 
 
22.5 LOAD LIGHTS:  Two Whelen gradient LED 700 series load lights shall illuminate the 
rear of the module. Both rear lights shall come on with the opening of the leading rear access 
door. These rear load lights will also activate when the vehicle transmission is placed in 
reverse or when the rear load switch in the cab console switch panel is activated.  There will 
be a momentary disconnect switch located on the wall at the curb side rear entry door for 
disabling the load lights during the daylight hours. 
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 34 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

22.6  WARNING / SCENE / TAIL LIGHT BEZELS: All Whelen warning, scene, and tail-
lights shall have chrome Whelen bezels. 
 
 
22.7 I.C.C. LIGHTS:  3/4" round LED clearance lights shall be provided per FMVSS and 
D.O.T. Standards.  The lights shall indicate the height and width of the vehicle and define the 
vehicle centerline. These lights will be mounted on the uppermost margins of the front and 
rear body.  The lights shall be mounted in rubber grommets and the mounting location for 
each light shall be prepared prior to the paint process to reduce the possibility of paint break 
and resulting corrosion. Drilling or tapping through a painted body shall not be acceptable.   
 
There shall be five (5) amber clearance lights (TecNiq LED model S34-AC09-1) forward 
facing and five (5) red clearance lights (TecNiq LED model S34-RC09-1) rear facing. 
Additionally, there shall be two (2) matching amber D.O.T. marker/directional lights mounted 
one (1) each side of the module on the rear corner extrusions and two (2) matching red 
D.O.T. marker lights mounted one (1) each side of the module on the rear corner extrusions.  
The D.O.T. market lights shall be located approximately 48” above ground level. 
 
 
22.8 LICENSE PLATE LIGHT:  The license plate holder shall be a cast aluminum housing 
that is near flush mounted on the rear of the module.  The housing shall be mounted in the 
lower diamond plate kick panel below the street side B/T/T lighting.  There shall be two (2) 
LED lights installed to provide illumination to the license plate with the chassis park light 
circuit on. 
 
 
22.9 PERIMETER LIGHTING CERTIFICATION: To assure that the exterior work lighting is 
adequate to perform EMS functions in a variety of settings which may require exterior 
illumination, the Scene and Load lights installed on this vehicle shall comply with AMD 
Standard 024- Perimeter Illumination Test. 
  
  
22.10 COMPARTMENT LIGHTING:  The compartments shall be illuminated with near flush 
mount LED Compartment lights. The lights shall function each time the compartment door is 
opened and extinguish when the door is closed. The lights shall be as follows: 
 

• Compartment #1 – one (1) on ceiling 
• Compartment #2 – two (2) on side walls 
• Compartment #3 – one (1) on ceiling  
• Compartment #4/5 – two (2) on side walls 
• Compartment #6 – one (1) on ceiling 

 
 
23.0 AUDIBLE CONSPICUITY 
 
23.1 ELECTRONIC SIREN:  The ambulance shall be equipped with an ignition powered 
Whelen 295SLSA1 200 watt siren mounted in the engine cover console.  
 
There shall be a set of CPI polished cast aluminum 100 watt speakers mounted through the 
bumper on the outboard ends.  The siren speakers shall not block airflow into the grille per 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 35 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

the OEM chassis manufacturer’s guidelines. The siren and speakers shall meet or exceed 
KKK-A-1822F 3.14.4 and be compliant with AMD Standard 023- Siren Performance Test and 
AMD Standard 006- Patient Compartment Sound Level Test. 
 
 
23.2 BACK UP ALARM: The apparatus shall include a minimum 97 decibel back up alarm 
device. The alarm shall be automatically activated by shifting the vehicle transmission into 
reverse. The backup alarm shall include a rocker type cut-off switch located in the cab 
console Switch Panel. The alarm device shall be provided as required in KKK-A-1822F 
3.15.2 and shall be compliant with SAE Standard J994. 
 
 
24.0 INTERIOR LIGHTING 
 
24.1 ACTION AREA LIGHTING:  A 12-volt LED light shall be provided directly over the 
forward, street side work surface.  A near flush, 16-inch type fixture shall be provided.  The 
light shall have an On-Off rocker switch on the rear action area control panel. 
 
 
24.2 STEPWELL ILLUMINATION:  A 12 VDC LED light shall illuminate the curbside step 
well per Federal Specification KKK-A-1822F 3.10.12. This light shall function upon opening 
the Curbside Entry Door and extinguish when the door is closed. 
 
 
24.3 PATIENT COMPARTMENT DOME LIGHTS:  The patient compartment shall have 
eight (8) dual intensity Whelen 8” round LED dome lights in the ceiling.  The domes centers 
shall be installed in two (2) light banks with (4) streetside overhead and (4) curbside 
overhead.  Each bank of lights shall be individually controlled Hi/Off/Low and the 
configuration shall meet current KKK-A-1822 requirements 3.8.4, 3.8.4.1 and be compliant 
with AMD Standard 016- Patient Compartment Lighting Level Test. 
 
 
24.4 CHECK-OUT TIMER:  A 5-minute check-out timer shall activate by opening the rear 
or side entry door when the battery switch is off. The curbside bank of dome lights shall turn 
on in the “low” mode. Following the first 5-minute cycle the lights will deactivate. Closing, 
then re-opening the side or rear entry door, can reactivate the cycle. 
 
 
24.5 DOME LIGHT TIMER SWITCH:  A momentary switch located at the head of the 
squad bench shall power on curbside bank of dome lights when the module power is off for a 
period of 15-minutes. 
 
 
24.6 CABINET LIGHTING:  The four (4) cabinets on the interior streetside wall and the one 
(1) cabinet on the interior front wall with acrylic doors shall have white Tecniq LED strip 
lighting wired to a switch in the action area control panel. 
  
 
 
 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 36 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

25.0 COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT 
 
25.1 COMMUNICATIONS RADIO PREWIRES: The vehicle shall be equipped with two (2) 
RG58-U coaxial cables routed from antenna bases mounted over the first and second 
module dome lights.  One (1) shall terminate behind the driver’s seat and one (1) shall 
terminate behind the action area control panel.  A 12VDC battery power, ignition power, and 
ground lead shall also be provided for each coaxial cable. There shall be an 18” service loop 
at the starting point and a 36” termination loop.  The radio power wires shall originate in the 
power distribution area and will be labeled appropriately for future installation by a radio 
technician. 
 
 
26.0 PAINT, LETTERING, DECALS, MISCELLANEOUS 
 
26.1 100% PAINTFILM COVERAGE:  All stages of primer and paint shall cover all 
weather-exposed surfaces. Hinge mating surfaces on the doors and jambs shall be painted. 
Bare aluminum and primer-only preparation is not acceptable under door hinges. Doors shall 
be painted without actuation handles installed. All body cutouts for emergency lighting, 
shoreline receptacle, etc., shall be cut prior to initiating the prime/paint process to assure 
complete coverage of all exposed, raw metal. 
 
All of the module entry and compartment doors shall be removed prior to painting and be 
painted separately, at the same time and identically to the module process to insure 
complete coverage and electrolysis protection between the stainless-steel hinge and the 
aluminum door and frame surfaces. 
 
To reduce the risk of breaking paint and to provide a for a more consistently robust paint 
application, all light holes, the license plate bracket hole, gas filler bracket hole, all door 
window and handle holes and exhaust fan and any other option required mounting holes 
shall be cut in the module prior to beginning the paint process.  Intersection light holes shall 
be cut in the chassis fenders and cut out must be coated with a corrosion resistant material 
to comply with Ford QVM requirements to prevent oxidation and rusting of the OEM metal 
surface. 
 
The manufacturer's standard paint process shall provide that all surface body welds and 
imperfections be ground flush and body filled as needed to provide a smooth even surface 
that facilitates a flat smooth paint finish. 
 
The entire exterior surface of the module shall be sanded with an air powered DA sander and 
a minimum 150 grit sand paper and then the module shall be washed with DX-330 
cleaner/degreaser to remove any metal, oil or contaminant residue prior to the application of 
the seam seal process. 
 
All exterior body seams shall be sealed with 3M panel bond/seam sealer to provide a smooth 
application environment for the prime and paint processes and to prevent future 
contamination, oxidation and corrosion. 
 
The entire exterior surface of the module shall be coated with a primary coat of PPG 
"Delfleet" etch-coat primer, flash dried and then coated with a high performance PPG 
"Delfleet" primer sealer and baked to dry.  The primer sealer coat shall be sanded to a flat 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 37 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

smooth finish to eliminate all nibs and imperfections, inspected and etch primer/sealer 
applied where necessary and washed with DX330 to provide a clean, smooth surface prior to 
the application of the base coat application. 
 
The entire exterior surface of the module shall be coated with an application of PPG 
"Delfleet" color mixed base coat.  The base coat shall be baked to dry and inspected for 
imperfections.  Minor surface repairs shall be utilized to provide a smooth surface prior to the 
application of the clear coat material.  The entire exterior surface of the module shall be 
coated with an application of a PPG - "Delfleet" clear coat finish that will provide a robust, 
durable finish.  The clear coat finish shall be baked per PPG "Delfleet" process instructions 
prior to the finished surface process application. 
 
After the clear coat process is completed, the entire exterior surface of the module shall then 
be sanded with a minimum 1200 grit sand paper and then buffed using 3M Perfect-It III 
buffing compound to provide a clean, high gloss final surface finish. 
 
Without exception, the manufacturer shall monitor the entire application process.  The 
inspection process shall provide mil-thickness measurements at numerous random locations 
across the body to insure that the total paint process shall provide a minimum of 5 mils dry 
build, without runs or sags, after the completion of the final sand and buff process. 
 
 
26.2 PAINT AND COLORS:  The module shall be painted white to match the chassis. Any 
painting performed by the manufacturer, of the body and/or chassis, shall be covered under 
warranty for a period of not less than four (4) years / forty-eight (48) months, and shall be 
sanctioned by the paint manufacturer.   
 
 
26.3 ROOF STAR-OF-LIFE:  A 36” vinyl star-of-life shall be installed on the roof of the 
module. 
 
 
26.4 OTHER LETTERING & DECALS:  A federal specification KKK-A-1822F “Star-of-Life” 
decal shall be applied to the roof of the ambulance. 
 
The following labels shall be provided as standard. 
  

Notice: This vehicle Equipped with 12VDC charging System (Mounted in cab) 
'Shore Inlet 125VAC 60 HZ''  
'125VAC Outlet'     
'12VDC Outlet'          
'Diesel Only' or ‘Gasoline Only’ (per chassis requirements)           
'No Smoking/Oxygen Equipped' 
(2) 'Fasten Seat Belt' signs provided: (1) located in the cab and (1) in the module. 

 
 
26.5 FIRE EXTINGUISHERS: In compliance with the Federal Specification KKK-A-1822F, 
there shall be two (2) 5lb. ABC rated fire extinguishers with mounting brackets. These 
extinguishers shall be shipped loose with the completed ambulance for installation by this 
agency. 



City of Jamestown Fire Department - BID SPECIFICATIONS 

Page 38 

 

 
 

Bidder Complies 
Exactly as Written 

 

Yes        No 

27 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 
 
27.1 MANUALS:  An Owner's Manual copied onto a thumb drive along with the OEM 
chassis manufacturers supplied items shall be provided with each vehicle.  The information 
on the disc consists of the following items:   
 

1.  Chassis Warranty Card & Owner's Information   
2.  Chassis Maintenance and Operating Tips   
3.  Extra Set of Keys   
4.  15 Year Module Warranty   
5.  3 Year / 36,000 mile Conversion Warranty   
6.  6 Year / 72,000 mile Electrical Warranty   
7.  4 Year Paint Warranty   
8.  Care and Maintenance Instruction   
9.  Heater/AC Information & Warranty   
10. OEM Chassis Manual   
11. Schematics for Standard Systems:       
      - Charging System       
      - Power Distribution  
      - Front Switch Panel       
      - Rear Switch Panel       
      - Climate Control System       
      - OEM Drawings       
      - Wire Harness list 
      - Circuit Diagrams for all Systems   
12. Conversion Component Information   
13. Operations Manual     
14. Warranty and Parts List - Siren, Light bar, Etc. 

 
 
28 ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT: The following equipment shall be included in the 
proposal price. 
 
28.1 Stryker Power Pro 6506 XT Cot – Mid-Configuration 
 
 
28.2 Stryker Power Load System – Shall be installed as stated earlier in the specification. 



  CITY OF LOCKPORT  TIM RUSSO  
   One Locks Plaza   Director of Finance

 Lockport, New York 14094  

   (716) 439-6631 

 E-mail:  trusso@lockportny.gov  

 
 
 

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS 
 

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for 
 

Lockport Fire Department –Emergency Medical Equipment  
 
 
Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received and considered by the City of Lockport up to 2 
pm on September 7th, 2023  at the office of the City Clerk, municipal building, One Locks Plaza Lockport NY, 
14094.  
 
Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the equipment.  
 
Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at 716-439-6776 or city.clerk@lockportny.gov with any questions.  
 
The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the reputation and 
experience of the Proposal in making its selection; to waive any informalities or minor deviations from the 
proposal form, and to award word to other than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is 
considered in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs 
associated with the preparation of RFP(s).  
 
 
Publish Date: August 24, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:city.clerk@lockportny.gov


 2 

Introduction: 
 
The City of Lockport invites proposals from qualified suppliers to provide emergency medical 

equipment as specified below. The purpose of this RFP is to identify a supplier that can meet our 
requirements for the following powered ambulance cot items.  

 
Equipment Specifications: 

 
The City is looking to procure one of each of the following Stryker items:  
 

 
 
 
If required, vendors may elect to discuss with City officials to determine greater specifics as required. If 

desired, please contact Fire Chief Luca Quagliano at lquagliano@lockportny.gov or 716-439-6611. 
 
 

Selection Process 
 

It is intended that the Council will be voting on this bid on September 13, 2023.  City Officials and 
Council may award contract, however please note that this RFP does not obligate the City to select a bidder 
or accept a bid at this time or any time in the future. The City can at its sole discretion revise the 
requirement, scope, and selections process for this RFP at any time.  

 

mailto:lquagliano@lockportny.gov






From: Luca Quagliano
To: trusso
Subject: New Amb Price
Date: Thursday, September 7, 2023 2:21:40 PM
Attachments: Mobile Radio Quote - New Amb.pdf

Tim,

I did not include the price of the service plans ($8,112.30) in my final price 

172,520.00 - vehicle
71,104.19 - Stretcher System (including service plans)
4,497.25 - mobile radio (see attached quote) 
5,000 - medical equipment upfitting
3,000 - decaling (this is my best guess based on the cost of other projects we've done
with D & T Graphics, still waiting for official quote)

$256,121.44

$247,309.14 - without the service plans

-- 
Luca C.P. Quagliano
Chief of Department
City of Lockport Fire Department
1 Locks Plaza, Lockport NY 14094
O: 716-439-6611 C: 716-998-0995

mailto:lquagliano@lockportny.gov
mailto:trusso@lockportny.gov



� �����������	
������������������������������������������������������ ��!���� �"�##�������	
������������������������������������������������������ ��!��� $%&'
��('
��)*�)*+�+,�-#�	('�&���('
���*�.*+�+,$%&'
��	
('
���/��(	&��0(	�(1(	�2�3/1(4
5&	������%�'&6
	������������������������������6&'"/�&%73��'�&%73�2�&73#&	'�/5�&4��� � � �&�'	(7'���+�89+�:���0�������;����������:���9).++��$��%6<
	�+,:+��+�


� ��
�=� �'
6��%6<
	� �
�7	�#'�&�� $'/� ��'��	�7
� �(�
��	�7
� �-'5��(�
��	�7
�
�


�
� ��>?��8�����"(�7
�� � � � � �


�
� �� @++$�� �0���� ��>�8�����A������!A����@�����


�� B+��,95��� B��8+.5��� B��8+.5���
�


� �(� ;),���� �����������80�0��������������
�� B995��� B� 58�� B� 58��


�


� �<� ;  9��� ��A���C����A��������C�������;�
�� B���5��� B)+58�� B)+58��


�


� �7� ;���+8���� �����0���*;������!�����������@�+���
�� B���5��� B)+58�� B)+58��


�


� ��� $��+.89��� �����,9������ 9����!����;���!�����;������@�


�� B��.+.5��� B��+ 85+8� B��+ 85+8�
�


� �
� ;���)����� �������>��+��A�D;���E� �� B8��5��� B��85.8� B��85.8�
�


� �F� ;����A� �������>��������A�������0����
�� B�5��� B�5��� B�5���


�


� ��� ;�+8��� ����������*��0�C��0A��,)�:�,,�@A��
�� B+)5��� B+�5��� B+�5���


�


� �"� 0++��� �����������@@�����A������>�
�� B. 5��� B8 5+8� B8 5+8�


�


� ��� ;� ,��� �������������D���:�+8������@�����E�D!�����E�
�� B�5��� B�5��� B�5���


�


�
� $!���:++).9, +,:+��+�


�


��/��(�
��'	(��(7'�&��F&��&1����@&'&	&�(G��H%&'
����<(�
��&��(����%<I
7'�'&�'"
�'
	6��(���7&���'�&���&F�'"
�4(����(���
-
7%'
��1	�''
��7&�'	(7'�<
'1

���%�'&6
	�(���@&'&	&�(�D'"
�JJ!��
	�/�����	

6
�'JJE�'"('�(%'"&	�K
���%�'&6
	�'&�#%	7"(�
�
H%�#6
�'�(��*&	��
	4�7
��&	���7
��
��&F'1(	
�D7&��
7'�4
�/�JJ�	&�%7'�JJE5��F��&�!��
	�/������	

6
�'�
-��'��<
'1

��@&'&	&�(�(����%�'&6
	��'"
�@&'&	&�(G���'(��(	���
	6��&F�!�
�(���@&'&	&�(G���'(��(	���
	6��(����&���'�&���&F��(�
��(����%##�/��"(����&4
	��'"
�#%	7"(�
�&F�'"
��	&�%7'�5�@&'&	&�(��&�%'�&������75��8���0
�'�@&�	&
��!��'
���'('
��:�9�99��L�=��,9:���8)����� �(�
���







� ������� ���	�
�	��� ����������� ���� ���������� ���������� ���������������
�


� ��� �� !"� �
#$�%�&�!'�����
(�!��)*�
�� +� ,�--� +� ,�--� +� ,�--�


�


� �.� �/0��� !��$�'�12(��123
(�2�!�"1�
�� +%�0�--� +� ,��,� +� ,��,�


�


�
� !�"4�*������#��561������7�8���6��8�92"61�����������


� � � � �
�


� �� #�:--!� 2��*#� �� + :��--� +%/:�--� +%/:�--�
�


� ��� �;%�!�� !��$���8'��,<�<!(�''����(!
(�
�� +//�--� + :�,-� + :�,-�


�


� ��� <��9!� !��$��(���!�11�*'2�#2
��!�"�
�� +0:�--� +,:��,� +,:��,�


�


� ��� �!-��;�!!� !��$�
2�'�12(��(�9� �� +-�--� +-�--� +-�--�
�


� �5� �!-��0/!!� !��$�2��'�12(��*#�9� �� +��,�--� +:%�0,� +:%�0,�
�


� ��� �!-�%-�!!� !��$�
2��<'�*9�� �� +-�--� +-�--� +-�--�
�


� �=� �!-��:0!!� !��$�
2�!**���2'&*!9���
�� +-�--� +-�--� +-�--�


�


� �7� �/�;!*� !��$�'�12(��123
(*!9����0�>(�!�"�
�� +�0�--� +���0,� +���0,�


����5�(����� + ? :0��,@3��A�� 
����$
� B�� � 3��������C�D��������5?��C���E����������5�����������������C�������������������@���C�������5����5���F�����(��?���������?�)�����!55�5�(�����5���C���������=�����	���������A��!��������C�������	����������������D��������55�5�����F�������


� �32(�G��;0/%:�%G��-��


!��������������������=����D��7�1������H��E������������5������5�������������C����	����5����5��������=��C��F���5���5��������5�D�����������������D����*����	����5�1�������@�C��II3�5�����7!7��	���IIA��C������C��J���*����	��������C�����E���	������56����F�����������������=�D���@��������F����II��5����IIA���=����3�5�����7�!7��	��������������D����1���������5�*����	�?��C��1������H������5�5�(�	���=�3�����5�1������H������5�5�(�	����5�*��5��������=���������5���������C����7�F����C�����C�����=��C����5������1����������������?�����$�,--�<����1����?�3����5��������G�/-//��K��$�%/G���,;--��� ��7����







��������	
����	����������������	�����	��������� �����	��	��!	�"#�����!	$"����	�"	��"����	"#	�"%&�#'	(���������)��	*���	#"�	+�	&�"������	*���"��	����,��	$�%+��!	�"#�����	$�%+����	-���.�#�"�	/	 "�"�"��	0"����"#�1	2#�3��'%�#�	)4����#5,	6��%�!	0����	�"#�����	$�%+��4���76"	$�%�	"#	��	%���	+�	�8���	�"	���	9:;<=4���76"	$�%�4���76"	>������0��&76"	>������	)2?	*�	���	���&&�#5	�"	�	 @	�"����"#1	��	%���	+�	�"��%�#���	"#	��,A���%���	>������	)2?	���	0��&76"	�������	��	���	 @	�"����"#	���#	���	A���%���	-����#���"#	�������	%���	+�	�"��%�#���	"#	��	,��	>%"�#�	%���	+�	�8���	�"	"�	5������	���#	�����	6"���$"#7B����+��	C"�%��	)D"��!	BE���	��%&�����	��##"�	+�	����&���,4���	6"	�"#����	$�%�	F	��"#�	G	�#�	B >2(	?"�	����"%��	���"�#��	&�'�+��	��&�0��&	6"	�"#����	$�%�	F	��"#�	G6�E	BE�%&��"#	0�����0�5#������	)>�	��8�����,


	 	 	







Month
2023 

Budgeted
2023 Actual 2023 Variance

January -$                 -$                 -$                          

February 601,945$        690,536$        88,591$                   

March 516,319$        599,857$        83,538$                   

April 790,491$        773,396$        (17,095)$                 

May 611,642$        593,445$        (18,197)$                 

June 825,579$        721,526$        (104,053)$               

July 561,408$        686,639$         125,231$                

August 561,269$        641,532$        80,263$                   

September 557,134$        -$                         

October 827,439$        -$                         

November 505,240$        -$                         

December 1,373,729$     -$                         

Annual Total 7,732,195$     4,706,931$     238,278$                 

CITY OF LOCKPORT MONTHLY COMBINED 

SALES TAX DATA, FY 2020 - FY 2023 (MTD)





































STARTING YEAR                                                                                                                             
2018

FUND NUMBER

060618.5
 Will Impact Personnel:  $              -   

 Will Not Impact X Operations:  $              -   
# of Positions 0 Other:  $              -   

Total:  $              -   

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

-$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$        150,000 150,000 

-$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ 150,000$ 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

 $     130,000 -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$  $    130,000 

20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$  $      20,000 

SCHEDULE FINISH
Design 1/1/2026
Land

Construction
150,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ TOTAL 1/1/2026

PROJECT TITLE

WASTEWATER TREATMENT SLUDGE DRYER
COUNCIL DISTRICT(S)

All

DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT NUMBER

G.8197 Sewer Equipment and Capital Outlay Delayed
PROJECT STATUS

H194.8197.52481
PROJECT DESCRIPTION H194

The Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Sludge Dryer project would total $3.6 million in funding for its entirety. The purpose of the project 
would be to add another step (a gas dryer) into the building. Currently, this project is delayed as funding is not fully available. In FY 2020, bond 
proceeds in the amount of $150,000 were received for the initial design and engineer work for the project and if not used, will be returned to the 
debt service fund (sewer cash portion) and be then transferred the following year into the sewer fund as revenue to pay for debt and bond 
principle and interest payments. 

PROJECT MAP

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGET IMPACT EXPLANATION ASSOCIATED RESOLUTIONS

*PROJECT COSTS FUNDING SOURCE(S)

No anticipated impact at this time. Annual Cost (Savings):Operating Impact? 

Design Serial Bonds 130,000.00$ 
BANS Redeemed 20,000.00$ 

TOTAL COSTS

*SOURCE OF FUNDS TOTAL FUNDED 150,000.00$ 

Serial Bond Proceeds UNFUNDED
BANS Redeemed PROJECT TOTAL 130,000.00$ 

START
1/1/2021

Unfunded
TOTAL SOURCES 1/1/2021



 By Alderwoman Farrel 

  

 WHEREAS, sludge produced at the City of Lockport (City) Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) 

is currently being composted by a City owned and operated facility, which is located remote from the 

WWTP, to generate Class A Bio-solids; and 

 WHEREAS, the processing equipment at the compost facility has reached the end of its service 

life; and 

 WHEREAS, City WWTP operations staff and its consulting Engineer Nussbaumer & Clarke, Inc. 

(Nussbaumer) evaluated replacement of the compost processing equipment as well as alternatives to 

generate Class A Bio-solids from the City’s WWTP sludge; and 

 WHEREAS, the evaluation considered construction costs as well as operation and maintenance 

costs and concluded with the recommendation to construct a natural gas sludge drying system at on the 

site of the WWTP; and 

 WHEREAS, the recommended alternative is anticipated to result in significant life cycle cost 

savings relative to replacing the composting equipment in its current location; and 

 WHEREAS, Nussbaumer submitted a proposal dated July 5, 2018 for Task 1 – Design Phase, 

which consists in the preparation of the design and contract documents required for obtaining 

contractor bids for construction of a sludge drying system at the WWTP; bid process, construction 

support, and inspection are not included in this proposal; now, therefore, be it 

 RESOLVED, that the Mayor, subject to Corporate Counsel approval,  is hereby authorized to 

execute an agreement with Nussbaumer & Clarke, Inc., 3556 Lake Short Road, Suite 500, Buffalo, NY 

14219,  for a fee Not-to-Exceed of $150,000 for the Scope of Work included in their proposal to the City 

to be charged to Capital Projects . 

 

 



City of Lockport Budget Performance Report
Life-to-Date to 09/07/23

Include Rollup Account and Rollup to Account

Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % Used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd
Fund   H194 - Active, WWTP-Sludge Dryer

REVENUE
Department   8197 - Sewer Equipment & Cap Outlay

35710 Serial Bond Proceeds .00 130,000.00 130,000.00 .00 .00 130,000.00 .00 100
35731 BANS Redeemed from Appropriations .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .00 .00 20,000.00 .00 100

Department   8197 - Sewer Equipment & Cap Outlay Totals $0.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 100%
REVENUE TOTALS $0.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 100%

EXPENSE
Department   8197 - Sewer Equipment & Cap Outlay

52481 Infrastructure-Sewer System .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .00 .00 .00 150,000.00 0
Department   8197 - Sewer Equipment & Cap Outlay Totals $0.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 0%

EXPENSE TOTALS $0.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 0%

Fund   H194 - Active, WWTP-Sludge Dryer Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .00 .00 150,000.00 .00 100%
EXPENSE TOTALS .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .00 .00 .00 150,000.00 0%

Fund   H194 - Active, WWTP-Sludge Dryer Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 ($150,000.00)

Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .00 .00 150,000.00 .00 100%
EXPENSE TOTALS .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .00 .00 .00 150,000.00 0%

Grand Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 ($150,000.00)

Run by Tim Russo on 09/07/2023 11:32:06 AM Page 1 of 1



City of Lockport, New York

FY 2023 Capital Budget 

1



Timothy Russo
Finance Director

A Note from the Director of Finance:

I am thrilled to present to you the publication of the Fiscal Year 2023 Capital Budget for the City of Lockport, NY. This comprehensive 
document encapsulates the collective efforts of City leadership and management as it outlines an array of transformative projects 
aimed at improving our city's infrastructure and fostering community growth.

The FY 2023 Capital Budget publication showcases a total of 50 selected projects that have either received prior Common Council 
approval and are currently underway or are proposed by the Mayor for future implementation. With each project carefully designed to 
align with the long-term goals and aspirations of the City of Lockport, this budget reflects a vision for a prosperous and sustainable 
future.

Within this publication, you will find a wealth of information regarding each project, including detailed cost estimates, funding sources, 
and projected timelines. By offering transparent insights into the financial aspects of the budget, I aim to foster trust and accountability 
with our stakeholders. The City recognizes that open communication and collaboration are vital to the success of any initiative, and I am 
excited to share our plans with you.

The projects outlined in the FY 2023 Capital Budget cover a broad spectrum, ranging from essential infrastructure improvements to 
initiatives that promote economic development, community well-being, and environmental sustainability. The Mayor and Common 
Council have taken into account valuable feedback received from our community members and leveraged upcoming financial 
opportunities to ensure that these projects address the immediate needs of our residents while also laying the groundwork for long-
term growth. 

The City extends its appreciation to the residents of Lockport for their ongoing support and engagement throughout the budgeting and 
capital process. It is through their active participation and invaluable input that we can shape a city that we can all be proud of. We 
invite you to review this publication thoroughly, as it provides a comprehensive overview of the City of Lockport's vision for the future. 
We are confident that the implementation of these projects will bring about positive change and contribute to the continued growth 
and prosperity of our community.

Thank you once again for your support. I eagerly anticipate the opportunities and possibilities that lie ahead as we work together to 
build a bright future for the City of Lockport.

2



Recently Completed Projects and Purchases 11
Revenue Sources for All Projects 10

How to Read this Budget 7
Estimated Spending per Year, by Project and Fund 8

TABLE OF CONTENTS
A Note from the Director of Finance and City Engineer 2

Budget Narrative and Summarized Reporting 6

Workplace Violence Prevention Improvements

Touring Routes

Traffic Signal Upgrades - Main St. / East Ave. / West Ave.
Chestnut Street Improvements
Gooding Street Improvements

30

32

27

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding Allocation 12

City Garage Expansion

General Facility and Equipment Projects 13
IT Infrastructure Improvements

12 Ton Truck
Fire Ladder
Skid Steer
Wheel Loader

Fire Apron Repairs

Police Dispatch Repairs

Police Radio Replacement
Police Communication Improvements

Street Improvement Projects 28
Highway Maintenance Program 29

33
34

Lincoln and Locust Improvements 35

Clinton Street Paving 31

24
25
26

Ford F450 

Municipal Solar Paneling Option 1
Municipal Solar Paneling Option 2

19
20
21
22
23

14
15
16
17
18

3



52

48

Electronic Vehicle Charger Program

49

Spalding Mill

50

42
43
44
45

Tree Canopy Restoration

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Waterfront Revitalization Program Development

Water Meters

Wastewater Treatment Sludge Dryer

63

Compost Facility Lease

Municipal Electronic Vehicle Charging Stations

54

Parks and Community Projects 36

46
47

Aaaron Mossell Playground

Scalzo Park Wall  Market Street

Electronic Vehicle Charger Station - Pine Street Lot

51

Water Infrastructure Improvements

Wastewater Pump Replacements

Water Activity Projects 60

Raw Water Generator

Lead Line Replacement 65

Community Pool Enhancements

55
56

Gulf Interceptor Upgrades

61

Wastewater Ultraviolet System

62

Sewer Activity Projects 53

Sewer Infrastructure Improvements

64

57
58
59

Lead Line Inventory

37
38
39
40
41

Wayfinding and Signage Plan

Parks Revitalization

Lowertown Loop Phase 1

City Skate Park

South Street Tree Planting

Streetscape GIGP Enhancement

Splash Pad

4



66

Debt Payments and Projections 74

Report of Assets and Depreciation, as of 12/31/2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

75

Asset and Depreciation Data 69
Report of Assets and Depreciation, as of 12/31/2019 70

71
Report of Assets and Depreciation, as of 12/31/2021 72

73Report of Assets and Depreciation, as of 12/31/2022

Combined Utility Projects

Water and Sewer Line Improvements

City Bond Rating History

Historic Bonds and Debt Payments, By Fund 

77
78

Funding on Proposed Projects - Debt Service and Fund Balance 76

Debt Limitation

67

68

Water and Sewer Master Plan

79

Bonds and Debt as a Form of Tax Equity

5



STARTING YEAR                                                    
2023

FUND NUMBER

 Will Impact X Personnel:  $ -   

 Will Not Impact Operations:  $ -   

# of Positions 0 Other:  $ -   

Total:  $ -   

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

-$ -$ -$ 250,000$ 220,000$ -$ -$ 470,000$ 

-$ -$ -$ 250,000$ 220,000$ -$ -$ 470,000$ 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

-$ -$ -$ 200,000$ -$ -$ -$  $       200,000 
-$ -$ -$ 170,000$ -$ -$ -$  $       170,000 
-$ -$ -$ 100,000$ -$ -$ -$  $       100,000 

SCHEDULE FINISH
Equipment 1/1/2025

Land
Construction

-$ -$ -$ 470,000$ -$ -$ -$ 470,000$ TOTAL 1/1/2025

PROJECT TITLE

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION IMPROVEMENTS
COUNCIL DISTRICT(S)

All

DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT NUMBER

1620 Building Maintenance Proposed
PROJECT STATUS

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The City of Lockport is pursuing options to fulfil its Workplace Violence Prevention Policy by implementing various improvements. This includes 
acquiring new radios and communication devices, enhancing security measures, and making facility improvements. These measures aim to 
ensure effective communication, strengthen security protocols, and create a safe working environment for employees and visitors. Lockport's 
commitment to these enhancements highlights its dedication to the well-being and safety of all individuals within its jurisdiction. Note: 
improvements are scheduled to be made in a number of locations and within all funds. 

PROJECT MAP

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGET IMPACT EXPLANATION ASSOCIATED RESOLUTIONS

N/A N/A

*PROJECT COSTS FUNDING SOURCE(S)

Improvements may include annual maintenance costs and upkeep. Most anticipated to 
result in minor increases. 

Annual Cost (Savings):Operating Impact?

200,000$ 
Water Funds

100,000$ 
170,000$ 

Sewer Funds

Capital Expense General Funds

-$ 

TOTAL COSTS

0

*SOURCE OF FUNDS TOTAL FUNDED  $ 470,000 

General Funds UNFUNDED  $ -   
Water Funds PROJECT TOTAL  $ 470,000 
Sewer Funds

Unfunded
TOTAL SOURCES 7/1/2025

START
7/1/2025

27










	Medix RP-90 Ambulance RFP
	Ambulance Contract
	Jamestown - Signed Contract
	Emergency Medical Equipment  RFP
	Add ons to ambualnce vehicel
	New Amb Price
	Excess Sales Taxes
	Capital Project Summary
	1.1.2020

	Sludge Dryer Design Resolution
	rptBudgetPerformance (9)
	Cover Page
	Table of Contents

